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December 18,2024

His Excellency, Govemor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Energy (Department) to enter into an amendment to an
existing SOLE SOURCE contract with Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., Berlin, NH
Vendor #177195, by increasing the price limitation by $533,000 from $5,531,334 to $6,064,334 using
additional Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP) funds made available through
remaining regular program year funds, from the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services,
Administration for Children and Families, effective upon Govenor and Executive Council approval
through September 30, 2025. There is no time extension being requested for this contract. The
original contract was approved by Govemor and Executive Council on September 20, 2023, Item #90,
and amended on August 7,2024, Item #29. 100% Federal Funds.

Funding is available in the following account, contingent upon the availability and continued
appropriation of flinds in the operating budget, as follows:

New Hampshire Department of Enerav. Fuel Assistance FY 2025
02-52-52-520510-33540000-074-500587

Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $533,000

EXPLANATION

This is an amendment to a contract is SOLE SOURCE because the historical performance of the
Community Action Agencies (CAA) in the New Hampshire Low-Income Home Energy Assistance
Program (LIHEAP), their outreach and client service capabilities, and the synergies that benefit the
FAP as a result of the five statewide CAAs' implementation of several other federal assistance
programs as well as the infrastructure that is already in place to deliver LIHEAP (also known as Fuel
Assistance Program or FAP) services. The Department proposes to continue to subcontract with the
five CAAs who have successfully provided FAP services at the local level for more than three
decades. The CAAs work closely with Department's FAP Administrator in the implementation of the
program.



l lis IZxcellcncy, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the l lonorablc Council

[December 18,2024

Page 2 of2

This amendment adds additional funding which was received for Program Year 24 (PY24) to existing
contracts and makes them available to the Community Action Agencies until the contract ends on
September 30, 2025, making them available for this winter's heating season. Demand and benefit
amounts have varied across the CAAs and these amendments seek to position these additional funds
to the CAAs that have experienced the most need)

In the event that the Federal Funds become no Ion

to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

\

ger available, General Funds will not be requested

/Jared S. Chicoine

Commissioner

I..'



NEW HAMPSHIRE D iPARTMENT OF ENERGY

SUBJECT: FUEL ASSISTANCE CONTRACT

TRI-COUNTY COMMUN

AMEN

TY ACTION PROGRAM, INC

DMENT #2

This Amendment is between the State of New Hampshire Department of Energy, 21 .
South Fruit Street, Concord, Merrimack County, NH 03301 (hereinafter referred to as the
"State") and Tri-Coimty Community Action Program, Inc., 30 Exchange Street, Berlin, Coos
County, NH 03570 (hereinafter the "Contractor").

Pursuant to an Agreement (hereinafter leferred to as the "Agreement"), as approved by
Governor and Council on September 20, 20231 Item #90, and amended on August 7, 2024, Item
#29, the Contractor has agreed to provide certain Services, per the terms and conditions specified
in the Agreement and in consideration of payment by the State of certain sums as specified
therein. j .

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 of the Agreement, the Agreement
may be modified or amended only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto and
only after approval of such modification or amendment by the Governor and Council; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain
respects.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration
.  I
3f the foregoing and of the covenants and

conditions'in the Agreement as set forth hereii^ the parties agree to the following:

1) Amendment and Modification of Agreement. The Agreement is amended and
modified as follows:

A) Price Limitation: Amend Subparagr^h 1.8 of the Agreement by striking
the cuirat sum of $5,52
of $6,064,334.

1,334 and inserting in place thereof the total sum

B) Exhibit C - Payment Terms: Amend Exhibit C, first paragraph by striking
the current sum of $5,53
of$6,064,334.

1,334 and inserting in place thereof the total sum

2)

C) Amend Exhibit C, second paragraph by striking the current sum of
$4,933,057 and inserting program costs of $5,466,057.

Continuance of Agreement. Except as specifically amended and modified by
the Terms and Conditions of this Amendment, obligations of the parties hereunder
shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with the terms and conditions

set forth in the Agreement as it existed immediately prior to this Amendment.

Tri^County Community Action Program, Inc. Contractor Initials:
U.S. DHHS Award tf 2401NHLIEA; Award Date: 10/27/2023 Date: ill
FA? PY24 ALN: 93.568 >agc 1 of 2



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year
writtenbelow.

Date: ml2^

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE .

NH Dqrajrtment of Energy

By: .
S. Chicoine, Commisaioner

Tri^County Community Action ̂ gram, Inc

By; V

Approved as to form, execution and substance:

OFFICE OE

11/22/2024
D B

(NamV^ Title of Person ̂ ithorized to Sign)

ate: y:

RNEY GENERAL

^Astistant Attorney General

I hereby ccrtiiy that the foregoing contract was approved by the Governor and Cotmcil of tiie
State ofNewHanqjshire at Aeir meeting on ,2024.

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

By:

Title:

THCoonty ConBonrnqr Aetna ProiniD. Inc.
U.S. pHHS Awtrd # 240INHUBA; Awvd E>tt8: 10/27/2023
PAP PY34ALN: 93.568

Conttictof Iniriitr _

n|eiof2



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1. David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the Slate of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY

ACTION PROGRAM. INC. (TRI-COUNTY CAP) is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in

New Hampshire on May 18,. 1965. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of Slate's office have

been received and is in good.standing as far as this office is concerned. '

Business ID: 63020 .

Certificate Number: 0006652662

%

o

4*

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this I St day of April A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secretarv of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

_^andy Alonzo hereby certify that:

(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1.1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of _Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. _■
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2 The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/sharehol^rs. duly called and
held oh May 17ih_ 2024 , at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and
voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Jeanne Robillard. Randall Pilotte. Brenda'caqne (may list more than one person)(Name and Title of Contract Signatory) |
is duly authorized on behalf of Tri-County Community Action Program. INC. to enter into contracts or agreements
with the State

(Name of Corporation/IILC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to ewecute any
documents, agreements and other Instruments, and any amendments, revisjons. or modifications thereto. whicr>
may In his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.
3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this

or repealed and remains In full force and effect as of the
certificate Is attached. This authority remains valid for

thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire vrill rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(8) listed above currently occupy the
position(8) Indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporati^.
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation In con^cts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated

Rev. 03/24/20

icerSlgnSlure of Elected
Name: Sandy Alonzo
Title:



ACORty CERTIFICATE OF L ABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MMfDDfYYYY)

06/25/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. ECTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. |
IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pbllcy(le8) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms,and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(8).

PRODUCER 1 NAME*^^ Lindsay Goodrich
Cross Insurance-Manchester

1100 Elm Street

Manchester NH 03101

(603) 669-3218, (603)64M331

ACCESS- rhanch.certs@crossagency.com
INSURERtS) APFORDINQ COVERAGE NAICS

INSURER A Philadelphia indemnity Ins Co 16058

MSUREO

TrLCounty Community Action Program. Inc

30 Exchange Street

Berlin NH 03570

INSURER B Granite State Health Care and Human Sen/ices Self-

INSURER C

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 24-25 All Lines REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
UTR TYPE OF INSURANCE PIrIRWI POLICY NUMBER

WLicvew
IMM/DD/YYYYl

POLICY exp
IMMmO/YYYYI LIMITS 1

A

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

£  1 Xj OCCUR

1

PHPK2571941 07/01/2024 07/01/2025

EACH OCCURRENCE
j 1,000.000

CLAIMS-MAC
0AUA6E TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ea occurrencal

, 100,000

— MED EXP (Any one perton) , 5.000

PERSONAL A ADV INJURY "■ , 1.000,000
GENt AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER; GENERALAGGREGATE J 3.000,000
X POUCY 1 1 I 1 LOC

OTHER: 1

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG J 3.000,000
Professional Liatiility i 1.000.000

A

[ AUTOMOBILE LIASIUTY

PHPK2571943

j

1

07/01/2024
i

07/01/2025

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ee eoMend $ 1.000.000

X ANYAUTO

:hEDULE0
rros
IN-OWNED
rros ONLY

BOOILY INJURY (Per perton) $

OWNED •
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SC
AL BOOILY INJURY (Per tccUwil) i $
NC
AU

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per acddeni) i i

s

A

UMBRELLA LIAS

EXCESS LIAS

X OCCUR

CLAIMSAtAOE PHUB87d544
1

07/01/2024 07/01/2025
EACH OCCURRENCE J 2.000.000

X AGGREGATE S 2.000,000
DEO. 1 X| RETENTION $ lO-WW | s

B

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS'LIASILITY y/N
ANYPROPRIETOWPARTNER/EXECUTIsrE rm
0FF1CERAilEM8ER EXCLUOEO?
(M«od«tory In KH) ' '
H yes. uodsf
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS boKw

1

,N/A
1

HCHS20240000575 (3a.)NH 01/01/2024 01/01/2025

V" PER OTH-^ STATUTE FR

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT J 1.000.000
E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE , 1.000,000
E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT . J 1,000.000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS 1 VEHICLES |ACORO 101. Addltlofwl Ramarlu SclMdu

Refer to policy for exclusionary endorsements and special provisions.
Ruy b* atiachAd If tnor* »o*c« It rtqulrtd)

r

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH Department of Energy
21 South Fruit St., Ste. 10

Concord , NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OP THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHOmZED REPRESEHTATTVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
I  •01988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered maiits of ACORD
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors of

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate

Leone, ,
McDonnell
& Roberts

PR0n3SI0K\L ASSOCIATION

CERTIFIED PLrbUCACCOU.'rrAffFS

■DOVER* WU[.FKBI.)Rl)
NORTIICONWAY-

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying'consolidated financial statements of Th-County Community
Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate (New Hampshire nonprofit organizations), which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, the related
consolidated statements of functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, the
related statement of activities for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Tri-County Community Action Program,' Inc. and Affiliate as of ,June 30.
2023, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America..

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of Arnerica and the standards applicable to finandai audits contained in Govemment
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further dasaibed in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Finandai Statements section of our repor1.| We are required to be independent of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Responsibiiitles of iyjanagemeni for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of Internal control
relevant to the preparatiori and fair presentation of consolidated nnancial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In pre^ring the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether
there are conditions, or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial dqubt about
Tri-County Community Action Program, lnc.|and Affiliate's ability to continue as a going concern
within one year after the date that the consolidated financial- statements are available to be
issued.



Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financisl Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as,a.whole are free from materiai mlsstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditors' report that includes ourj opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high'level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud ls| higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, , misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstalements are consider^ material if there is a substantial likelihood that.
Individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable userbased on the consolidated financial statemenjs.
In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
Government Auditing Standards, we: ]

Exercise professional judgment and
audit.

maintain professional skepticism throughout the

•  ' Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or [error, and design and perform audit, procedures
responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of Internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in [the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. and Affiliate's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion Is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateiiess of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Tri-County Community Artion Program,
Inc. and Affiliate's abil'rty to.continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

I  I
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, .and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.



,  \

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying: schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements. Cost Principles, end Audit Fiiequirements for Federal Awards, Is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated frnanciai statements.
The Information has been subjected to the| auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
recorwiling such Information directly to the underiying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is fairly stated, in all material respects! in relation to the consolidated financial statements
as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 13. 2023, on our consideration of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s Internal
control over financial reporting and on our tesb of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements| and other matters. The purpose of that report is
solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and rwt to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-
County Community Action Program, lnc.'s| internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Aud/f/ng Sfanda/tfs in considering Tri-County " ~ '
over financial reporting and compliance.

Community Action Program, inc.'s Internal control

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliates* 2022
financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial
statements in our report dated November 15,2022. in our opinion, the summarized comparative
information presented herein as of and for tfie year ended June 30. 2022, is consistent, in all
material respects, with the audited financial statements from wNch it has been derived.

North Conway, New Hampshire
November 13, 2023



THi^nUNTY COMMUNITY ACTip^a PPnORAM INC. AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash aiKl cash equivalents
Restrlcied cash. Guardianship Services Program
Accounts receivable

Pledges receivable
Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

PROPERTY

Property and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Property, net

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Right of use asset, operating
Restricted cash

\

Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of long term debt
Current portion of right of use liability, operating
Accounts payable
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued salaries

Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

Other liabilities

Total current liabilities

NONCURRENT LIABIUTIES
Right of use liability, operating, less current portion
Long term debt, net of current portion

Total iiabllities

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

4

2223 2022

S 4,400,730 S 3.627,664

1.313.655 977,227

2.024.546 1,807,274

192,212 169,196

123,409 59,759

138.888 138.811

8.193.440 61976.931

12.858,931 12,794.151
(6.522.499) (6,088.609}

6.336.432 6.705.542

208.857 ■

413.721 410.431

622.578 410.431

S 15.152.450 $'14,095,904

$  V39.961 $  134,452
88,219 •  •

456,444 262.473

249.777 226,342

90,948 81,707

95.772 117.415

•  '403,239 446,208

1.342.462 1,085.406

2.884.822 2.356.003

122,638
•  4.298.550 4.442.B66

7.284.010 6.798.869

7,577,645 7,037,337

290.795 259.698

7.868,440 7,297.035

S 15.152.450 $ 14,095.904



TRI-CQUMTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM INC AND AFFILIATg

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 .

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grants and contracts

Program funding
Utility programs
In-kind contributions

Contributions

Fundretsing'
Rental income

Interest Incorrte

Gain on disposal of property
'Other revenue

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS

Total revenues, other support, and
net assets released from restrictions

FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Program Services:
Agency Fund
Head Start

Guardianship
Transportation
Volunteer

Carrot! County Oenlal
Homeless

Energy and Community Development
Elder

HousingServices

Total program services.

Supporting Activities:
General end adrrrinistralive

Fundraising

Total supporting activities

Total functbnal expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS. END OF YEAR

Without Donor

Restrictions

■!
$ 39,636,536

1,131,923
1,458,145

479,251
252,119
23,626

887,061
26,196
6,817

!  2,735

43.884.409

137.290

44.021.699

1,314.337
31107,886
{651,255

11404,213
72,150

679,379
20 422,871
131099,599

11276,827
1212,979

42.241.496

1 236,580
1  '3,315

1.239.895

43.Ul.391
.  1

j540.308
7,037,337

% 7,577,645

With Oonof
Restrictions

$  168,387

168.387

(137,290)

31.097

31,097

259,698

$  290.795

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

5

2023
Total

$39,604,923
1,131,923

• 1.458,145
479,251
252,119

23,626
867,061

26.196
6,817

,  zm

44,052,796

44.052.796

1,314,337
3.107.888

651,255
1,404,213

72,150
679,379

20,422,871
13,099,599

1.276,827
212.979

1,236,580
3,315

1.239.895

43.481.391

571,405

7.297.035

$ 7.868,440

2022
Total

$33,019,028
1,176,528
1,862,325

226,341
140,578

6,616
797.436

484
8,874
4.789

37.248.999

37.248.999

1,453.842
2,792,837

658,956
892,112

62.053
673,708

17,630,050
9,978,945
1.095,578

248.736

42.241,496 .35.467.617.

1.146i090
1.286

1.147.356

36.634.973

614.026

6.683,009

$ 7.297.035
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TPI^.nHNTY COMMUNITY ACTI3N PROGRAM. IMC AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIOATEO STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets (6
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
. Gain on disposal of property

-  Decrease (increase) in assets:
Accounts receivable
Pledges receivat>le
Inventories .

'  Prepaid expenses
Increase (deaease) in liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued salaries

Accrued expenses
Refun^le advances
Other liabilities ■ -

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of property
Purchases of property and equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment on long-tenn debt
Repayment on capital lease obligations

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION:

Cash paid during the year for:

Interesl

2023

$  571.405

2022

%  614,026

528.649 520.221

(6.817) (8,874)

(217.272) (190.025)
(23.016) 47.227

(63.650) (6.774)
(77) (85.217)

193.971 258.170

21.435 (5.565)
9.241 (301.729)

(21.643) (149,190)
(42.969) 122.089

257.056 (315.239)

1.206.513 499.110

9.091 8.874

(161.013)- ;(159.013)

(152.922) (149.139)

.(140.807) (129.^2)

(140.807)' .(129.342)

912.794 220.629

5.215.322 4.994.693

S  6.129.106 S  5.215.322

S  99.845 S  '95.695

See Notes.to Consolidated Financial Statements
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TRI-CQUMTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

NOTE1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Principles of Cohsolidation

The consolidated" finahcial statements Include the accounts of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. and its affiliate. Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
The two organizations are consolidated because Tri-County Community Action
Program. Inc. controls 100% of the'voting power of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
All significant intercompany items |and transactions have been eliminated from the
basic financial statements. Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. (the
Organization) is a New Hampshire non-profit corporation that operates a wide
variety of community sen/ice programs which are funded primarily through grants or
contracts from various federal, state, and local agencies. Cprnerstone Housing
North," Inc. (Cornerstone) is. a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation that was
incorporated under the laws of ttje State of New Hampshire for the acquisition,
construction, and operation of community-based housing for the elderly.

Nature of activities t
The Organization's programs consist of the following:

I

I

Aaencv \
..Tri-County CAP Administration provides central program management
support and oversight to the Organization's many individual programs.
This includes planning and budget development, bookkeeping and
accounting, payroll and HR s|ervices, legal and audit services, IT support,
management support, financial support and central policy development.

Tri-County CAP Adniinistration is the liaison between Tri-County
Inc.'s, Board of Directors and its programs,
)ly with agreements made by the Board to

Community Action Program,
ensuring that programs com
funding sources and vendors.

Other responsibilities include the management and allocation of funding
received through a Community Services' Block Grant, as well as
management of the Organizat on's real estate property.

Head Start

Head Start provides comprehensive services to low-income, children and
their families. Head Start supports children's growth and development in a
positive learning environment through a variety of activities as well as
providing services, which include in addition to early learning, health and
family well-being. All children
nutritious meals, oral health

receive health'and development screenings,
and mental health support. Parents and

families are supported in achieving their own goals, such as housing
stability, continued education,'and financial stability.



Tr]-CQU^TY community ACTiQN PROGRAM. IMC AND AFFILiATE.

NOTES Id CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Programs support and streng hen parent-child relationships as their child's
primary educator." Head Start staff work as partners with parents to identify
and provide individualized activities that support their child's growth and
development. j
Tri-County Community Actip^ Head Start funded'enrollment is 217, but
over the course of the program year serves approximately 250 children in
Carroll, Coos & Grafton counties in 9 locations with 13 center-based,
classrooms and 1 home-based option.

Guardianship |
The Organization's Guardianship program provides advocacy and guardian
services for the vulnerable] population of New Hampshire residents
(developmentally disabled, chronically mentally ill, traumatic brain injury,
and the elderly suffering from' Alzheimer's, dementia, and multiple medical
issues) who need a guardian and who have no family member or friend
willing, able, or suitable to serve in that capacity. This program serves over
400 individuals. Additional services include, conservatorship,
representative payee-ship, federal fiduciary services; benefit management
services and private probate accounting services.

Transportation

The Organization's transit program provides various transportatiori
sen/ices;'public bus routes, dpor-to-door service by request, long distance
medical travel to medical facilities outside our regular service area, and
special trips for the elderly to go shopping and enjoy other activities that
are located outside the regular service area. The Organization's fleet of 14
wheelchair accessible vehicles offers transportation options to the elderly
and disabled, as well as to the general public.

Voiunteer

The Coos County Retired & Senior Volunteers Program (RSVP) maintains
a minimum group of 208 volunteers, ages 55 and older, of which 50
actively served during the last reporting period. These volunteers share
their skills, life experiences,
public agencies throughout
assistance to meet the needs

over 15,000 hours yearly.

and time with over 60 local non-profit and
Coos County , that depend on volunteer
of their constituents. Our volunteers donate

10



NOTES TO CONSOLIDAT

TRUCQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM INC AND AFFILIATE

=D FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2Q23 AND 2022

CarrotI Counfv Dental

Tamworth Dental Center .(the Center) offers state of the art quality oral
healthcare to uninsured families and individuals; The Center offers a full

array of services including pfjeventative, restorative, and oral surgery. The
Center accepts most dental insurances, state insurances, and offers a
sliding fee scale based on income ratio to federal poverty guidelines. The
school-based project of the c|enter has undergone modifications necessary
due to the pandemic. 9 outreach schools virithin the vicinity of the Center
will be made. Education, treatments, and referrals will be made available.

Homeless

Homeless services include afp outreach intervention and prevention project
that strives to prevent individuals and families from becoming homeless,
and assists the already homeless in securing safe, affordable housing. The
Organization provides temporary shelter space for homeless clients.

I  I

The Organization also provides some housing rehabilitation services to
help preserve older housing stock.

Energy Assistance and Outreach

Energy Assistance Sen/ices 'provide fuel and electric assistance through
direct pay to vendors or a discount on the client's bill. Community Contact
sites allow local participants
other emergency services.
Organization's clients about

access to energy assistance programs and
The offices provide information to the

other programs offered, as well as other
programs-available through other organizations in the community.

LoW'Income \^eatherlzatlon

The NH weatherization program helps low-income families, elderly,
disabled, small children and| individuals lower their home energy costs;
increase their health, safety, and comfort; and improve the quality of living
while improving housing stock In communities around the state utilizing
energy cost saving, health an'd safety and carbon towering measures. The
NH Weatherization Assistance Program also creates local NH jobs.

Elder

The Organization's elder program provides senior meals in 4 community
dining sites, home delivered
homebound elderly, and

meals (Meals on Wheels) to the frail and
senior nutrition education and related

programming. The Coos County ServiceLink Aging & Disability Resource
Center assists with person-centered counseling. Medicare counseling,
Medicaid assistance, long-tenn care counseling services, and caregiver
supports.

11



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Housing Services

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. (Cornerstone) is subject to a Project
Rental Assistance Contract (PRAC) with the United States Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD), and a significant portion of their
rental income is received from HUD.

Cornerstone includes a 12-unit apartment complex in Berlin," New
Hampshire for the elderly. This operates under Section 202 of the National
Housing Act and is regulate'd by HUD with respect to the rental charges
and operating methods.

Cornerstone has a Sectiori 202 Capital Advance. Under guldeliries
established by the U.S. Office of Management and .Budget Uniform
Guidance, Title 2 U.S. Cohe of Federal Regulations (CFR) part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, the Section 202 Capital Advance is
considered to be a major program: A separate audit is performed as it
relates to Cornerstone's compliance with its major federal program in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of Arherica; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United-Stales and the audit requirements of Title 2 of U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations part 200, Ur^iform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles and Audit Requirements of Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
An unmodified opinion was issued.

Method of accounting

The consolidated financial statenients of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. and affiliate have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, as promulgated by thej Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC). Under.this basis, revenue, other than
contributions, and expenses are reported when incurred without regard to the date
of receipt or payment of cash.

Basis of presentation

The finaricial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require the
Organization to report information regarding its financial position and activities
according to the following net asse classifications:

12



TRI-nnUNTY CQMMUMITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC: AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Net assets without donor restrictions Include net assets that are not
subject to any donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for
any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the Organization.
These net assets may be used at the discretion of the .Organization's
management and board of directors.

I

Net assets with donor rJstrlctions include net assets subject to
stipulations Imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions
are temporary In nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the
Organization or by passage of time. Other donor restrictions are
perpetual In nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be
maintained in perpetuity.

The Organization has net assets with donor restrictions of $290,795 and $259,698
at June 30. 2023 and 2022. respectively. See Note 13.

Contributions

Contributions received are recorded as net assets withput donor restrictions or net
assets with donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any
donor-imposed restrictions. Support that Is restricted Is reported as an increase in
net assets without donor restrictions if the restriction expires In the reporting period
in which the contribution is recogriized. All other donor restricted contributions are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the
restriction. When a restriction expires (that is. when a stipulated time restriction
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets vrith donor restrictions are
reclasslfied to net assets without donor restrictions and reported In the statement of
activities as net assets released frpm restrictions.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at 'the amount management expects, to collect from
balances.outstanding at year-end; Most of the receivables are amounts due from
federal and state awarding agencies and are based on reimbursement for
expenditures made under specific grants or contracts. Past due receivables are
written off at management's discretion using the direct write off method; this Is not
considered a departure from accounting principles generally accepted in the United
State because the effects of the direct write off method approximate those of the
allowance method. Management selects accounts to be written off after analyzing
past payment history, the age of the accounts receivable, and collection rates for
receivables with similar characteristics, such as length of time outstanding. The
Organization does not charge interest on outstanding accounts receivable.

13



TRI-nniiNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROBRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Property and Depreciation ^
Acquisitions of buildings, equipment, and im^provements in excess of $5,000 and all
expenditures for repairs, maintenance, and betterments that materially prolong the
useful lives of assets-are capitalized. Buildings, equipment, and improvements are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.

Depreciation expense related to assets used solely by an individual program is
charged directly to the related program. Depreciation expense for assets used by
more than one program is charged
other similar allocation.

to the program based upon a square footage or

Depreciation expense related to administrative assets is included in the indirect cost
pool and "charged to the programs in accordance, with the indirect cost plan.
Maintenance and repairs that do not materially prolong the useful lives of assets are
charged to expense as incurred.

Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings and improvements
Vehicles

Furniture and equipment

Client Rents and HUD Rent Subs
Cornerstone Housing North,. Ihc.'s
Department of Housing and Urban

20 to 40 years
5 to 8.5 years
5 to 15 years

rents are approved on an annual basis by the
Development. Rental increases are prohibited

without such approval. The clients are charged rent equal to 30% of their income
less adjustments allowed by the D|epartment of Housing and Urban Development
Rent subsidies are received from the Department of Housing and Urban
Development for the difference
received from the clients.

jetween the allowed rents and the amounts

Refundable Advances

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized
as revenue in the period in wHich the related services or expenditures are
performed or incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met
aggregated $403,239 and $446,208 as of June 30.'2023 and 2022. respectively.

.14



TRI.CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFIUATE
!

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Nonprofit tax status

The Organization is a not-for-profit, Section 501(c)(3) organization in accordance
with the Internal Revenue Code. It has been classified as an organization that is not
a private foundation under the Internal Revenue Code and qualifies for a charitable
contribution deduction for donors.' The Organization files information returns in the
United States. The Organization's Federal Form 990 (Return of Organization
Exempt from Income Tax), is subject to examination by the IRS. generally for three
years after it is filed.'

The Organization follows FASB ASC 740, Accounting for Income Texes, which
clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition and
measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.
Management does not believe they have taken uncertain tax positions, therefore, a
liability for income taxes associated with uncertain tax positions has not been
recognized.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc is exempt from Income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Internal Revenue Service has
determined the Organization to
meaning of Section 509(a).

be other than a private foundation within the

Retirement plan

The Organization maintains a tax-sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. All employees are eligible to
contribute to the plan beginning on the date they are employed. Each employee
may elect salary reduction "agreement contributions in accordance with limits
allowed in the Intemal Revenue Code. Employer contributions are at the
Organization's annual discretion. In January 2013, employer contribution payments
ceased, therefore as of June 30, 2023 and- 2022, there were no discretionary
contributions recorded. Further information can be obtained from the Organization's
403(b) audited financial statements.

Donated services and goods

Contributions of donated sen/ices that create or enhance non-financial assets or

that require specialized skills and would typically -need to be purchased if not
provided by donation are recorded at their fair values in the period received^

Contributed noncash assets are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. If

donors, stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded
as net assets with donor restrjctions. In the absence of such stipulations,
contributions of noncash assets are recorded as net assets without donor

restrictions. '

15



TRl^OUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Donated property and equipment

Donations of property and equipment are recorded as support at their estimated fair
value at the date of donation. Such donations are reported as net assets without
donor restrictions unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific
purpose. Assets donated with | explicit restrictions regarding their use and
contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are
reported as net assets.with donor
how long those donated assets

restrictions. Absent donor stipulations regarding
must be maintained, the Organization reports

expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in
service as instructed by the donor. The Organization reclassifies net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions at that time.

Promises to Give

Conditional promises to give are not recognized in the financial statements until the
conditions are substantially met. Unconditional promises to give that are expected
to be collected within one year are recorded at the net realizable value.
Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one
year are recorded at fair value, which is measured as the present value of their
future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are computed using risk-
adjusted interest rates applicable to the years in which the promises are received.
Amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue. In the absence of

donor stipulations to the contrary, promises with payments due in future periods are
restricted to use after the due date. Promises that remain uncollected more than

one year after their due dates are written- off unless the donors indicate that
payment is'merely postponed. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions. There were no

unconditional promises to give tha
year at June 30, 2023 and 2022.

are expected to be collected in more than one

As of June 30. 2023 and 2022, there were promises to give that were absent of
donor stipulations, but restricted in regards to timing, and therefore classified as net
assets with donor restrictions in the. amount of $192,212 and $169,196,
respectively. This amount
Statement of Activities.

IS

in

included in contributions in the Consolidated

Use of estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amourits of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.



NOTES TO CONSOLIDAT

PRQGRAIVI. INC. AND AFFILIATE.

ED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Falf Value of Financial Instruments

Accounting Standards. Codification No. 825 (ASC 825), Disclosures of Fair Value of
Financial Instruments, requires the Organization to disclose fair values of its-
financial instruments. The carrying amount of the Organization's firiancial
instruments which consists of cash, accounts receivable, deposits and accounts
payable, approximate fair value
Instruments.

because of the short-term maturity of those

Functional allocation of expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis in the statemerit of activities. Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated arnong the program services and supporting activities
benefited.

Program- salaries and related expenses are allocated to. the
various programs and supporting services based on actual or
estirhated time employees
timesheet.

spend on each function as reported on a

Workers Compensation expenses are charged to each program
based upon the classification of each employee and allocated to the
various program based upon the time employees spend on each
function as noted above. |

Paid Leave is charged to a leave pool and is allocated to each
program as a percentage of total salaries.

Fringe Benefits are charged to. a Fringe Benefit Pool. These
expenses include employer payroll taxes, pension expenses, health
and dental insurance and unemployment compensation. The pool is
allocated to each program based upon a percentage of salaries.

Depreciation expense is allocated to each program based upon
specific assets used by the program and is reported as depreciation
expense on the statements of functional expenses.

Other occupancy expenses are applicable to assets which are
used by multiple programs. Buildings are primarily charged to the
benefiting program based upon an analysis of square footage. Costs
related to a building include depreciation, insurance, utilities, building
maintenance, etc. These costs are reported as space costs on the
statements of functional expenses.

17



PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Insurance: automobile Insurance is allocated to programs based on
vehicle usage; building iiabiiity insurance is allocated to programs
based on square footage of the buildings; and Insurance for furniture
and equipment Is allocated

. insured assets.

to programs using the book basis of the

The remaining shared expenses are charged to an Indirect Cost
Pool and are allocated to each program based upon a percentage of
program expenses. The| expenses include items such as
administrative salaries, general liability insurance, administrative
travel, professional fees, jand other expenses \which cannot be
specifically identified and charged to a program.'

The Organization submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits and other indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services. The proposal, effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2022, received
provisional approval and is effective, until amended, at a rate of 12%. The actual
rates for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 were approximately 11.26% and
10.95%, respectively, which is allowable because it is less than the provisional rate.

AdvertlsinQ policy

The Organization uses advertising to inform the corhmunily about the programs it
offers and the availability of sen/ices. Advertising is expensed as incurred. The total
cost of advertising for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 was $20,143 and
$6,696, respectively.

Debt Issuance Costs

During the year ended June 30. 2019, the Organization retrospectively adopted the
provisions of the FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2015-03,
'Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs' The ASU is limited to
simplifying the presentation of debt issuance costs, and the recognition and
measurement guidance for debt|issuance costs is not ,affected by the ASU.
Amortization expense of $887 has been included with interest expense in the
consolidated statements of functional expenses for both 2023 and 2022.

>

Revenue Recognition Policy

The Organization derives revenue primarily from' grahts, contracts, and
contributions. Grants are recognized as revenue upon receipt. Revenue from
contracts is recognized when the |service has been performed. Contributions are
recognized as revenue when the donor makes a pledge to give that is, in
substance, an unconditional promise. Contributions are recorded as with donor
restrictions or without donor restrictions.

18



TRI-COUNTY PROGRAM. tNC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Cornerstone derives revenues from the rental of apartment units. Revenues are
recognized as income, monthly, when rents become due and control of the apartment
unit is transferred to the lessees. The Individual leases are for a term of one year and
are'cancelable by the tenants. Control of the leased units is transferred to the lessee
in an amount that reflects the consideration Cornerstone expects to be entitled to |n
exchange for the leased units. The cost incurred to obtain a lease will be expensed
as incurred.

New Accounting Pronouncement

In February 2016, the Financial| Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued
Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-02, Leases {Topic 842), to increase
transparency and comparability arhong organizations by recognizing tease assets
and lease liabilities on the statesmen! of financial position and disclosing key
information about leasing arrangements for lessees and lessors. The standard
applies a right of use model that requires, all leases with a lease term of more than
12 months, to recognize an asset ijepresenting its right to use the underlying asset
for the lease term and liability to make lease payments to be recorded. The
Organization elected not to restate the comparative period. The Organization also
elected not to reassess at adoption (i) expired or existing contracts to determine
whether they are or'contain a lease, (ii) the lease classification of-any existing
leases, (iii) initial direct costs for existing leases. The adoption of ASU 2016-02
resulted in the recognition of an operating right of use assets of $208,857 and
operating lease liabilities of $208,'857 as.of June 30, 2023. Results for periods
beginning prior to July 1. 2022 continue to be reported in accordance with the
Organization's historical accounting treatment. The adoption of ASU 2016-02 did
not have a material impact on the Organization's results of operations and cash
flows.

NOTE 2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The following represents the Organization's financial assets as of June 30, 2023
and 2022:

Financial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents, undesignated
Restricted cash, Guardianship Sen/ices Program
Accounts receivable

Pledges receivable
Restricted cash

, Total financial assets
Less amoimts not available to be used

within one year: j
Net assets with donor restrictions

2023

4.400.730
1,313,655

2,024,546
192,212

413.721

8.344.864

290,795

2022

3,827,664

977,227
1,807,274

.  169,196
410.431

7.191.792

259,698
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Restricted cash. Guardianship Services Program
Restricted cash

Less net assets with time restrictions to be
met in less than a year

Amounts not available within one year

I  '
Financial assets available to meet general

expenditures over the next twelve months

1,313.655
413.721

f254.537)

1 ■783.634

S  6581.230

977.227
410,431

1207.8791

1;439.477

It is the Organization's goal to maintain fi nancial assets to meet 60 days of-
operating expenses which approximates $6,982,000 and $5,899,000 at June 30.
2023 and 2022, respectively. '

NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
of cash on hand, funds on deposit with financial
original maturities of three months or less. At

year, the Organization's Cash balances were
Institutions. The balances are insured by the

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) for each financial institution up to
$250,000. Cash balances may exceed the insured limits at times throughout the
year.

Cash and cash equivalents consis
institutions, and investments with
year end and throughout the
deposited with multiple financial

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and restricted cash reported
within the statements of financial position that sum to the total in the statements of
cash flows as of June 30;

2023 2022

Cash, operations
Restricted cash, current
Restricted cash, long term

Total cash and restricted cash

$ 4,400,730
1,313.655

413.721

$ 3,827,664
.  977.227

410.431

^  6 128 106 '$ 5215.322

Cash Restrictions
The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with a bank as part of
the loan security agreement disclosed at Note 7. It is required to maintain a
balance .of $19,968 in the accourit, which is restricted from withdrawal except to
make payments of debt service or as approved by- the U.S. Department of

; Agriculture.
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TRi-COUNTY COWIMUNITY ACTI ON PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDAT =D FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Amounts withdrawn to make payments of debt service must be replenished with
monthly deposits until the maximum required deposit balance is achieved. The
balance as of June 30, 2023 ancl 2022 was $20,079 and $20,069, respectively.
The Organization has made all of their scheduled deposits for the years ended
June 30, 2023 and 2022. These amounts are included in restricted cash in the
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with another bank as
part of a'bond issue (see bond payable in Note 7). The required balance in the
account is $173,817 and is equal to 12 monthly payments. The balance as of June
30, 2023 and 2022 was $174,841 and $174,807, respectively, and the Organization
was in compliance with this requirement. These amounts are included in restricted
cash in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization'maintains a deposit account on behalf of clients who participate in
the Guardianship Services Program. The balance in the account is restricted for
use on behalf of these clients and| an offsettirig liability is reported on the financial
staterhents as other current liabilities. The. total current liability related to this
restriction at June 30, 2023 and 2022 was $1,313,655 and $977,227, respectively.
These amounts are included in other liabilities on the Statements of Financial
Position. The total restricted cash! within .this account at June 30. 2023. and 2022
was $1,313,655 and $977,227, respectively, and is included in the restricted cash,
Guardianship Services Program balance on the Consolidated Statements of
Financial Position.

Certain cash accounts, related to Cjornerstone Housing North, Inc. are restricted for
certain uses in the Organization ^under rules and regulations prescribed by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. .The total amount restricted at
June 30, 2023 and 2022 was $216,'801 and $215,555, respectively. See Note 15.

NOTE 4. INVENTORY

In 2023 and 2022, inventory included weatherization materials which had been
purchased in bulk. These items are valued at the most recent cost. A physical
Inventory is taken annually. C6st|is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method.' Inventory at June 30, 2023 and 2022 consists of weatherization materials,
totaling $123,409 and $59,759. respectively.
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TRI-CnUNTY COMMUNITY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDE

NOTE 5. PROPERTY

Property consists of ttie following al June 30, 2023:

DJUNE 30. 2Q23 AND 2022

Building
Equipment
Construction in progress
Land

Property consists of the following a

Building
Equipment
Construction in progress
Land

The Organization has use of com_ _ i

Capitalized
Cost

$ 10,119,418
2.278.559

42,114

418.840

^ 12-858 931 '

June 30. 2022:

Capitalized
Cost

$ 10,039,601
2,329,022

6.688
418.840

i 1^,7911.^.1.

Accumulated

Depreciation

$  4.630.469

1,892.030

Net

Book Value

$ 5,488.949
386.529
42,114

418.840

S 6.522.499 $ 6 336.432

Accumulated

Depreciation

$ 4..426,613
'  1,661,996

Net

Book Value

$  5,612,988
. 667,026

6,688
418.840

fi 70S 542

puters and equipment which are the property of
state and federal agencies under granit agreements. The equipment, whose book
value is immaterial to the financial statements, is not included in the Organization's
property and equipment totals.

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 totaled
$527,962 and $519,334, respectively.

NOTE 6. ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES

For the years'ending June 30, 2023 and 2022, employees of the Organization were
eligible to accrue vacation for a rhaximum of 160 hours. At June 30. 2023 and
2022, the Organization had accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its
employees had earned and vested in the amount of $249,777 and $228;342,
respectively.
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NOTE 7.

TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACT!ON PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDAT

FOR THE YEARS ENDE

ED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -

D JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt of the Organization as of June 30.* 2023 and 2022 consisted of
the following;

Note payable with the USDA requiring 360
monthly Installments of $1,664, including interest
at 5% per annum. Secured by general business
assets. Final installment due January 2027.

Note payable with a bank requiring 120 monthly
installments of $2,936, including interest at 4%
per annum. Secured by first mortgages on two
commercial properties. Final instal
2031.

ment due April

Bond payable with a bank requiring monthly
installments of $14,485, including interest of
2.75% plus the bank's internal !cost of funds
multiplied by 67% with an indicative rate of
3.28%. Secured by first commercial real estate
mortgage on various properties and assignments
of rents at various properties. Final installment
due August 2040.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. capital advance
due to the U.S. Department of| Housing and
Urban Development. This capital advance is not
subject to interest or principal amortization and
will be forgiven after 40 years, or-in August 2047.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. mortgage
payable due to New Hampshire Housing Finance
Authority. The mortgage is not subject to interest
or principal amortization. Payments are deferred
for 40 years; final payment due in August 2047.

Total long term debt before una,mortized debt
issuance costs

Unamortized debt issuance costs

Total long term debt
Less current portion due within one year

2023

$  64,236 $

2022

80,546

236,057 261.160

2,276,888 2,377,169

1,617,600 1,617,600

250.000 250.000

4,444,781 4,586,475
f8.2701 .(9.157)

4.436,511 4,577,318
(139.9611 (134.452)

4.442 866
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TRNCQUNTV COMMUNITY ACT!ON PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

The scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of June 30, 2023 were as follows:

Years ending
June 30

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028

Thereafter

Amount

$  139,961
145.697'
151,677
148,113

143.453
3.715.880

£ 4444.781

As described at Note 3, the Organization is required to maintain a reserve account
with a bank for the first two notes p'ayable listed above.

NOTE 9. DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE

The Organization has available a |$750,000 line of credit with its primary financial
institution which is secured by real estate mortgages and assignments of leases
and rents on various properties jas disclosed in the line of credit agreement.
Borrowings under the line bear interest for the years ended June 30, 2023 and
2022 at 9.25% and 5.75% per j annum, respectively. There was no balance
outstanding at June 30, 2023 and 2022. The line is subject to renewal each
January.

NOTE 10. OPERATING LEASES

On July 1, 2022, the Organizatiori was required to adopt ASU 2016-02, Leases
fTopic 842). As part of implementing ASlJ 2016-02, the Organization evaluated
current contracts to determine which met the criteria of a lease. The right of use
(ROU) asset represents the Organization's right to use underlying assets for the
lease term, and the lease liabilities] represent the Organization's obligation to make-
lease payments arising from these leases. The ROU assets and lease liabilities, all
of which arise from operating leases, were calculated based on the present value of.
future lease payments over the lease terms. The Organization has elected to
discount future cash flows at the risk-free borrowing rates commensurate with the
lease terms, which was 3.01% at June 30. 2023. Common expenses, classified as
spiace costs in the accompanying financial statements, are considered a non-lease
component under FASB ASC 842 and are recognized as costs are incurred. The
Organization's operating leases are described below.
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TRUCQUMTY COMMUMITV ACTION PROGRAM. tNC. AND AFFlLlATg

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

The Organization has entered in
office equipment. Leases under

0 numerous lease commitments for space and
non-cancelable lease agreements have various

starting dates, lengths, and terms of payment and renewal. Additionally, the
Organization has several facilities which are leased on. a month-to-month basis.
For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the annual rent expense for leased
facilities and office equipment totaled $147,801 and $141,820, respectively.

Lease liability maturities as of June 30,2023 are as follows;

Year Ending
June 30:

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028

Total undiscounted lease

Less imputed interest

Total lease liability

lability

Amount

$  91.317

59.685

52,460
'  11,372

3.543

218,377

f9-5201

S  208 657

NOTE 11. IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS

The Organization records the value of in-kind contributions according to the
accounting policy described in Note 1. The Head Start, Transportation and Elder
programs rely heavily on volunteers who donate their services" to the Organization.
These services are valued based

paid positions.
upon the comparative market wage for similar

The fair value" of donated services included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2023 are as follows:

Senior

Head Start Meats Total
Professional services and

services for disabled

Packing, setup and delivery of
congregate and home
delivered meals

$  76,770 $

102.077

$  76.770

102.077

7e.770: S 1Q2Q77 $ 178847
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TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDA

ON PROGRAM. INC AND AFFILIATE

ED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDEDJUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

The fair value of donated services included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2022 are as follows;

Professional services and

services for disabled

Packing, setup and delivery of
congregate and home
delivered meals

Head Start

Senior

Meals Total

2,479 $

55.359

2.479

55.359

1 2m ^ 55.359 ? §7.838

Numerous volunteers have donated significant amounts of time to the
Organization's program sen/ices. |Although no amounts have been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements, management estimates the fair value of those
services to be approximately $367,930 and $277,300 for the years ended June 30,
2023 and 2022, respectively.

The Organization is also the beneficiary of a donation of in kind in the form of below
market rent for some of the facilities utilized by the Head Start and Elder programs.
The- value of the in-kind rent is' recorded at the difference between the rentalpayment and the market rate for t|e property based upon a recent appraisal.
The fair value of donated facilities included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corr^ponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30. 2023 are as follows:

Senior

Head Start Meals Total.

Difference between rent paid
and market rate ^  69097 4.1QP i 7.3.1g7

The fair value of donated facilities included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2022 are as follows:

Senior

Head Start Meals Total

Difference between rent paid
and market rate ^  58-230 S 18QQ J StLflM
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDAT

3N PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

ED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

The fair value of other gifts in kind included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for.the year ended.
June 30, 2023 are as follows:

Head Start Homeless Transportation Total

Employee use of
home " $

Donated goods
Hotel rooms for

homeless clients

73,495 $ $
24.948

128;764

.73,495
24,948

128.764

Total ^  73.495 i  Z±m. S 2272Q7

The fair value of-cther gifts in kirjid included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2022 are as follows:

Head Start Homeless

Employee use of home
Donated goods
Hotel rooms for homeless clients

Total

56.789 $ $
1.400

52.284

56.789

1.400
52.284,

"i gsi&a f 11Q473

NOTE 12. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The Organization receives a majority of its support from federal' and state
governments. For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, approxirfiately
$39,381,299 (89%) and $32,598,5^ (88%), respectively, of the Organization's total
revenue was received from federal and state governments. If a significant
reduction in the level of support were to occur, it would have a sighificant impact on
the Organization's programs and activities.

Cornerstone receives a large majority of its support from the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development. | For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022,
approximately 61% and 64%, respectively, of Cornerstone's total revenue was
derived from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. In the
absence , of additional revenue sources, the future existence of Cornerstone
Housing North, Inc. is dependent u
of Housing and Urban Developmen

oon the funding policies of the U.S. Department
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TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

The majority of Cornerstone's assets are apartment projects, for wtiich operations
are concentrated in the elderly | person's real estate market. In addition.
Cornerstone operates in a regulated environment. The operation of Cornerstone is
subject to administrative directives, rules and regulations of federal, state and local
regulatory agencies, including, but not limited to. HUD. Such administrative
directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an act of Congress or an
administrative change mandated ty HUD. Such changes may occur with little
notice or inadequate funding to pay for the related cost, including the administrative
burden, to comply with the change.

note 13. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
'  Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following specific program

sen/ices as of June 30. 2023 and 2022;

Temporary municipal funding
Restricted buildings
Loans - HSGP

RSVP program funds
FAP/EAP

CC Coos

Head Start

CC Carroll

CC Grafton

LIWAP Program
RSVP - Matter to Balance

Total net assets with donor restrictions

2023 2022

NOTE 14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGE

$ 192,212 $ . 169,196
36,257 38,084

23,484 24.234

15.708 6.255

14.092 12,079

5,099 6,132

3,577 2,370

180 427

180 421

6 -

. 500

290.795 259.698

SJCIES

Grant ComoUance

The Organization receives funds under several federal and state grants. Under the
terrns of the grants the Organization is required to comply with various stipulations
including use and time restrictions. If the Organization was found to be
noncompliant with the provisions ojf the grant agreements, the Organization could
be liable to the grantor or face discontinuation of funding.

Bnvironmentat Contingencies

On March 30. 2009. the Organization's Board pf Directors agreed to secure
ownership of a 1.2-acre site located in Berlin; New Hampshire. There are 2
buildings on this site designated as the East Wing and West Wing Buildings which
were formerly used as.a researcli and development facility for the Berlin Mills
Company. j
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TRl-nnUMTY COMMUNITY ACTIC N PROGRAM. INC AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

The exterior soil and interior parts of the East Wing Building contained
contaminants which required environmental remediation. In a letter dated May 2,
2012, the State of New Hampshire Department of Environment Services (the
Department) noted that the remedial actions for the exterior soils and parts of the
East Wing Building had been completed to the Department's satisfaction.

In addition, the Department noted ,that the contaminants related to the West Wing
Building did not pose an exposure hazard to site occupants, area residents, and the
environment, provided the West Wing Building is maintained to prevent further
structural deterioration. If furthei; deterioration occurs and contaminants • are
released into the environment, the Organization could be required to take additional
aiction including containment and remediation.

Loss Contingencies

During the year ended June 30. 2023 and subsequently, legal actions were brought
against the Organization. Due to the uncertainty of the outcome of such cases as
of June 30. 2023. as well as the uncertainty of the Organization's potential liability,
no amount has been accrued by the Organization at this time.

note 15. REPLACEMENT RESERVE AND RESIDUAL RECEIPTS ACCOUNTS
Under Cornerstone's regulatory agreement with HUD, the Organization is required
to set aside amounts into a replacement reserve for the replacement of property
and other project expenditures approved by HUD. HUD-restricted deposits of
$207,956 and $208,162 were held
2022, respectively.

in a segregated account at June 30, 2023 and

During the year ended June 30. 20231 HUD approved a loan from the replacement
reserve account to the operating account to cover operating expenses due to the
delay in HAP vouchers being processed by HUD. Once all HAP vouchers are
processed and paid. Cornerstone will pay back the replacement reserve account the
loan balance of $26,649. HUD-restricted deposits generally are not available for
operating purposes.

Cornerstone's use of the residual receipts account is contingent upon HUD's prior
written approval. Residual receipts |of $6,454 and $3,003 were held in a segregated
accpunt for the years ended June 30.2023 and 2022, respectively.

Under the regulatory agreement. Co'rnerstone is required to set aside amounts for the
return of resident paid deposits. At June 30. 2023 and 2022 $4,391 and $4,390,
respectively, were held in a segregated account and generally are not available for
operating purposes.
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TRI.CQUNTY CQMMIJMITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

HUD has initiated policies to recapture funds built up in residual receipts accounts
upon renewal of Cornerstone's project rental assistance contract. The policies
direct that the amounts in excess of certain limits in the residual receipts account be
(a) used to offset rent subsidies due from HUD under HAP contracts, or (b) remitted
directly to HUD. The policies generally require project owners to limit the monies
accumulated in the residual receipts account to $250 per unit.

In accordance with the policy noted above. Cornerstone was required to remit funds
to HUD totaling $71,396 during the year ended June 30. 2022.

NOTE 16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The Organization has evaluated events through November 13, 2023, which is the
date that the financial statements were available to be issued.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLI>|VNCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED
ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVBRNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

We -have audited. In accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States , the financial
statements of Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30. 2023 and
2022, and the related statements of functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then
ended, the related statement of activities for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related
notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 13,
2023.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as
a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the|financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness'of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.'s.intemal control.

I

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal bourse of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, |in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was

paragraph of this section and was not desic
for the limited purpose described in the first
ned to identify all deficiencies in internal control

that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Oiven these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any.deficiencies in intemal control that we consider to be material

^ weaknesses. However, material weaknesses

identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

or significant deficiencies may-exist that were not

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc.'s financial statements are free|from material misstatement, we performed tests
of Its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.
However, providing an opinion on compliance|with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our .tests disclosed
no Instances of noncompliance or other rnatters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the organization's internal cohtrol or on compliance. This report Is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards in considering the
-organization's Internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

North Conway, New Hampshire
November 13, 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH

MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.'s compliance with the types of
compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the 0MB Compliance Supplement
that could have a direct and material effect on each of Tri-County Community Action Program.
Inc.'s major federal programs for the year erided June 30. 2023. Tri-County Community Action
Program. Inc.'s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. complied, in all material respects,
with the types of compliance requirements' referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance iiji accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200.
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles; and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform
Guidance are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report.
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Wo sro rsquirsd to bs indspondGnt of Tri-County Community Action Program, inc. and to moot
our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to
our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained js sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion on corhpliancej-for each major federal program. Our audit does
not provide a legal determination of Tri-County Community Action Prograrh, Inc. s compliancewith the compliance requirements referred to apve.
Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations,| rules, and provisions of contracts or grant
agreements applicable to Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. s federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibiiities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompltance with
the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and
express an opinion on Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.'s compliance based on our
audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards. Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always
detect material noncompliance when it exists, pie risk of not detecting material noncompliance
resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Noncornpliance with the compliance requirernents. referred to above is considered material ff
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about Tri-County Community
Action Program, Inc.'s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a
whole. I

I

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Government
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. I

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance. whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures,
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Tri-County Community Action
Program. Inc.'s compliance with the compliance requirements, referred to above and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

• Obtain an understanding of Tri-Courity Community Action Program. Inc.'s internal
control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances 'and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance. iDut not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc.'s internal control over compliance. Xccordingly, no such opinion is expressed. ■
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We are required to cpmmunicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of|the audit and any significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance'requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a | timely basis. A significant deficiency in intemal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in internal control

attention by those charged with governance.
over compliance, yet important enough to merit

Our consideration of internal control over cornpliance was for the limited purpose described in
the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed
to identify all deficiencies In internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in Internal control over compliance. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not idientify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were
not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness ofinternal control over compliance. Accordingly.jno such opinion Is expressed.
The purpose of this report on Internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

^'yicr>9^'vy>-eM- i

North Conway, New Hampshire
November 13. 2023



PROGRAM. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2023

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of Tri-
County Community Action Program, Inc.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in
the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and other Matters Based on en Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

3. No instances of noncompliance matierial to the financial statements of Tri-County
' Community Action Program, Inc. whicri would be required to be reported in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No slgr^ificant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs during
the audit are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each
Major Program and on Internal Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform
Guidance.

5. The auditors' report oh compliance for the major federal award programs for Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major
programs.

6. No audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)
are reported in this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as major programs included:

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. Emergency Solutions
Grant Program-ALN 14.231

U.S. Department of the Treasury, Emergency Rental Assistance Program - ALN
21.023

U.S. Department of the Treasury, Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery
Funds-ALN 21.027

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and 6 programs was $1,125,160.

9. Tri-County Community Action Program Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS • FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None .
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KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for.meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions not re(iulrecl for vacant positions.

Til'County Community Action Program, Inc,Contractor Name:

NAME JOB TITLE •

ANNUAL

AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

ANNUAL

SALARY

Jeanne Robillard Chief Executive Officer $0.00 $132,000.00

Randall Pilotte Chief Financial 'Officer $0.00 $96,239.78

Srenda Gagne Chief Program Officer $0.00 $84,159.92

Scott Boisvert Department Head $0.00 $65,000.00

Michelle Sanchagrin Program Director > $25,000.00 $50,000.00

1

!



Jeanne L. Robillard

fOHE CTHEIVCTMS

Ptogram dcvclopnwnt, management and adminisuadon* ♦ Community collaboradons
Development of policy, protocol, and service delivery to meet fuoder standards

Grant wfiring and management ♦ Budget performance and financial reporting
Innovadve solutions 6t problem solving • Capaciry building

Professional prescntadons ♦ Public speaking
Detlicadon' • Imaginadon ♦ Determinadon ♦ Fortitude

PHOFESSIOIVAI. KXPERIENCE

TrivCooniy CommmaiSy Aclion Programs* Inc.
Chief Execafive Officer |
Berlin* IVll 20i6 • current FT ̂mptoymctU

Tri-Coonly Coounani<y Aclioii-Programs, loc.

Chief Operating Ollicer
Derlsja, NH 20IG-20I8

Responsible for the operations of six agency Divisions with 15 individual programs that provide over
60 consumer services across three counties of Northern New Hampshire. Essential duties include;
supervision of Division Direaors, oversee and monitor program tcsoutccs, revenues, expenditures
and budget performance; tacdcal oversight of programs to meet or exceed agency defined strategic
goals; develop and implement strategies to imptpve individual programs and overall agency program
and fiscal performance; oversee and lead special' ptojccts such as the Annual Rcpon, Strategic Plan,
Commuruty Needs Assessment process, and work with Sctdor Management Team to develop new
service initiatives. Provide tactical guidance to Division Ditcctocs to trouble shoot issues and problems
in-the daily operations of programs.

Tri-Connlj CommaoiST Acilon Programs. Inc.,
Division Director: TCCAP l^revention Services
Dcrlin. Nil 2015-2010 |
Responsible for four agenc)' programs under the umbrella of TCCAP Prevention Services; oversee
diinsion resources, revenues, and expenditures and monitor budget performance; general oversight of
programs to meet or exceed agency defined strategic goals; supervise program directors; write grants
to suppcn programs, monitor results, and prepare grant reports and financial statements for fundcrs
and agency; develop fundraising and marketing strategies for programs; represent program through
pacricipation in state and local initiatives relative] to program/division goals and service dcHvc^;
collaborate with stakeholdcts and elected officials, including presenting legislative testimony.

Tri-CounCy Commonity Actioo Program*. Inc.
Program/Division Director: Soppori Cenler at Borch Dooae
Liltleion, New Hompsliire 3007-30I5 |
Oversee daily operation and supervision of domestic and sexual violence crisis center and residential
shelter; write grants to support programs, monitor results, and prepare grant reports and financial
statements for fundcrs and parent agency; oversee program resources, revenues and expenditures, and
monitor budget performance and progress toward strategic goals; create and direct vicrim advocacy
programs to ensure compliance with grant deliverables and applicable state and federal law; develop
fundraising and marketing strategies: participatejin state and local collaborations to enhance victim,
services; represent program'in state and federal victim service initiatives, including prcscnution of
legislative testimony, create and present irainlngs for medical and legal professionals on legal standards
and best practices for victim services.



JL Robillard • 2

Dookkeepcr: Women** RarnI Cntrrprc'neariol t\c<wcrk ̂ WREiV^
Dclhlehem, I\'H rarrenl PT cmploymenl |
Responsible for grant fiscal cracking, reporting, funds release and account transfers, bi-weckiy payroll
and 941 payments, accounts payable and receivable, month end rcconciiiation^for bank accounts,
credit cards, petty cash, retail and market sales; monthly POS/QB reconciliation for three retail
locadons, ptcparing monthly cash flow, forecasts, and standard fiscal reports for Board of Directors.

Tri-Couiitjr Coromanil.r Aclion Progran», Inc.
Direcl Servicca/Volimteer Coordiiao<or:{ Support Center at Rnrch 1Ioa»e
Littleton, New llonapohire . 1997 to 3007
Provide advocacy and direct service to victims of domcsdc and sexuaJ violence; supervise court
advocacy programs; recruit, train and super\'isc staff, volunteers, and interns; develop agency sj'stcms,
policies and protocols; create and present community ourtcach presentations and campaigns; present
school-based violence prevenrion classes for grades K-12 ; provide on-call covcragc of crisis line •

Director: llaverlull Area Jnveniio Divcraion Progrom
tVoodovillc, New Dampaiiirc 1099'3001
Recruit, train, and supervise volunteer diversion committees; establish community programming for
diverted youth; supportive counseling of youth;jmatntflin collabotadvc rcladonships between the court
system, juvenile service officers, local police departments, and diversion program; prepare and file
court reports on diverted youth; community outreach and educadon

Coufiocior/Tille 1 Teacher: Northern Familj Inslilale-JeCferao.n Shelter
Jefferson, New Hampshire I99G-I999

Provide individual supportive counseling to adjudicated youth, facilitate peer support groups, develop
and implement treatment plans and case management services to clients, supervise and tutor youth in
classroom setting, supervise youth in daily living skills

Edacntion

Ml.^ in Hainan ScryiceM, Springfield College School of Bmnan Serricea, Boston, MA
Criminal Jusdce Concentradon, Cradua/td with 4.0 CPA

AS in Drug and Alcohol Rehabilitation jCounscling tUAIIC Pro^am)
Southern Connortieat CommonitT College, New Haven, CT

I

Additionnl Skills, Professional'Leadership and ChyTT

♦ Chairman, Bethlehem Board of Sdectmen, Town of Bethlehem Twice Elected 2006-2010
♦ Chairman, Ans Alliance of Nonhcm New Hampshire Trrflj#/*/"
♦ Chairman, Havcrhill Area Family Violence Cound! 1998-2003

♦ Ccrdfied PRIME FOR LIFE Impaired Driver Intervention Program Instructor #NH16199
♦ Registered Sexual Harassment Prevention Trainer in tite State of New Hampshire
♦ Board Member, Women's Rural Entrepreneurial Network 2014; Individual Member 2008-2017
♦ Bethlehem Planning Board 2010 - 201
♦ Bethlehem Con.scrvadon Commission '2006 - cumnt

♦ Granirc United Way, North Country Cabinet Member 2011-2012
♦ TCCAP: Commcndadon- Division Director Award, 2011
♦ Bcihlchcni Gdzen's Advisory Committee on Recycling 2007-2010

♦ Licensed Foster Patent, State of NH 2000-2006 ,

♦ Small Business Owner: Aurora Energies 201S- eunvtl
♦ SpeakeasyTrioJaaz Vocalist/Sweet Jamm Swing Band Vocalist l997-(amn/

. ♦ Member, United Sratcs Figure Skating Alssodation/Imcrnadonal Skating Instiaicc cumntsintr 1993



Randall S . P I L 0 T T E

Summary

Accounting professional with over 29 years of experience, of which 21 years were with a single private manufacturer.
16 years of experience managing accounting professionals. Key competencies include:

Financial Statements
Payroll
Budgeting

Accounts Payables
Bank Reconciliations

Cash Flow Management

Inventory'
Accounts Receivables

Audits

Fixed Assets

Sales/Use Tax

Forecasting

GXPCRIENCE

TRl-COUNTV COMMLTNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC.. Berlb, NH 06/2013-Prescnl

CFO(2017-Present)
Work closely with the CEO, Treasurer and Finance Committee to identify performance goals for the Agency and to
maintain systems to monitor performance against those goals. Plan, direct, coordinate, implement and evaluate the
financial management systems and activities of the Agency'with a budget of $18M.

Prepare/provides complete and accurate financial, statistical, and accounting records for the Agency and outside
regulatory agencies. |
As a member of the senior management team, assists In the fonnulation and execution of corporate fmaoce
policies, objectives and programs. I
Prepares program and agency budgets in conjunction with the CEC'and Program Directors. Plan, direct,
coordinate, Implcracnl and evaluate fiscal performance reviews of Tri-County CAPs division.^.
Hire, train, direct and evaluate employee performance within the departmcrti; recommend promotions and salary
adjustments.
Provides supervision and direction for the Facilities Management Team, ensuring that all mortgages, leases and
covenants are maintained for Tri-County Cap's facilities. Creation of five-year capital plan.
Reviews cash flo\vs for each division, monitor cash management practices, and monitor investments associated
with each property.

Prepared five-year debt reduction plan.

Iscal Director/Interim CFO (2016 - 2017)

Direct and manage a fiscal staff of 5 and processes associated with the general ledger, payroll, and accounts
payable, accounts receivable, cash receipts and fixed assets.
Prepare and supervise the production of fmanciai statements including Balance Sheet, Revenue and Expense
Reports, and Cost Summaries on a monthly and annual basis.
Maintain proper accounting controls on grants and contributions to ensure accurate revenue reporting and expense
tracking to support periodic moniloring's by funders and ouditors.
Ensure all balance sheet, revenue and cxpcn.sc accounts arc analyzed and reconciled periodically.
Collaborate writh Division Directors to monitor dcpaftmcnlal revenue and expenses versus budget.
Worked with the CFO to develop real time monthly and annual nnanciai reporting; and implementing
departmental goals.
Prepare audit schedules for extemal auditors.
Collaborate with external auditors in completing annual audit in a timely manner.

Accounting Manager (2015-2016)

Sr. Accountant (2013-2014)
RANDALL PILOTTE RESUME:



KENT NUTRITION GROUP. fNC .ff4c/a Btuc Seal Feeds, [nc.). Londonderry, NH 03/1989-09/2010

Assistant ControUer (2005-2010)

•  Ensured an accurate and timely monthly and ycarcndclosc, consisting of the preparation of a consolidated and
indivldual financial statement in accordance with CAAP for nine manufacturing plants and 11 retail storeis with
gross reveoues in excess of $200M. Additional] responsibiiitics'includcd preparing journal entries, account
analysis, inventory review and observation, fixed assets, and depreciation.

• Managed, trained, and supervised a staff accountant responsible for ensuring accurate journal entries, inventory
reconciliation, tonnage tax returns, bank reconciliations, and assignment of special projects.

• Oversaw all aspects of proprietary software, multi-statc.payroll system for 500 employees. Prepared all federal
and state payroll tax reports, including quarterly and ycar-cnd returns, processing of W2s, and supervision of
payroll clerk. [

•  Interfaced with 18 various batiks throughout New England and Mid-Atlantic area used as depositories.
•  Prepared multi-state sales/use (ax returns and acted as point of contact for audits.
•  Pro-actively coached and consulted plant and store management on the annual budget development process.
•  Oversaw month-end accruals. | . ^
•  Assisted and responded to auditors' requests on annual audit.
•  Filed annual franchise and abandoned property reports with appropriate states.

Accounting Manager (1999-2005)

Supported the Corporate (Controller's initiatives by providing supervision and oversight to the Accounting function.
Supervised and trained two accounts payable clerks onjChart of Accounts, Accounts Payable, timely and accurate
processing and payment of vendor's invoices, employee travel reimbursements, and standard accounting practices.

Accountant/Payroll Supervisor (1994-1999)

Accountant (1989-1994)

northern telecom, inc.. Concord, NH

Associate Results Accountant (1988-1989)

Accounts Payable (1987-1988)

Education

Bachelor of Science, Accounting, FraNKUN PierceCollEOE. Concord, NH

05/1987-03/1989



Brenda Gagnc
Chief Program Officer

Tri County Community.Action Program Inc.

Professional Summary:
Successful oversight of the day to day aspects and operations of Tri County CAP'S Transit, Guardianship and
Energy Assistance Programs.

Experience:

Tri County Community Action Program, Inc.
6/30/2020 - Present

Department Head. Economic Supports
6/5/2022 Chief Programs Officer

TH County CAP, Inc.
TH County Transit
31 Pleasant St.

BerUn NH 03570

5/2017-6/30/2020

Director of Transportation

Responsibilities include;
Overseeing the operations and administrative functions of a social service transportation program serving Coos,
Northern Grafton and Carroll Counties.

Tri-County CAP, Inc.
Tri County Transit
31 Pleasant St

BerUn NH 03570

7/2004-5/2017

Operations Manager

Responsibilities include;
'Running the daily operations of a public transit and para transit service.
'Facility Management.
'Gathering statistics
■Quarterly reporting to NHDOT and BEAS.
•Preparing quarterly invoices to BEAS and NHDOT
•Weekly employee scheduling, staff management.
'Creating procedure tnanuals
•Grant writing
'Budget preparation
'Writing Warrani Articles
•Drug & Alcohol Testing
•Emergency Preparedness
Mountain Village Construction
P.O. Box 96
MUan, N.H. 03588
5/1995 - 1/2004
Accounts Manager/Office Manager
Responsibilities included;
•Customer service.
•Accounting using Quick Books Pro.



•Prcp^g payroU and Tax Payments.
•Preparing Customer Statements and Invoices.
•Accounts Receivable and Accounts Payable.
^Creating and running Profit and Loss Reports.
•Data Entry.
•Phone communications and general secretarial duties

Milan Parks and Recreation Dcpt
P.O. Box 300

Mtlao^ N.H. 03588
6/1997-3/2002

Parks and Recreation Director

Responsibilities included;
•Directed and implemented sports and recreational programs for youth and adults for the
Towns of Milan, West Milan, and Dumracr.

•Development of new programs and year round activities.
•Producing yearly budgets.
•Equipment and materials purchasing.
•Organizing and supervising a large Volunteer staff.
•Working with the public to create new programs.
•Coordinating with the Milan Village School on athletic and after school programs.
•Applying for Federal and State Grants.

Education:

• Graduate Gorfaam High School
Gortiain NH

•  Granite State College
Emergency Management

•  Southern New Hampshire University
Bachelor of Business Adrtunistration

NHDOT Courses

Fundamentals of Successful Project Management, MTAP/RTAP Financial Management Course
Basics of Facilities Management Seminar (Facility Maintenance Plan), Transit Security Workshop
FTA Drug & Alcohol Workshop, Emergency Planning and Disaster Management, NH Conference on Statewide
Emergency Preparedness, Procurement for Small and Medium Transit Systems.

Certified Training and Safety Reviewer
Community Transportation Association of America
June 2009

Certified Safety and Security Officer
Community Transportation Association of America
10/2010

Tri Slate Transit Conference
9/2007, 10/2008, 10/2010. 9/2011. 9/2013,9/2014,9/2016,9/2017

Grant Writing Workshop
New Hampshire Community Technical College
Berlin NH 10/2005



Scott Boisvert
Highly effecdve Operations Manager with 15 years of experience

EXPERIENCE

TrI-County Community Action Program, Berlin, NH
Economic Supports Deportment Heod

202A-PRESENT •

Ensure (he efTcctive and efncieni operation of the Economic Suppo^s programs at-
TCCaP. Pcrfonn and tjwniior funcrions invoivinj} thedcpnrtinem, including

inaiiagcmcni and su|)cr\-ision of (h«»e'programs, nnd employtxs. Arras include

Operations, oompli.ince, supervision, discipline, evaluation, inicrvicuing and

recommendation of hiring ond promoHons in order to carry out (he mission ofTCCAP.

Tri-County Community Action Program', Berlin, NH
Mobilify Manager Region 2

2022 - 2024

Work towards expanding transportation options and dc^vcloping new
sustainabie.transportatlon options to serve the communities within the
region.

DiSilva Heating, North Conway, NH
Service Apprentice

2021•2022

HVAC Installations and service.

Rymes Propane & Oil, Ossipee, NH
Division Manoger

2017-2021

Manage retail operations, sales, niarketing, customer service and ah
employee team of 12 as welt as DOT regulations and safety compliance.

Amerigas, Phoenix, AZ
Western Region Manager

2014-2017

Managed operating expenses, cost effective quality product &
marketing programs throughout the Western Region. Managed and
ensured compliance with safety codes & policies as well;as staffing &
development including employee Customer Service skills &
management.

SKILLS

<■
New Business Development

Conflict Resolution

Budgeting
Leadership

Efficiencies

Safety Management

AWARDS

2009 • Western Re^on; Region
of the Year

2010 • Western Region;
Packaging Cost vs. Budget

2011 > Northeast Region;
Packaging Cost vs. Prior Year^
EBITA, Region of the Year, Eagle
Award for Packaging Cost vs.
Prior Year, Patriotic Employee
Recognition

20U • Northeast Region;
Packaging Cost vs. Budget,
Packaging Cost vs. Prior Year,
Outstanding Productivity,
Region of the Year, Eagle Award
for Packaging Cost vs. Prior Year

201A - Western Region;
Outstanding Safety
Performance, Outstanding
Productivity Results



Amerigas, Northfield, NH & Gardena, CA
Operations Manager

2009-2014

Managed operations at production facilities. Managed large teams of
employees at each facility including training In safety and compliance.

Amerigas, Northfield/Laconia, NH & Lewistpn, ME
Operations Supervisor

2006-2009

Supervisor in ACE wash/fill facilities. Managed district and area
deliveries as well as a team of employees which includes training in
various tasks and safety protocols.

EDUCATION

Andover Community College, Business Management
2001-2002

NH Technical Institute, Business Management
2003
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Michele Claire SanschagriA

Objective

My goal is to be able to work with and to help the public as much as possible while putting my
degree to good use. I graduated in May of 2002 with an associate's degree in Computer Technology. I
am a hard and dedicated employee that loves working with people. I am a team player and a self-starter.

Experience

Tri-County Community Actiori
Director of Energy Assistance Services

Berlin, NH

July 2024 to present

Overall site operations and team process management, ensuring compliance with terms and
conditions of funding grants and applicable regulations. In charge of hiring capable and
competent staff and ensuring appropriate training. Conduct reviews on staff and management.
Managing program and agency budget development and authorizing of expenditures according to
contracted budget agreements. Develop positive public relations and communications in the
community. Attend relevant training and workshops to'maintain professional knowledge and
skills.

Tri-County Community Action
Operations Manager

Berlin, NH

June 2021 to July 2024'

Conducting day-to-day operations of the Fuel and Electric Assistance Program.
Addressing staff questions, emails, calls and client/vendor questions. Conducting weekly,
quarterly, monthly and annual reimbursement reports with the state. Rectifying EAP
transmission failures, handle moves and transfers, interact with utilities customer
accounts and transmissions, remove cases from program, troubleshoot and resolve case
issues.

Tri-County Community Action
Lead Certifier/A 16 Coordination

Berlin. NH

November 24, 2015 to June 2021

Overseeing Fuel and Electric Assistance certification processing-, including Assurance 16
coordination programming in compliance with program regulations, procedures and
client confidentiality. In charge of training ceriiners/iniake staff and will address the
Community Contact OfTice staff questions] emails, calls and clients/vendor questions.

AVH

Account Specialist

Berlin, NH

June 25, 2004 to November 2004

I now work in the billing office at Androscoggin Valley Hospital, ( deal mainly with customer
accounts and government insurance companies. I make sure all bills go out to the insurance
companies accurately and in a timely matter. I follow up on reminders by calling and/or checking



online. I also try to please our patients as much as possible by helping them understand their
claims and doing as much as I can to get them paid. At this time, I am in between biDlng
Medicare claims and helping out with the cashiering/data entry. We have been short two cashiers.
We recently hired two new cashiers and I am training them in their positions along with billing
Medicare claims. I am the "go to" person for questions in both departments and 1 also work
reports that the billets used to do.^

AVH

Cashier/Data Entr)'
Berlin, NH

August 20O4 to November 2004

I worked in the billing office as a cashier and a data entry operator. I keyed in charges, worked
credit reports, reconciled the day and took care of customers at the counter.

TN Telemarketing
Phone operator

I worked in an office for the Eastern Slope
Mountain Resort, Bartlcn NH trying to get

AVH

Dietary Aid

Berlin. NH
April 2005 to October 2005

Inn Resort, North Conway NH and for Attitash
customers to go in for a tour.

Berlin, NH

'  March 16, 2004 to-August 2004

worked in the kitchen as a dishwasher, cleanup crew and kitchen helper full time.

JC Penney
Cashier and Catalog

worked'with the public and I sold merchandise.

Gordon Humphrey Campaign OlTice
Phone Survey Conductor

Conducted phone surveys and invitations to meetings.

AC Supermarket
Cashier, deli clerk, office personal, grocery clerk

Berlin, NH
June 200) to April 2004

Berlin, NH

April 2002 to September 2002

Berlin, NH
March 2001 to June 2001

had the same responsibilities at AG Supermarket because Clarkeies closed and AG took over.

Milan Variety

Cashier

I worked every Sunday as a part time cashier.

Clarkeies Market LLC

Cashier, deli clerk, office personnel, grocery clerk
r-

Milan, NH
January 2001 to April 2001

Berlin, NH

May 2000 to March 2001

1 worked in ttie office, taking care of the money and the banking. I also worked with its database
for the total income that the store made. I worked as a cashier for quite a while and as a deli clerk.



Milan Variety

Wailrcss/Cook

1 was a waitress and a cook at this small restaurant

Milan, NH

1996

Education
Berlin High School

General

Additional Education
NHCTC

Berlin, NH

Associates degree in Computer Technology.

Berlin,NH

May 2002

1 have taken classes in Computers and Operating Systems I & 2, Windows and Word Processing.
Spreadsheets, Database Management, College Composition, Algebra & Trigonometry 1 & 2,

• Electricity and Electronics, Micro Computer Hardware, Object Oriented Programming with Java
I & 2, Technical Writing, Networking 1 and Sociology.
t also took U.S. and the Great Depression i
Networking 2 and Database Development.

References

Emily Edgcr (Past AVH Director)
Director of Rgygnn^ rvci^ at <;ghfl<ticnnlf Valley Hospital

History), Software Seminar, Software Design,

nnettc Dubreutl (Co-Worker)

Nathan Corrigan (Family Friend)



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

COMVHSSIONER

Jared S. CNcoine
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TOO Access; Reiay NH
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Website:
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August 7,2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

,  REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Dqwrtment of Eietigy (Department) to enter into an amendment to an
existing SOLE SOURCE contract with Tri-Counly Community Action Program, Inc., Berlin, NH,
Vendor #177195, by increasing the price limitation by $298,737 fiom $5,232,597 to $5,531,334 using
additional Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP) funds made available through
the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (lIJA) and from remaining regular program year funds,
both fiom the U.S. Department of Health aixi Human Services, Administration for Children and
Families, effective upon Governor and Executive Council ̂ proval through September 30,2025.
There is no time extension being requested for this contract. The original contract was approved by
Govemor and Executive Council on September 20,2023, Item #90.100% Federal Funds .

Funding is available in the following account, contingent upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the operating budg^ as follows:

New Hampshire Department of Energv. Fuel Assistance
02-52-52-520510-33540000-074-500587

Grants for Pub Assist & Relief

FY202S

$298,737

EXPLANATION

This is an amendment to a contract is SOLE SOURCE because the historical perfomiance of the
Community Action Agencies (CAA) in the New Hampshire Low-Income Home Energy Assistance
Program (LIHEAP), their outreach and client service capabilities, and the syneigies that benefit the
F AP as a result of the five statewide CAAs' implementation of several other federal assistance
programs as well as the infiastructure that is alrealdy in place to deliver LfHEAP (also known as Fuel
Assistance Program or FAP) services. The Department proposes to continue to subcontract with the
five CAAs who have successfully provided FAP services at the local level for more than three
decades. The CAAs work closely with the Depar tment's FAP Administrator in the implementation of
the program.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and (he Honorable Council

August 7,2024
Page 2 of2

This amendment adds additional funding which jwas received for Program Year 24 (FY24) to existing
contracts and makes them available to the Community Action Agencies until the contract ends on
September 30,2025, making them available for the next winter heating season. Demand and benefit
amounts have varied across the CAAs and these amendments seek to position these additional funds
to the CAAs that have experienced the most need.

In the event that Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to
support this contract.

Respectfully su])m(tted,

s

Jared S. Chicoine

Commissioner



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

SUBJECT: FUEL ASSISTANCE CONTRACT

TRJ-COUNTY COMMUNjTY ACTION PROGRAM, INC

AMENDMENT

This Amendment is between the Stale of New Hampshire Department of Energy, 2!
South Fruit Street, Concord, Merrimack County, NH 03301 (hereinafter referred to as the
"Slate") and Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., 30 Exchange Street, Berlin, Coos
County, NH 03570 (hereinafter the ''Contractor").

Pursuant to an Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the "Agreement"), as approved by
Governor and Couneil on September 20, 2023, Item #90, the Contractor has agreed to provide
certain Services, per the terms and conditions specified in the Agreement and in consideration of
payment by the State of certain sums as specified therein.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 of the Agreement, the Agreement
may be modified or amended only by a written instrument executed by. the parties thereto and
only after approval of such modification or amendment by the Governor and Council; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain
respects;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and
conditions in the Agreement as set forth herein, the parties agree to the following:

1) Amendment and Modification of Agreement. The Agreement is amended and

modified as follows:

A) Price Limitation: Amend Subparagraph 1.8 of the Agreement by striking
the current sum of $5,23

of $5,531,334.

2,597 and inserting in place thereof the total sum

B) Exhibit C - Payment Terms: Amend Exhibit C. first paragraph by striking
the current sum of $5,23

of$5,531,334.

C)

D)

2.597 and inserting in place thereof the total sum

Amend E.xhibit C, second paragraph by striking the current sum of
$382,522 and inserting foradministrativexosts $409,677.

Amend Exhibit C, second paragraph by striking the current sum of
$4,661,475 and inserting for program costs $4,933,057.

2) Continuance of Agreement. Except as specifically amended and modified by
the Terms and Conditions of this Amendment, obligations of the panics hcrcunder

Grants:-240INHLIEI: AwurdDate; 10/23/23

CFDA: 93.568

Tri-Couniy Community Aciicn Program, Inc.

Conlnictor IniiiuU;

Dale: Cg>= M-2 S

Page I or2



shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with the terms and conditions

set forth in the Agreement as it existed immediately prior to this AmesdmenL

fN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year
written below.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

NH Department of Enerc

Date:

Date:

ed S. Cbicoine, Commissioner

Tri'County Community Action Program, Inc.

By:

(Name'& Title of Person Authorized to Sign)

CFO
Approved as to form, execution and substance:

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

■7/18/2024
Date: By

Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing contract was proved by the Governor and Council of the
State of New Hampshire at their meeting on AUG 0 7 2024 , 2024.

OF

By

ICE OFJHE SECRETARY OF STATE

Tide:

Grena: 240INHL1EI; Awtrd Date: 10/23/23
CFDA: 93.548
Tri-County Community Aelion Program, loc.
V

SECRETARY OF STATE

Contractor Iniiiali: rvx
Date:

Page. 2 of 2



State of New Hampshire

Depart ir

CER'

ent of State

IFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan. Secrciar>' ofSiaicof ihc State of New Hampshire, do hereby ccnify that TRI-COL/NTY COMMUNITY

ACTION PROGRAM. INC. (TRI-COUNTY CAP) is a New Hampshire Nonprplli Corporation registered to transact business in

New Hampshire on May 18, 1965. 1 funhcr certify that all fecsjand documents required by the Sccrctao' of State's ofTice have
been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63020

Certincate Number: 0006652662

6f.

%

S
o

%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this Ist day of April A.D. 2024.

'4a

David M. Scanlan

Sccretarv of State



.Sandy Alonzo.

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

hereby certify that;
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporaiioh/LLC: cannot be contract siQnatory) -

1. 1 am a duly elected board chair of TrI-County Community Action Program. Inc. .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following Is a true copy of a vote taken at a meetir>g of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called ar>d
held on .June 27th 2023 . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present ar>d voting.

(Date) I

. (may list more than one person)VOTED: That Jeanne Robillard CEO and or Randall Pilotte CFO.
(Name arxf Title of Contract Signatory)'

is duty auttVMized on beh^ of Tri<County Community Action Program, Inc. _ to enter into contracts or agreements
with tTte State

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authodzed to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments^ and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may In his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vole has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains Vaikf for
thfrty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authohty. I further certify that it is underst^ that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certiricate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
posIUon(s) Indicated and that they have.futi authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
ail such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:

Rev. 03/24/20

Signature of Ef^ad Officer
Name: Sar>dy Monzo
Title: Board Chair



ACORD CERTIFICATE OF L ABILITY INSURANCE 0«TC (MlUOO/rVYY)

TWIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUEO AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER THIS
CERTIFICATE DOBS NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, ECTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURERIS) AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. |
IMPORTANT: If tht ecrtlflc«t« hold#f !• tr> ADDITIONAL INSURED, lh« poUcy^Iti) mutt htv« ADDITIONAL INSURED provltlont or bo •ndorttd.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, tubjtc! (o tht ttrms tnd conditions of ths policy, csilsin poilciss rrtiy rsquirs art andorssmtnl. A statsmsnt on
this csrtlflcsts doM not cenfar rights lo ths csrUflcsts hol^r In llsu of such sndorssnitnt(s).
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Crou Iniursncs-Msnchsstsr
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Manchsttsr NH 03101
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(803)C>«-O3t
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Trt-Couftty Community Action Piogrsm. Inc

30 Exchsnga Strssi

Bsrtln NH 03570

WSUMN B Crsnits Stats Health Cars and Human Ssrvicss Sstf-

WSURERC

WSUREAO

MSUMRC

MSUftSRF

n
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c
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HIS IS TO CERTirr THAT THE POtXIES Of INSURANCE LtSTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUEO TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POUCV PERIOD
DICATEO. NOTWITMSTANDINC ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR C0N0ITK3N Of ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
ERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUEO OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY JME PaiClEiS DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
XCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH P0UCIE5. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

TYPf OF MSURAMCI POLICY NUUSER 1  LMITS

A

X COMSICRCIAL PCNERAL LIABIUTV

»E OCCUR

PHPK?571941 07/01/2024 07/0172025

EACH OCCURRENCE 1 1.000.000

1  1 CUUMHAAC IMU/UtE TO UNTIS , 100.000

UEO EXP lArnr on« e«non) , 5.000

PERSONAL a AOV INJURY' , 1.000.000
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X

□

rVAOgRSQATB UMIT AmiES PER:

roncY O ̂  Q toe
OTHER: i

GENERAL ACCREOATE , 3.000.000
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AOORCOATE , 2.000.000

' OED 1 ^ REntmoN 1 '0-000 • |
1

B
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E.L. DISEASE • EA EKPLOVFF 1  1.000.000-

, 1.000.000
1
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NH Dspartmant of Energy
21 South Fruit St. Sis. 10

Concord- NH 03301
1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE OESCRIBEO POLICISa BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WtLL BE OELfVERBD IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTMORIZEO REPRCSENTATTVS

ACORD 25 (2016/031 Tho ACORD name and logo
e 198B.2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights rsssrvsd.

re rsgistarsd marks of ACORD .



STATE or NEW HAMPSHIRE
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Jarod S. CMoolne
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%
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WeOMa:

www.4nefgy.nh.gov

Sqitember 20,2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION -

1) Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Energy (Department) to enter into a SOLE
SOURCE contract Tri-County immunity Action Program, Inc., Berlin, NH, in the amount of
$5,232,597 for the Fuel Assistance Program effective upon Governor and Executive Council
approval through Septcmba 30,2025. 100% Federal Funds.

Fuixls to si^Tport dss request are available in the foUowing account in FY 2024 upon the availability
and contimMd appropriation of fimda in the future operating budget:

NH Deoartment of Energy- Fuel Assistance

02-52-52-520510-33540000

074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief

FY2a24

$5,232,597

2) Further request authorization to advance Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
$66,941 from the above-referenced contract emounL

EJtfLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical performance of the Community Action
Agencies (CAA) in the New Hampshire Fuel Assistance Program (FAP), their outreach and
client service ciqiabilities, the synergies that benefit the FAP as a result of the five statewide
CAAs* implementation of sevei^ other federalj assistance programs, and the infiastructure that is
already in place to deliva FAP semces. The Department proposes to continue to subcontract
with the five CAAs who have sitccessfiilly provided FAP services at the local level for more than
three decades. The CAAs work closely wiA th!c Department's FAP Administrator in the
implementation of the program.

FAP is a statewide program, fimded by a Federal Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program
(LfHEAP) Block Grant, and works to make home energy more affordable for income-qualified



His ExccHency, Gos'cmor Chrisiopher T. Sununu
and (he Hononbic Council

September 20.2023
Page 2 of2

New Hampshire families, including (hose who are elderly or disabled. Program funds are
targeted to low income households with high energy burdens. The current maximum income
level is 60% of the State Median Income (SMI), which is S80,069 for a family of four. The
average FAP benefit during the last program year was S1,530. The program operates on an
October 1® to September 30"'* program year.

The proposed advance of funds will enable the CAA to operate the program between monthly
reimbursements from (he Slate.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no

requested to support this program.
longer available, Genera) Funds will not be

R es pec t fii I UrsuBtn i 11 ed,

N

Jared Chicoine

Commissioner



FORM NUMBER P-J7 (venlon 2/23/2023)

Notict: This «{re«ncni ind all of iu atuchmenu ihtll bctome public upon submiuion to Covernor and
Executive Council for approvaJ. Any Inrormiiion that is private, conlideAiial or proprietvy must
be ckirty fdeniined lo the ageiKy and agreed to in writing prior to ligning the conirKt.

ACREeMe^n^
The Stfltc of New Hempihire the Contractor hereby mutually agret as followi;

GCNERkl PROVISIONS

i.l Sale Agency

Oepcruncnt erErtergy

1.2 State Agency Address

21 S. Pivii Si.. Ste. 10. Concord. NH OJ30i

U Conliiictor Name

Tri*Counry Cemrsmnity Action Program, Inc. .
1.4 Coflirnctor Addre-v

10 Exchange Street. Berlin, N'H 03970

1.9 Conoictor Phone

Number

(603) 7S2-7001

1.6 Account Unit and Clai

33940000-074

t 1.7 Ccmplet ton Date
September 30, 2029

).t Priee Ltmiution

13.232,997

1.9 Conirecting Onker for Slate Agency
Joshua W. Eliion. DirKior, Policy aod Programs Divi.<ieh

MO Stale Agency Telephooe Number
(603)271-6003

l.ll ContractorSigrutture j

(UkSuU D-:

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signiiory
Randall Pilonc.CFO

1.13 Caie Agencjr^jlfu^c | 1.14 Name and Title of State Agexy Sigrutory

JareO S. Chicoix, Coinmtsiromr

l.liy/Kpproval by the N.H. UeparlAlUnVTAdininisiniion, 0

/ By:
viiion of Personnel (tfopplkuNe)

Dirwtur. On;

^.16 Approval by the AttumOeneral (Fomt. Subflince am 1 Execution) (i/op^/rob/e,)

9/1/2023'^
On:

1.17 Xppreval by rbc Governor and executive Council ((/a;

06C Item number:

p/tcablr)

CAC Mcciing Date: |

\

;

Award 1240INHLIEA

CFDA#9.1.5AII

P)7 Form

j. . Page I of 4.
Iniiiilsfl^ Dale



]. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New

Hampehire, acting through (he ageocy ideniified in block I. I C'State").
engage* eontnetof idcniilje^in blo^ 1.3 ("Corttractor") to perform,
and ihe Contractor shall perform, the work or tale of goods, or b«h,
identified and more particulerly described in the attxbed EXHfBIT B
which is incorporated herein by reference ("Services").

3. EKFtCrrVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithjianding any proviiioo of (his Agreement to the cootrary.
and subject to the approval of ihe Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire, if appiicible, this Agreerhertt, andlall
obligaiioas ofthe parties hcrcunder, shall become effective on the ciaie
the Covcntor end Executive Coutwil approve this Agreement, unku'
no fueh approval is required, in which ease the Agreement shall
become fffTcctive oo ibe dale (he Agreemeat is signed by (be Siaic
Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("EfTecovc Date*!. |
3.2 If the Contractor conuncnccs the Services prior to tbc £/Tcciive
Date, all Services performed by ihe Cotttractor phor .to the Gffeciive
Date shall be performed at ihc sole risk of tbc ̂ ntrocier. and in ihc
event that this Agreement docs not become efiechve, the State shall
have no liability (o the Contrecior, iocluding without limitation, my
obligation to pay the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services
performed. |
3.3 CoBtracior must contpleie all Services by tlie Coatpletlon Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF ACREEMEhrr.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreefocnt to ifae contrary, all
obliptibns of (he Stale hcrcundcr, mcluding, without limitation, the
continuance of payments hcrcunder, arc conitngcni upon the
evailabiHty and continued appropriation of fuods. In no event shall ihe
Slate be liable for any payments heieunder in esccu of such available
appropriated funds, lo the event of a reduction or termination {of
appropriated fiinds by eny state or federal legisUiivc or executive
Ktion thet reduces, elimioetes or otherwise modifies the appropriation
or availabiiity of fbnding for this Atreemcni and the Scope for
Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in part, the State shall
have the right to withhold payment wttil such fuods become tvailable,
if ever, and shall.have the right to reduce or lermioaie the Services

. under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice
of such reduction or temiitution. The State shall not be required jio
transfer hinds (root any other account or source to the Account
ideniified in block I.A in the event hmdi in that Account are reduced

or traevaiiablc.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LJMITATIDN/ PAYMENT.

3.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment arc
identified and tnort particularly described in EXHIBIT C which is
incorporated herein by refercace.
3 J Notwithstanding any prevision in this Agreement to the contniy,
and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no evcoi shall the
total of all paymehli outb^zed. or actually made hcrcunder. exceed
the Price Limitation act forth in block I.S. The payrtKnt by the Stale
of the contract price shall be the only and the conqileic rtimburaement
to the Cotitractor for ail expenses, of whatever oaiure incurred by the
Contractor in the pcrfomunee bescof, and shall be the only and the
complete compensation to the Contractor for the Services. |
3.3 The State reserves iha right to offsei bom any amounts otherwise
payable to the Contrecior under this AgreenKni those liquidate

amounts required or permitttd by N.H. RSA 60:7 through RSA 80:7<
or any okher provision of bw.
3.4 The Stale's liability under this Agicctncnl shall be limited i»
monetary damages not to exceed the loui fees psid. The Contractor
sgrces that it has an adequate remedy at bw for any breach of this
Agrcctnent by the Suie and her^ waives sny right to specific
performaitce or otha rquitsMe remedies sgainst the State.

6. COMPUANCE BV CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND

RECULATIONSfiEQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY.
6.1 In connection with the perforinance uf the Services, the Contractur
shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws, regulations, and orden
of federal, state, county or municipal authoniies which impose any
obligaiiott or dury upon the Contractor, including, but not limited to.
civil rights and equal cmptoyment cppommity laws and the
Governor's order on Respect and Civility in the Workplace, Executive
order 20204)1. le addition, if thb Agreement is funded in sny part by
monies of the United States, the Contractor shall comply with aU
federal executive orders, rules, rcgubiions and statutes, and with any
rules, regulations sod guidelines is the State or (he United States issue
to implement these regubtioni. The Contractor shall also comply with
all applicable intellectual property laws.
6.2 During Ihe term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment becanse
of age. sex. sexual uricniailon. race, color, marital status, physical or
racniDi disability, religious creed, oaiional origin, gender identity, or
gender expression, atsd will take afTirmativc action to prvvcnt such
discrimmatioo. unless exempt by stale or federal bw. Thc.Conrrictor
shall ensure any lubcomrecton comply with these nondiscrimination

. requirements.
6.3 No paymenu or rransfcra of >alue by Contractor or its
represenisiivcs in conaection with this Agreement have or shall be
made which have the purpose or cfTeci of public or commcrcul
bribery, or acceptance of or acquiescence in extortion, kickbacks, or
other unbwfol or improper means of obtaining business.
6.4. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United Stales access
to any of Ihc Contractor's books, records srtd aceotnts for the purpose
uf ■scertairting compliance with this Agreement and ill rules,
tegubtiora snd orders pertaining to the covenants, terms and
conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL
7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense pfovidc all pcnooncl
necessary to pcifgrm the Scrvkes. The Contractor warraats that all
pCTsunncrcagaged in the Services shall be qualined to perform ihe
Services, and shall be properly licensed and oiherwix authorized to
do so under ell applicable laws.
7.2 The Cunirtciing Officer specified b block 1.9. or ariy successor,
shall be the State's pobt of contact pcnzining to this Agrccmeni.
8. EVENT OF D E FA ULT/REM EDIES.
8.1 Any oik or more of the following adu or omissions of tbc
Contractor shall cunsiitute an event of default bcmunder CEvcni of
Ocfault"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services saiisfoctorily or on xhedula:
8.1.2 failure to submit any rcpon required hereunder, and/or
8.1 J failure to perform any other covertsni, tenn or condition of this
AirecniBnt.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of sny Event of Ocfsuit, the State may take
any one, or more, or all, of ibe following actions:
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8.2.) five Ibe ContrKtor o wrinen ooiice specifyini ihe E>Tnc of
Dcfauli and requiring ii to be rcfoedted within, m ihc ebsettcc of a
grearef or lewer ipecificsiion of time, ihirty (30) cskndsr dajrs from
the dale of the rtotice; and if the Event of Ckfauli it ttoi timeljr cured,

* .lerminaieihii Agreement, eneetive two (2) calendar days after giving
(' (he Contraaor noticeof termination; j

8.2.2 give the Contractor a wrinen notice ipcctfying the Event of
Default end luspcnding all paymenii to be made under this Agreement
and ordering thai the portion of the cnnirect price whteh would
oihcrwitc accrue to the Contractor during the period from the date nf
auch notice until cueh time as the State determine* that the Coamctor
hat cured the Event of Default ihalt never be paid to (be Contractor
8.2J give the Coniracior a wrinen ooiice tpeeif/ing the Event of
Ocfautt and act oCrtgoinst *ny eihrr obligations (he State nuyowe 10
(ha Contractor any damaiet the Sifita luffien by reason uf any Event
of Default; and/or

8.2.4 give the Contractor a wrinen notice specifying ihv Evcoi of
Default, (real the Agreement as bicaehcd. terminate the Agreement
and punuc any of its remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9, TERMINATION.

9.1 Notn-ithsianding paragnph 8, (he State may, at iu tok discretion,
terminate the Agrtcmeni for any reason, in whok or m part, by thirty
(30) cakndar days writteo ooike to (he Contractor that (be State is
exercising its option to terminate (he Agreement. |
9.2 la (he event of an early lerminaitoo of this Agreement for aey
reason other than the completiort of the Services, the Contractor shall,
at ihe Stale j discretion, deliver to the Coniractiog Officer, not bier
than riftcen (>5) calendar days aflcr the date of (erminaiibrv a rtport
CTerminttion Report") describing in detail all Services performed,
and the contract piice earned, to tod including the date of lermtnation.
In addition, at the Slate's discretion, the Contnclor shall, within fifteen
(15) calendar day* of notice of early (crminaiion, develop and submit
to the State a tnnsiiion plan for Services under the Agreement.

10. PROPERTY OWNERSHIP/DISCLOSURE.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "Properly" shall mean all
dau. infofmaiion aitd things developed or obtained during the
perTtvmsnce of, or aequired or developed by reason of. ih'ci
Agreement, itKludtng, but not liotiied to. all studies, reports, flies,
formulae, surveys, maps, charu, inund recordings, video recordings,
pictorial reproductions, driwmgs, analyies, graphic reprueniaiiohs,
eomputcr programs, computer printouts, notes, lenert. memoranda,
popera, and dneumcnts, all whether fimshed or unnoisheJ. j
10.2 All data tod any Property which has been received from the State,
or purchased with Amds provided for that purpose under this
Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be mtumed to
(he Stale upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement for any
reason. |
10.3 Disclosure of data, infonnaiion and other records shall be

governed by N.H. ̂ A chapter 91>A and/or other applicable law
Disclosure requires prior utiacn opproval of the State.

•tl. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of (his Agreement the Contractor is in oil respects an
bdependem contractor, arsd is neither an agent oor an employee of the
State. Neither the Conimctor nor any of ib offtceis, employees, agents

.  or mcreben shall have authority to bind the State or receive toy
benefits, workers' compcnsarion or other cmolumenu provided by the
Stale 10 ill employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELCCATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 Contractor shall provide the State written notice at least 6Aecn
(13) calendar days before any proposed assipmeni, delegation, or
other iransfer of any interest io (bis Agreement. No such assignment,
delegation, or other transfer fhall be efTcctive without the-writteo
consent of the State.

12.2 For purposes of paragraph 12, a Change of Control shall
coruriiuie assignment. "Change of Control" hiearts (a) merger,
cuQSolidaiion. or a irinsaciioo or Kries of related ironsiciions in which
a third party, together with it* affiliates, becomes the direct or iodireci
owner of ftfly percent (50K) or mure uf the voting shares or similar
equiry mteresis, or combined %'o(ing power of the Centrxior, or (b) the
sale of all or substantially ail of the assets of the Coniracior.
13.3 None of the Services shall be subcemracted by the Contncter

without prior written notice and consent of (he Slate.
12.4 The State is entitled to copies of ell subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained in a
subconrnct or ao assignmenr agrccmeat to which it is noi'a party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Tbe Contractor shall indemnify, defend,
and hold hamiless the Slate, its officcn, and employees from and
'against all actions, claims, detneges, detnands, judgments, fines,
liabilities, losses, and other eipenses, including, without limitation,
reasonable anomeys* fees, arising oui'ofor relating to this AgrceriKat
directly Of indirectly arising from death, personal titjury, property
damage, intellectual propcrry infringcmeol, or other claims asserred
against the State, its officers, or employees caused by the acts or
omissions of negligence, reckless or willful misconduct, or frsud by
Ihe Contncior. iu employees, agenu, or subcontractors. The Stale
shall not be liable for any costs incurred by (he Conmeior arisiflg
undn this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to consUtuK a waiver of (he State's

sovereign immunity, which immunity is hereby reserved to the State.
This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive tiK temilnation of (bis
Agreemeni.

U.'iN.SURANCE.
14.1 The Contractor shall, at its lok cipcnse, obtain and continuously
maintain in force, and ihall require any subcontractor or assignee to
obtain and mainuin in force, rtw followiag insuivtce:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance igainsi all claims of
bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not lius than
Sl.lWO.OOO per occurrence and S2.000.000 aggregate or excess; and
14.1.2 special eapse of lost covenge form covering all Property
subject 10 tubpongraph 10.2 herein, in an tmouoi not less than 80%
of the whole replacement value of the Property.
14.2 The policies described in tuhparagraph 14.1 herein shall ba on
policy furms end endoncmenu approved (or use in the State of New
Hampshire by (he N.H. Department of Insurance, and issued by
insuren licensed in ibc State ofNew Kampsbirt,
14.3 The Contractor shall htmish to the Contncting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or aoy successor^ a certincttc(s) of iasunoca for all
insurance required under rhij Agreement. At the request of (he
Contracting OfTicer, or any successor, (he Contractor shall provide
ecrtir»ci(e(t) of inturtnce for all renewti(i) of innirince reqaired
undo (h'u Agreemeni. The ecrtificatels) of insurance and any renewals
thereof shall be attached o/kI arc itKorporsied herein by reference.
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IS. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.) By litnini thii asreemcni, the CoMncior agre«s, cenifln and
wananit thai (he Contractor ii in compliance with or exempt from, (he
ftquiitmenu of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Worktn'
Compcttrsr/on "}.

15.2 To (he exient the Contractor is subject to the requirements of
N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A. ConDacior shill meinlain, artd require any
cubcontractor or asiigBCc to secure and miintaio, paymeot of Worken'
Compensation in conneciioA with activities which the pcnon proposes
to undcrukc pursuant to this AyrtemcnL The Conincicr shall furnish
the ConlraclinH Ofltcer Idcnii/led in b)ock 1.9, or any successor, prrwf
of Workers' Compensation in the maaoer described in N.H. RSA
chapter 281-A and any applicable renewaKi) thereof, which sball be
■liacbed end ete irKmpormicd herein by reference. The State shall
be responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation prcmiunis
or for any other claim or bcrrent for Contractor, or any subranrracioe
ur employee of Contractor, which mishi arise under applicable State
of New Hampshire Woiken' Compensation laws.in connccrion with
the performance of (he Services under this Afrecoeni.

(d. WAIVER OF BRF.ACH. A State's failure to enforce its righu
with respect to any tlngk or continuing breach of (his Agreement shall
not act as a waiver of the right of the Sute to later enforce any such
rights or to enforce any other or any subsequent breach.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a parry hereto to the other psny shall ^
deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time of mailing by
ccrtiricd oail, postage prepaid, in a United States Pust Offtce
addressed to the panics at ilw addresses given in blocki 1.2 and 1.4,
herein.

18. AMENDMENT. TTus Agrcemeni may be amended, wiived or
discharged only by an inttrvmcni in writing signed by ihc panirt
hereto and ooly. after approval of such amendment, waiver or discharge
by the Govcroor aad ExecutivcCouncil of (he State of New Hampshire
unleu no such approval is required under the eireumsiahces purauani
10 State law, rule or policy.

19. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM.
19.1 This Agrctmcot sbill be governed, interpreted and coastrued tn
•ecordance with the laws of the State of New Hantpshtre except where
the Federal snpicroacy clause requires otherwise. The wordiag used
in (hb Agrccracni ii ilU wording chosen by the paniei to eiprtss their

mulual intent, and no rule ofcorutruction.iball be applied against or in
favor of any party.
19.2 Any actions arising out of this Agreement, including the becKh
or alleged breach (hereof, may not bc'submincd to binding arhitratioA,
but must, instead, be brought and maintained in the Mcrrimack County
Superior Court of New Hampshire which shall have exclusive
jurisdiction thereof.

20. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a eonflici between ihc
terms of (his P'57 form (as modified in EXHIBfT A] and any other
portion of this Agrcemeni including uny aitachmenu thereto, the terms
of the P-37 (as mudified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

]l. THtltD PAilTl£S. TTus Acreemeni is being entered into for the
sole benefii of the partie.t herein, and iMthing herein, express or
implied, is intended to or will con/cr any legal or equitable right,
bcncAl, Of remedy of any nature upon any ether pcnon.

23. HLADI.NCS. The headings ihrovghoui the Agreement are for
re ference purposes only, and the words contatoed tbereia thai) in oo
w«y,bc held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the interpretaiion.
construction or meaning of the provisions of (his Agreement.

25. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Addiiiflnal or iriodifying provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorponicd bcrcio by refereoce.

24. FURTHER ASSURANCES. The Conirector. along with its
•gents and afriliates, shall, at its own cost and e.<tpauc, execute any
additional documents aad take such fbnher actions as may be
reasonably required to carry out the provisioos of this Agrecmeai aad
give cfTcci to the rmuictions coatcmplaicd hereby.

25. SCVERABILITV. Iq ihc event any of Ihc provisions of this
Agreement arc held by • court ofcompeteni jurisdiction to be cooirary
to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of this Agreement
will retiuin in fiill force and efTcct.

2d. ENTIRE agreement. This Agrcemeni. which may he
executed in ■ number of counterperu, each of whtcb shall be deemed
an original, cortsiitutcs the entire agreeihent and understanding
between the panics, and supersedea all prior agreements ted
undimandings with respect to (he subject matter hereof.
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EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

On or before the dale set fonh in Block 1.7 of the General Provisions, the Coniracior
shall deliver (o the State an independent audit of the Contractor's entire agency by a
qualified independent auditor in good standing with the state and federal government.

This audit report shall include a schedule of revenues and expenditures by eoniract or
grant number of all expenditures during the Contractor's fiscal year. The Contractor shall
utilize a competitive bidding process to choose a qualified financial auditor at least every
four years.

The audit report shall include a schedule of prior yeaxs' questioned costs along with an
Agency response to the current status [of the prior years' questioned costs. Copies of all
OMB letters written as a result of audits shall be forwarded to New Hampshire
Department of Energy (NH DOE). Th'e audit shall be forwarded to NH DOE within one
month of the time of receipt by the Agency, accompanied by an action plan for each
finding or questioned cost.

Delete the following from paragraph 10 of the General Provisions: "The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copicsjof the Termination Report shall be identical to
those of any Final Report described in Exhibit A."

The costs charged under this contract shall be determined as allowable under the costprinciples detailed in 2 CFR 200 Subpjart E - Cost Principles.
Program and financial records pertaining to this contract shall be retained by the Agency
for three years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report per 2 CFR
200.334 - Retention Requirements for Records and until all audit findings hove beeo
resolved.

In accordance with Public Law 103-3. 3. the "Departments of Labor, Health and Human
Services, and Education, and Related Agencies Appropriations Act of I99S," the
following provisions are applicable to this grant award:

a. Section 507: "Purchase of American - Made Equipment and Products - It is the
sense of the Congress that, to the greatest extent practicable, all equipment and
products purchased with funds made available in this Act should be American-
made."

b. Section 508: "When issuing statements, press releases, requests for proposals, bid
solicitations and other documents describing projects or programs funded in
whole or in pan with federal money, all slates receiving federal funds, including
but not limited to state and local governments and recipients of federal research
grants, shall clearly state (1) the percentage of the'total costs of the progi^m or
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8.

project which will be financed jwith federal money, (2) ihe dollar amount of
federQl foods for the project o'rjprogrfim, and (3) the percentage and dollar amount
of ihe total costs of the project or program that will be financed by non
governmental sources."

CLOSE OUT OF CONTRACT. All final required reports and reimbursement requests
shall be submitted to the Slate within 30 days of the completion date (Agreement Block
1.7).

9. advances. Advance funds must be used solely for appropriate Fuel Assistance
Program-expenditures. Advance program funds are to be used only for Fuel Assistance
Program vendor payments. Ail Fuel Assistance Program payments, including Advance
program payments, must be transferred from the Community Action Agency's (CAA's)
general operating account into a specific Fuel Assistance Program account within 48
hours after being received ciccironicaily from the Stale. CAAs must submit the bank
account number of the designated bank account for the advance funds to NH DOE prior
to the electronic submission of the funds to the CAA. Unspent Advance program funds
must remain in the FAP dedicated account at all times and cannot be comingled with any
other CAA funds. CAAs art required ip submit e complete electronic copy of the FAP-
dedicated bank account statement to NH DOE on a monthly basis.

10. This is not a Research and Development (RAD) award. The Department's indirect cost rate
is 10 percent.
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EXHIBITS

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc, hereinafter the Contactor agrees to provide Fuel
Assistance Program services to qualified low|income individuals and agrees to perform all such
services and other work necessary (o operate the Program in accordance with the requirements of
this contract^ the principles and objectives set forth in the Fuel Assistance Program Procedures
Manual, Information Memoranda, and other ̂ idancc as determined by NH DOE.

Fuel Assistance Program (PAP) services will

2.

a.

b.

c.

3.

4.

be defined to include the following'catcgories:

Outreach, eligibility, determination, and certificaiion of FAP applicants;

Payments directly to energy vendors:
Reimbursement for goods and services delivered
Lines of credit

Budget plan payments;

payments directly to landlords via vouchers for renters who pay their energy costs as
undefined portions of their rent;

Payments directly lo clients only when deemed appropriate and necessary as defined in
the Fuel Assisraoce Procedures Manual; and

5. Emergency Assistance in the fprm of reimbursements for goods or services delivered in
accordance with paragraphs 3 and 4 above.
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EXHIBITC

^  •

PAYMENT TERMS
N

In consideration of the satisfactory performnnce of the services as determined by the State, the
State agrees to pay over to the Contractor the sum of $5,232,597 (which hereinafter is refened to
as the "Grant").

Upon the State's receipt of (he 2024 Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program grant from
the US Deponmeni of Health and Human Services, and Governor and Executive Couacil
approval, the following ftinds will be authorized;

$382,522 for administrati(m costs, of which $66,941 will be issued as a cash advance;

$4,661,475 for program costs;
SI 88,600 for Assurance 16.

The dates for this contract are upon Governor and Council approval through Sq)tember 30,2025.

Approval to obligate (Exhibit I) the above-awarded funds will be provided in writing by the New
Hampshire Department of Energy to the Contractor as the Federal ftmds become available.
Drawdowns from the balance of funds will be made to the Contractor only after wrinen
documentation of cash need is submitted to the State. Disbursement of the Grant shall be in

accordance with procedures established by the Slate as detailed in the Fuel Assistance Program
Procedures Manual.

The Contractor may use up to two percent (2*/») of the funds allocated for program costs to pay
for program support expenses. Program support expenses will be defined in an Information
Memoranda issued by the New Hampshire Department of Energy.

CFDA Title:

CFDANo:

Award Name:

Federal Agency:

Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program

93.S68

Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program

Health & Human Services

Administration for Children and Families

Office of Community Services
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

^  STANDARD EXHIBIT D

The Coniraclor identified in Section 1.3 of the General. Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section3'5l5i-5160ofthe Drug-Free Workplace Act ori988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D;4I U.S.C.
701 etseq.). and funher ogrees to have the Contractorjs represeotative, as ideniified in Sections I.I I and 1.12 of
the General Provisions, execute the following Cenificarion:

I  '
certification regarding drug-free workplace requirements

alternative 1 - FOR CONTRACTORS OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US department of health and human services - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMEIST OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151 -5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace
Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D: .4I U.S.C. 701 et scq.). The January J1, 1989 regulations were
amended and published as Part 11 of the May 25, 199Q|Federal Recisterfoattes 2I681-2I69I>. and require '
ceitification by Contractor (and by inference sub-grantees and sub-contractors) prior to award that they will
maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a Contractor (and by
inference sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a state may elect to make one cenificaiion to the Department in
each federal fiscal year in lieu ofcertiricotes for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the
certification. The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when
the Agency awards the gram. False certification or violation of the certificadoo shall be pounds for suspension
of payments, suspension or tcrmihaiion of grams, or government-wide suspension or debarment. Conrractors
using this form should send it to:

Fuel Assistance Adntinisirator, New Hampshire Department of Energy.
21 South Fruit St.. Ste. 10. Concord. NH 03301

(A) The Contractor certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession of or use of a cpnrrolled substance is prohibited in the Contractor's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violaiion of such
prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing dnig-free awareness program to inform employees about:

(1) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) the Contractor's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
(3) any available drug counseling! rehebiliieiion, end employee assistance programs; and
(4) • the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in

the workplace;

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged m the performance of the grant be
givcii a copy of (he statement required by parapaph (a);

(d) Notifying (he employee in the sittemenl required by porogroph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will

(I) abide by the terms of (he statement; and
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CERTIFICATION RECARDJNC OR^C■FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTSalterative I - FOR CONTRACT|ORS OTHER THAN,INDIVIDUALS, cont'd
US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES . CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF ACIUCULl UR£ - CONTRACTORS

^  US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

(2) notify ihc employer in writing of his or her conviction for o violation of a criminal dnig
staruie occurring in the workplace no later than fi ve calendar days after such cooviciion;

(c) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days alter receiving notice under
subparagroph (d)(2),from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.

• Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grunt activity the convicted employee was working, unless the federal agency
has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
Identification numbcr(s) of each affected grunt;

(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2). with rcspcci to any employee who is so convicted:

(I) Taking appropriate personnel

(8)

action against such an employee, up to and including
tcrminalioh, consistent with iYk requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of l_973, as
oniended; or - {

(2) ' Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a'dntg abuse assisunce or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a federal, state, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

Making a good faith cITort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation
of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (c). and (0.

(0) ■ The Contractor may insert in the space provided below the site(.s) for the perfonnance of wotk done in
connection with Che specific grant.

Place of Perfofmance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Tri-Couoty Contmunity Action Program. Inc.,
30 Exchange Street, Berlin, NH 03570

Check Q if there arc workplaces on fi le that are not dcntificd here.

Contractor Name

JJpon Governor and Council Approval through September 30,2025
Period covered by this Cerrificaiion

Name and Title of AuihorizcdXontractor Representative
ijuC

Contractor Representative Signature
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT E

The Coniraetor identiHed io Section I.J of the CenersI Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Section
319 of Public Law 101 • 121, Oovemmeni wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, tuid 31 U.S.C. 1352,
and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1. II end I.) 2 of the General
Provisions, execute the fallowing Ccrtificaiion:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US Department of education - contractors

us DCPARTT^IENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Programs (indicate applicable program covered);
LIHEAP

Contract Period: Upon Governor and Council Approval through September 30, 2025

The undersigned ceTtifies to the best of his or her knowledge and belief that:

(1) No federal appropriated funds have been paid orVill be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
pciion for influencing or attempting to influence an ofTiccr or employee of any agency, a member of
COTgress, an oSicer or employee of Congress', or an employee of a member of Congress in cdnneciioo
with the awardiog of any federal contract, coritinuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
federal coniraci, grant, loan, or cooperative a^ccment (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor).

(2) If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an.
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with this federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor),
the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Furm LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying",
in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document for
tub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts', sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and thai all sub-rccipients shall certify aod disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material rqjrcsentoiion of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was .
made or entered into. Submission of this artification is a prerequisite for maJ^g or entering into this transaction
imposed by Section 1352. Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be
subject to a civil penally of not less than S 10.000 and not more than S 100,000 for each such failure.

mi
Contractor Representative Signature

Contractor Name

Contractor's Representative Title

0  njiie

LfHEAPJa TCCAP

Award if 240INHLIEA
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANoiRD EXHIBIT e
The Contractor identified in Secllon 1.3 of the Generai Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive OfTice of the President, Executive Order l2S49aQd 45CFRPait76 regarding Oebarmcni, Susperuion,
and Other-Responsibility Matters, end further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in
Sections I.M and 1.12 of (he Generai Provisions, execute (he following Certification:

CERTinCATION REGARDrNG DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Instructionsfor Ctrtiftcetion

(1) By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set oui below. j

(2) The inability ofa person to provide the ceniflcaiion required below will noi necessarily result in denial of
participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, ihc prospective participaor shall submit an explanation
of why it cannot provide tbc ccnincation. The ceniflcaiion or explanation will be considered in connection
with the NH Department of Energy's (NH DDE) determination whether to enter inio this transaction.
However, failure of the prospective prlma^ participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall
disqualify sucb person fiom participation in ihisjtransaction.

(3)' The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when h/H
DOE detennined to enter Into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective primary
participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available (0 the
federal government, NH DOE may terminate (his transaction for cause or default.

(4) The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the NH DOE agency to whom
(his proposal (controcl) is submitted if at any rime the prospective primary panicipant leams that its
cenificacion was enoneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

(5) The terms "covered transaction," "debancd," "suspended," "ineligible." "losvcr tier covered transaction,"
"participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," '*proposal," and "voluntarily excluded,"
as used in this clause, have the meanings set outjin (be Definitions and Coverage sections of (be rules

•  iraplcmcnting Executive Order 12349:45 CFR Part 76. See the attached definitions.
(6) The prospective primary participaoi agrees by submitting (his proposal (coniract) that should the proposed

covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with
0 person who is debarred, suspended, declared irteligiblc, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
covered transaction, unless authorized by NH DOE.

(7) The prospective primary participant further agreb by submining this proposal that it will include the clause
tilled "Certification Regarding Debarmcot, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier
Covered Tnmsactions," provided by NH DOE, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions
and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

(8) A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower
tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended.'ioeligible, or involuntarily excluded from (he
covered transaction, unless it knows thot the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the inell)od
and frequency by wbicb it determines the eligibility of iis prirKipals. Each participant may. but is not
required to, check the Non-procurement List (of|excluded parties).

(9) Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of o system of records in
order to render in good faith (he certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a
participant is t>bt required to exceed that which is normolly possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary
course of business dealings. j

(10) Except for traosactions authorized under paragraph 6 of the^ instructions, if a participant in a covered
transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, deburred.
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from ponlcipaiion in this transaction, in addition to other remedies
available to the federal govemmeni, NH DOE may terminate this transaction for cause or defaulL

LIHEAP24 TCCA?

Award4 240INKLIEA
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CtlRTinCATION REGARDING DCBARiMENT. SUSPENSION. AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS, cont'd

Certi/iceiion Recording Debermcnt, Suspension, end Other.
ResponsibiUty Meners • Primary Covered Transeetions

(I) The prospective primary, participant certifies
prtncipols:

to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its

(0) arc not presently debarred, suspcndcd,.proposcd for debarmcni, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered transactions by any federal dcpanmcni or agency;

(b) have not within a ihree^year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had a
-civil judgment rendered against (hern for commission of fraud or for a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obiain, or pcrfonning a public (federal, aiaic or local)
tramsaciion or a contract under a public iranaaciion; violation of Federal or State antitrust statures
or commission of embeulemeni, ibeft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records,
making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

•  I • •
(c) are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally-or civilly charged by a governmental entity

(federal, state or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1) (b) of
this ceniftcalioo; and

(d) . hfive not within a ihree^year period preceding this applicotidn/pruposal had one or more public
(federal, state or local) rronsoctions tenninaicd for cause or default.

(2) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to cedify to any of the statements in this certification,
such prospective pmicijpant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, ineiigibUity and
Voiuntary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Transactions

(To Be Supplied to Lower Tier Penkipanu)

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier padicipani, as defined in
45 CFR Pad 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

(a) ore not presently debaiTed. suspended, proposed for debamient, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

(b) where the prospective lower tier panicipant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explonation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will include this
clause entitled "Cenificalioo Regarding Dcbannent, Suspension, Incligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion • Lower
Tier Covered Transactions." without modificatioit in all lower lier-covacd transactions and in all solicitations for
lower tier<over6d transactions.

Contractor Rq)resentative Signature

CjjyvivwtorttUi Q<Ow^
Contractor Name '

iwO.

CunlrKtof's Representative Title

Date

UHEAP24 TCCAP
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NEWHAMPSHmEDEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE
.  . AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provijipns agraes by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Seclioni 1. U and I.I 2 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certificanon:

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the Coniructor agrees to make reasonable elTorts to comply
with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Oisabiliiies Act of 1990.

Coniracior Representative Signature Contractor's Representative Title

Contractor Name ^ Date

LrMEAP24 TCCA?

Award a 240lhrHLIEA

aOAff93.S69
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NEW HAMPSRIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERrmCATION

Public Law 103-227, Part C
ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103227, Port C Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as (he Pro Children Act of 1994, requires
that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor faciliry routinely owned or leased or contracted for by
an entity and used routinely or regularly for provision of health, day care, education, or library services (o children
under the age of 16, if the services ore funded by Federal programs either directly or through Slate or local
govcmmcnu.'by Federal groni, coniract, loao, or loan guarantee.

The law doei not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by Medicare
or Medicaid fxmds, and portions of facilities used for inpalient drug or alcohol treatment.

Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may rc.<iult in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
S1000 per day and/or the imposition of an Qdministroiive compliance order on the responsible entity.

By signing and submitting this application the applicant/ Contractor certifies that it will comply with the
requirements of the Act.

The appHcani/coniraclor fWther agrees that it will require the language of this certification be included In any sub
awards which contain provisions for the children's services and that all Subcontractor shall certify accordingly.

Contractor Representative Signature

Till
rontfflctor Nune i J iContractor Name

Contractor's Represeniative Title

LIHEAP14 TCCAP

Award ff 240INHL!EA

CFDA«93.568

Date
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FAR Appro«-»l to Obll(m

STATE

KXAMPLt ONLY

APPROVi^ TO 08LICATE
FUEL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

Exhibit I

AOMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE TOTAL

[CONTRACTED BUDGET 536.220.00 5.646.370.00 4,582.^0 357,200.00 6.546,372.60

0<PECTED BUDGET 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

. PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

iTHtS APPROVAL TO OBUOATE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,165,551.00

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 .  1.165.551.00 0.00 0.00 1.165.651.00

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBUGATE 538,220.00 • 1,480,819.00 4.582.60 357,200.00 5,360,621.60

BMCA
•

FIr«t 7/1/2019 AOMIN. PA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCG16 TOTAL

[CONTRACTED BUDGET 95.663.00 1,003,586.00 1.000.00 69,960.00 1.170.209.00 1

EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 O.DO- 0.00 0.00 0.00

[THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 207,112.00 0.00 0.00 207,112.00 1
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBUGATE 0.00 207.112.00 0.00 0.00 207,112.00

NOT AUTHORIZEO TO OBLIGATE 95.663.00' 796.474.00 1,000.00 69.960.00 963.097.00.

SNHS

FIfSl 7/1/2019 ' AOMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

[CONTRACTED BUDGET 163.7n.00 1.716,152.00 1,000.00 . 64.220.00 1,987,149.00 1

EXPECTED BUDGET • 0.00

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00'

[THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 354,578.00 0.00 0.00 354,578.00 |

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 354.578.00 0.00 o;co 364,578.00

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 163.777.00 1,363,574.00 1,000.00 84,220.00 1,612,571.00

SCS

Rfst 7/1/2016 AOMIN. FA PROGRAM ' SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

(CONTRACTED BUDGET 63.635.00 879,501.00 825.00 64,960.00 1,029,121.00 1

EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

[THIS APPROVAL TO OBUGATE 0.00 ' 181.904.00 0.00 0.00 181.S04.00 1

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 181.504.00 0.00 0.00 181.504.00

NOT AUTHORIZEO TO OBUGATE 83,635.00 S97.997.00 825.00 64,960X0 847,617.00

CAPSC

Flrtl 7/1/2019 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

[CONTRACTED BUDGET 64.676.00 573.593.00 757.60 55,110.00 684,136.60 1

EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 O.OO'- 0.00 0.00 0.00

[THIS APPROVAL TO OBUOATE 0.00 118,373.00 O.OO 0.00 116.373.00 1
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBUGATE ' 0.00 118.373.00 0.00 0.00 118.373.00

NOT AUTHORIZEO TO OBLIGATE 54,676.00 . 455,220.00 757.60 55.110 XO 565,763.60

TCCA

Pint 7/1/2019 ADMIN. F/LPROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16. TOTAL

[CONTRACTED BUDGET 140.269.00 r,47l,S38.00 1,000.00 82,950.00 1,695.757.00 |
EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 . 0.00 0.00

[THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 303.884.00 0.00 0.00 303.984,00 [

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE

LQIEAF24

A«mN«'240IKHUEA
CFDAf93.5«l

0.00

140.269.00

303.964.00

lil€7.$M.OO
0.00

1.000.00

0.00

62,960.00 1.391.773.00

R37
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?^W HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT J ■

CERTinCATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY
and TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) retjuires prime awardees of individual
Federal granu^ equal to or-greater than S30,000^ and awarded on or after October I. 2010. to repon on
data related to executive compenaation and associated first-tier sub-grants orS30,000 or more. If the initial
award is below S30.000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over S30,000,
the award is subjeci to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of tbc date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Suboward and Executive Compensation Information), the
New Hampshire Department of Energy must report the following information for any subaward or
eonixact award subject to the'FFATA reporting requirements;

1) Narne of entity
2) Anx>unt of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAlCS code for conlracis/CFDA prograin number for grants
5) Program'fource |
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the finding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Pinnctpal place of performance
9) Unique entity ideminer(UEI 10
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

a. More than 80% of imoual gross revenues arc from the Federal govcmmeni, and those
revenues ore greater than S30M annually and

b. ■ Compensaiioo information is not already available through reporting to the SEC. -

Prime recipients must submit FFATA rcquir^ data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the avrard or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Suboward^und Executive Compensation information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 a^ 1.12 of the (jeneral
Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the New
Hampshire Department of Energy and lo comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability and Transparency Act.

fta<v6q\\ PAiAV., CJFO
(Contractor Representative Signature) (Auihoriacd Contractor Reprcsemarive Name A Title)

"T<'rCoonV^
(Contractor Name) (D

LIHEAP 24 TCCAP

Award it>240lNHLIEA

CFDA No. 93.368
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

I' •
FORM A

As the Contrector ideniiTicd in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I cenlfy thai the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

I. The UEl number for your entity is:

2. In your busioess or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or orgioization
receive (I) 80 percent or more of your aooual gross revenue in U.S. federai contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sulhgmnu, and/or cooperative agreemeiiti;|afld (2) $30,000,000 or more in annual grots revenues
from U.S. fedenil contracts, subcontracts, loans, grams, tubgranit. and/or cooperative agreemenii?

YES

If the answer to d2 above b NO, slop here

If the onswcr to 02 above Is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business
or organization through periodic rtpons filed under sation 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(8), 78o(d))or section 6104 of the Iniemal Revenue Code of 19867

NO

If (he aitswer (o 03

_YES

above is YHCS, stop here

I f the answer to 03 above b NO, please answer the'following;

4. The names and compeosaiion of the five most highly compensated officers is your business or
organization are as follows;

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

UHEAP 24 TCX>P

Award 0 240INHL1EA

Cn>A No. 93.568

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Exhibit J
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, Oavid M. Scanlon, Sccrcia^'of Siaicorthc Sinieof New Hampshire, do hereby cenify ihai TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY

ACTION PROGRAM, IKC- (TRUCOUNTV CAP) is o New Hampshire Nonproih Corporation registered to iraniaci business in

New Hampshire on May 18. 19611 funhcr certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of Slate's oflicc have

been reeetved and is in good standing as far as this oHice is concerned.

Business 10: 6i020

CeniHcaie Number: 0006I9S524

£
IS'

o

■A
%

<1

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be alVi.'ted

the Seal of the State ofNew Hampshire,

this 4ih day of April A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Sccrclsn-ofStotc



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

.Sandy Alonzo hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC: cannot be contract signatory)

1.1 am a duly elected board chair of _Ti1-Counly Community Action Program. Inc. .
(CorporationyLLC Name)

2. The fotlovwng is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholdera, duly called and .
held on June 27lh 2023 , at »¥hich a quorum of

(Dale)

the Oirectors/shareholders were present and voting.

VOTED: That Jeanne Robilard CEO and or Randall Pliotte CFO.
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

(may list more than one person)

Is duly authorized on behalf of TrI-County Community Action Program. Inc. _ to enter into contracts or agreements
with the Stale |.

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of Its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any end at)
documents, agreements and other instruments, end any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her ludgment bo desirable ornecessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not Cieen amended or repealed and remains in full force end effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendmenl to which this certificate Is attached. This eulhority remalrts valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of AuO>Ofity. I further certify that It is understood that the Slate of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the persoo(s) listed above currenlly occupy the
posilion{s) Indicated 8r>d that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind (he
all such timltations are expressly stated-hereln.

Dated.,

corporation in contracts with the Slate of New Hampshire.

Signature of Officer
Name: SendyAlomo
Title: Board Chair

Rev. 03/24/20



AcSrc/ CERTIFICATE of L ABILITY INSURANCE

TMS CERTlFtCATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OP OTFORMATlON ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATS DOES NOT AFRRUATTVELY OR NEOATIVCLV AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED OY THE POUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE 'a CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING IMSURER(8). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. |
IMPORTANT: If (h» c«fUfIc4t* Noldsr to •» AOOlTlONAL INSURED. UlS |Mllcy(l4t) ffluit D«v* AOOaiONAL INSURED provlslont or b« «nder«Bd.
B SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, «uB)«ct te.lM tonrn ftiid «on«ISen« d Uw poliey, ctruln peOci** may aquire en •n4or*t*n«nL A •uiBm«i*t en
thlt cftftincau dot* iwt confer rtgiiti to Uw cartlflcato heidsr In iitu d mcN •nclor*«tMnK*).
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MUWnC:

MuMiiO:
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TMS IS TO C£ATvr TMAT THC ̂ icss Of iNsuawce kiSTCO eeiow have b££n issueo to ths wsumo named above poa the aoiict pcaioo
M)CATEO. NOTVWTXSTAIOtNC AWT ABOWRSMIKT, ISAM OA COwOITION Of AM* CONTRACT OA OTHER DOCUMENT WOM AESRECT TO WRIICH TMO
CEATTCATe MAY BE OSUEO OA MAY RERTAW. THE INSURANCE ARFOAOEO BV THE AOllCeS OESCAfiED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO AU THE TERMS.
EXCiUSiOHS AND COHOmONS or SUCH ROLCCS. UiOTB SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY RaC CLAIMS-
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CERTIRICATE HOLQEA CANC6LLAT10M
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

T0 the Board of Directors of

Tr»-County Community Action Program. Inc. and Affiliate

Leone, ^
McDonnell
& Roberts

PitHuhni A<M>iario»
CUIVIU) fUBliCACOOUNTAXTS

NtOlABCSO • MOKT) I COCnVAY

DOvn • OONCCAA

tTlMTHAM

Report on Audit of the Financial Staternents

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Th>County Community
Action Program. Inc. and Affiliate (New Hampshire nonprofit organizations), which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as of June 30. 2022 and 2021. the related
consolidated statements of functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, the
related statement of activities for the year ended June 30. -2022. and the related notes to the
consolidated financial statements. •

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Ti>County Community Action Program. Inc. and Affiliate as of June 30,.
2022. and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles genera

Ba$/s for Opinion

ly accepted in the United States of America.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Ccmptroller| General of the United States. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described 19 the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Tri-County
Community Action Program. Inc. and Affiliate and to meet our other ethical responsibilities. In
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that-the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accotiinting principles gerierally accepted in the United
States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of intemal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial staterT>ents that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether
there are conditions or events, considered in |the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. atjid Affiliate's ability to continue as a going concern
within one year after the date that the consolidated financial statements are available to be

issued.



Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial StatenientSi

Our objectives are to obtair> reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated fioancial
statements as a v^ole are free from materiallmisstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditors' report that includes our jopinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with generally accepted.auditing standards an6~Government Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstMement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is|higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may Involve collusion, forgery,-intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. MIsstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user
based on the consolidated finaf>cial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing starvfards and
Government Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of matenal misstatement of the consolidated ftnanciaj
statements, whether due to fraud orjerror. and design and perform audit prociedures
responsive to those risks; Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts aryf disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal cr^trol relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. and Affiliate's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
pr^ntation of the cor^solidaled financiai statements.

•  Conclude whether. In our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about TrvCounty Community Action Program,
Inc. and Affiliate's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period.of time.

We are required to cohimunicate with those jcharged with governance regarding, among other
matters, (he planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related maners that we identified during the audit.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Tri-County Conimunity Action Program. Inc. and Affiliates' 2021
financial statements, and v^e expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial
statements in our report dated November 19.2021. In our opinion, the summarized comparative
information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30. 2021. Is consistent, in all
material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.



Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose o forming an opinion on the cortsolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Pad 200. Uniform Administrative
Requirements. Cost Principles., and Audit Ftequirements for Federal Awards, is presented for
purposes of additional-anaiysis and is not a required part of the ransolidated finanda! statements.
Such information Is the responsibility of management ar^d was derived from and relates directly to
the undertyir^g accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements artd cedaiin additional procedures. Including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the |undertyin9 accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statennents
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In bur opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is fairly stated, In all material respects, In relation to the consolidated financial statements
as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In ddcordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 15. 2022. on our consideration of Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.'s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of Its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report Is
solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over finandal reportirtg and
compliance and the results of that testing, andlnot to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-
County Community Action, Program, lnc.'s| internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report Is an Integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering Tri-County
over financial reportirtg and compliance.

Community Action Program, Inc.'s Internal control

North Conway, New Hampshire
November 15, 2022



TRI^OUNTVCQMMUMITY Ar ION PROGRAM INC. AND AFPIL lATP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OP FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 3Q| 2022 ANQ 7Q7^

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Ca»h and caah equivalents
Restricted cash. Guardianship Services Program
Accourtts receivable

Pledges receivable
Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets.

PROPERTY

Property and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS

Restricted cash

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of long term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued salaries

AccAied expenses
Refundable advances

Other liabiEties

Total current fiabiiities

LONG TERM DEBT
Long term debt, net of current portion

Total HabBlties

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

. Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2022

3.827,664

977,227
1,807,274

169,196

59,759

138.811

6,979,931

12,794.-151

(6,088,609)

6.705,542

410,431

S 14.095.904

2021

$  3.237,032

1,317.839

1.817,249
216,423

52,985

53,591

6,495.122

12.917,935

(5.850.185)

7,067.750

439,822

%  14.002.694

S  134.452 S  129,155

262.473 4.303

228,342 233,907
81,707 383.435

117,415 266,595

' 446,208 324,140

1,085,406 1,400.645

2,356,003 2.742,180

4.442.866 4.577.505

6.798.869 7.319.685

7,037.337 6,199.624

259,698 483,385

7,297,035 6,683,009

5 14.095,904 $ 14,002,694

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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TM-CQUWTY CQMMUNrTY ACTION PROGRAM INC. MQ Af FIL lATP

CONSOLIOATEO iSfATEMENT OF ACTMT1ES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2022 '

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATTV6 .NPQRMinft*!

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grants and contracts

PrOQrain funding
UUliy pragrama
<n-Und contributions

Contributions '

Pundralsing
Rental incoma

Inlereit Income

Gain (bu) on disposal o> propartr
OOttr ravenue

Total ravanuas and other supoori

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS

Toul ravanuas. othar support, and

nat assats ralaasad from raitrietions

FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
Program Services:

Agency Fund
Head Stan

Guaniiaiisnip
Transportation
Voluntaar

Woikloica Oavatopmtni
Canofl County Darvtai .
Support Canter
Homaiass

Energy and Communliy Dtvabpmeni
Eidar

Housing Servicts

Total program sanricas

Supporting ActMtias:
Ganaral and admWstrativa

Fundraising

Total supporting adivflies

Total runcOonal expanses

CHANCE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS. BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS. END OF YEAR

Without Donor

Rsstrtcttone

$ 32.697.364

1.176.926

1.662.329

226.341

140,576

6.616

797.436
-4a4

6.674
4.7aa

36.667.335

569.351

37.472.666

1.493.642

2.792.637

696.956
692.112

62.093

673.706

17.630.690

9.976.945

1.699.976
246.736

35.467.617

1.146.090

1.266

1.147.396

36.664.973

637.713

6.199.624

t  7.037.337

With Donor

RestHcileni

I  361.664

361.664

(965.3911

(223.6671

(223.687)

483.385

259,696

Sea Notes to Censolldated FInsnclel Sutenwnts

5

/

2022 2021
Totsi ToUl

t 33.019.026 S 16.711.4tO

1.178.926 1.177.937

1.662.325 2.699.293
226.341 364.960
140.976 462.340

6.616 1.802
797,436 684.189

464 asa

6.874 -  (27.286)

37.246.999 ' 24.048.495

37.249.999 24.046.499

1,493.642 1,017.660
2.792.837 2.696.419

696.996 760.093
692.112 670.076
82.093 .  96.617

• 40.175
673.706 . 669.641

. 396,399
17.630.690 4.760.909

9.976.949 . 6.941.927
1.099.976 1.192.493
246 736 192.'CtO

39.487.617 . .  21.354.301

^ 1.146.090 1.172,968

1.266

■  1.147.356 1.172.066

36 634.973 22.527.289

614.026 1.921.206

6.683.009 9.161.603

;  7.297.039 S 6.663.009
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TRI-CQUNTYCOMWUMin AC ION PROGRAM IMC AMD AFFtUATE

CONSOLiOATEO STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THg YEARS ENDEO JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

INFORMATION:

C«sh p«id during the )r«ir lor

iniefeei

3032 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net estets $  014.026 1  1.521.206

Ad}uiiments to reconcile change in net astels to '

net cash provided by operating ectMties;
Depreciation end emortizatlon 530.221 450.040

Lost (gain) on disposal of propehy (8.674) 27.288

-  Decrease (increase) in Bssets:
/^OHjnts receivable (190.025) (294.397)
Ptedgn racervabke 47.227 eo.s»4

tnventories (6.774) 49.445
Prepaid expenses (05.217) 24.288

Increase (decrease) in UaOBlties:

Accounts payable 250.170 (176.124)
Accrued cornpenseted absences (5.565) (9.872)
Accrued salaries (301.720) 334.370

Accrued expenses (149.180) 129,291

Refundable advances 122.060 142.677

Other CaUliiles (315.238) 549.063

NET CASH PROVIDEO 8Y OPERATING ACTIVITIES 499.110 2.83B.475

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from disposal el property - ■  ■0.074 25.000
Purchases of property end equipment (tS6.0l3) (700.217)

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (149.139) (755.217)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES \

RepaymeiM on lonp>lerm debt (129.342) (523.740)
Repayment on capital laase obflgaiions

• (3.554)

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1129.342) (527.294)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH 220.029 1.555.964

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR 4.994.093 3.438.729

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, END OF YEAR 5  5.215.322 $ 4.994.693

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW

95.593 136.435

Sm Notes to Coneolideted Flnsnciel Stetements

e



TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTIDN PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDAT :D FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

N0TE1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Ofaanization and Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. and its affiliate. Comerstone Housing North, Inc.
The two organizations are consolidated because Tri-County Community Action
Program, inc. controls 100% of the voting power of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
All significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the
basic financial statements. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (the
Organization) is a New Hampshire non-profit corporation that operates a wide
variety of community service programs which are funded primarily through grants or
contracts from various federal, stale, and local agencies. Cornerstone Housing
North. Inc. (Cornerstone) is a f^ew Hampshire nonprofit corporation that was
incorporated under the laws of the State of New Hampshire for the acquisition;
construction and operation of community-based housing for the elderly?

Nature of activities

The Organization's programs consist of the following;

Agency

Tri-County CAP Administration provides central program management
support and oversight to th'e Organization's many individual programs.
This includes planning and budget development, bookkeeping' and
accounting,, payroll and HR services, legal and audit services. IT support,
management support, financial support and central policy developnnent.

Tri-County CAP Administration is the liaison between Tri-County
Community Action Program,| Inc.'s, Board of Directors and its programs,
ensuring that programs comply with agreements made by the Board to
funding sources and vendors!

Other responsibilities include the management and allocation of funding
received through a Comrnunity Sen/ices Block Grant, as well as
management of the Organizabon's real estate property.

Head Start

■ Head Start provides comprehensive services to low-income children and
their families. Head Start supports children's growth and development in a
positive learning environment through a variety of activities as well as
providing services, which include in addition to early learning, health and
family well-being. All childrerji receive health and development screenings,
nutritious meals, oral health and mental health support. Parents and
families are supported in achieving their owri igoals, such as housing
stability, continued education! and financial stability.



TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM IMC AND AFFILIATF

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

\

Programs support and strengthen parent-child relationships as their child's
primary educator. Head Start staff work as partners with parents to identify
and provide individualized activities that support their child's growth and
development.

Tri-County Community Action Head Start funded enrollment Is 217, but
over the course of the program year serves approximately 250 childreri in
Carroll. Coos & Grafton counties in 9 locations with 13 center-based
classrooms and 1 home-based option.

Guardianship

The Organization's Guardianship program provides advocacy and guardian
services for the. vulnerable population of New Hampshire residents
(developmentally disabled, ̂ chronically mentally ill, traumatic brain.injury,
and Ihe elderly sufferinp from Alzheimer's, dementia, and multiple rt>€dical
issues) who need a guardian and who have no family member or friend
willing, able, or suitable to serve in that capacity. This program serves over
400 individuals. Additional services include, conservatorship.
representative "payee-ship, federal fiduciary services, benefit management
services and private probate accounting services.

Transportation

The Organization's transit program provides various transportation
services: public bus routes, Idoor-to-door sen/ice by request, long distance
medical travel to medical facilities outside our regular service, area, and
special trips for the elderly to go shopping and enjoy other activities that
are located outside the regular sen/ice area. The Organization's fleet of 17
wheelchair accessible vehicles offers transportation options to the elderly
and disabled, as well as to the general public.

Volunteer

The Coos County Retired,& Senior Volunteers Program (RSVP) maintains
a minimum group of 211 volunteers, ages 55 and older, of which 41
actively sen/ed during the last reporting period. These volunteers share
their skills, life experiences] and time with over 60 local non-profit and
public agencies throughout Coos County that depend on volunteer
assistance to meet the neec
over 20,000 hours yearly.

s of their constituents. Our volunteers donate

Workforce Development

The Organization is assistin'g transitional and displaced workers as they
prepare for new jobs, and also assisting currently-employed workers to
gain the skills required for better jobs.

10



TRI-CbUNTY COMMUNITY ACTIDN PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDAT:D FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. ̂022 AND 2021

The Organizalion is helping to implement New Hampshire's Unified State
Plan for Workforce Development, in line with the federal Workforce
Investment Act. Workforce| training programs, with training facilities in
three towns, provide temporary assistance for needy families (TANF)
recipients with 20-30 hours per week of training in the areas of employment
skills, computer, skills, an'd business experience, and also place
participating TANF recipients in communjtyrbased work experience sites.

Carroll County Dental

Tamworth Dental Center (the Center) offers state of the art quality oral
healthcare to uninsured families and individuals. The Center offers a full

array of services including preventative, restorative, and oral surgery. The
Center accepts most dental insurances, state insurances, and offers a
sliding fee scale based on income ratio to federal poverty guidelines. The
school-based project of the Center has undergone modifications necessary
due to the pandemic. 9 outreach schools within the vicinity of the Center
will be made. Education, treatments, and referrals will be made available.

Support Cantor

The Organization's Support Center at Burch House provides direct sen/ice
and shelter to victims and survivors of domestic and sexual violence and

stalking in Northern Graftdn County. Support Center services are
accessible 24 hours a day, 365 days a year'. They include: crisis
intervention; supportive counseling; court, hospital and policy advocacy
and accompaniment; emergency shelter: support groups; community
education and outreach; violence prevention programs for students;
information,

resources.

referrals and assistance accessing other community

Homeless

Horrteless services Include ah outreach intervention and prevention project
that strives to prevent individuals and families from becoming homeless,
and assists the already homeless in securing safe, affordable housing. The
Organization provides temporary shelter space for homeless clients.

The Organization also provides some housing rehabilitation services to
help preserve older housing stock.

11



TRI-COUNTY GOMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021 *

Energy Assistance and Outreach

Energy Assistance Services {provide fuel and electric assistance through
direct pay to vendors or a discount on the client's bill. Community Contact
sites allow local participants
other emergency services.
Organization's clients about
programs available through o

access to energy assistance programs and
The offices provide information to the

other programs offered, as well as other
her organizations in (he community.

Low-fncome Weatheriiation

The NH weatherization program helps low-income families, elderly,
disabled, small , children and individuals lower their home energy costs;
increase their health, safety, 'and comfort; and improve the quality of living
while improving housing stock in communities around the state utilizing
energy cost saving, health arid safety and carbon lowering measures. The
NH Weatherization Assistance Program also creates local NH jobs.

Elder

The Organization's elder program provides senior meals in 4 community
dining sites, home delivered
homebound elderly, and

meals (Meals on Wheels) to the frail and
senior nutrition education and related

prograrhming. The Coos County Servicelink Aging & Disability Resource
Center assists with person-centered counseling, Medicare counseling.
Medicaid assistance, long-term care counseling services, and caregiver
supports.

Housing Services

Cornerstone Housing North Inc. (Cornerstone) is subject to a Project
Rental Assistance Contract (PRAC) with the United States Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD), and a significant portion of their
rental income is received from HUD.

Cornerstone includes a 12-unil apartment complex in Berlin, New
Hampshire for the elderly. This operates under Section 202 of the National
Housing Act and is regulatecl by HUD with respect to the rental charges
and operating methods.

12



TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

•  FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

/

Cornerstone has a Sectiorl 202 Capital Advance. Under guidelines
established by the U.S. O^fftce of Management and Budget Uniform
Guidance. Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, the Section 202 Capita! Advance is
considered to be a major program. A separate audit is performed as it
relates to Cornerstone's compliance with its major federal program in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America; the standards | applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States and the audit requirements of Title 2 of U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles and Audit Requirements of Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
An unmodified opinion was issued.

Method of accounting

The consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. have been pr^ared utilizing the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as
promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC). Under this basis, revenue, other than contributions,
and expenses are reported when
payment of cash.

incurred without regard to the date of receipt or

Basis of presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require the
Organization to report information regarding its financial position and activities
according to the following net asset classifications:

j  t
Net assets without donor restrictions include net assets that are not subject
to any donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets may
be used at the discretion of the Organization's management and board of
directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions include net assets subject to stipulations
imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in
nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the
donor has stipulated the funcs be maintained in perpetuity.

The Organization has net assets with donor restrictions of $259,698 and $483,365
at June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. See Note 13.
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TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM IMC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

, FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

Contributions

Contributions received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net
assets with donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any
dbnor-imposed restrictions. Support that is restricted is reported as an increase in
net assets without donor restrictions if the restriction expires in the reporting period
in which the contribution is recognized. All other donor restricted contributions are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the
restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are
reclassified to net assets without |donor restrictions and reported in the statement of
activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount rnanagement expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year-end. Most of the receivables are amounts due from
federal and state awarding agencies and are based oh reimbursen^nt for
expenditures made under specific grants or contracts. A portion of the accounts
receivable balance represents arnounts due from patients at Carroll County Dental
program. Past due receivables are written off at management's discretion using the
direct write off method; this is not|Considered a departure from accounting principles
generally accepted in the United Stale because the effects of the direct write off
method approximate those of thelaOowance method. Management selects accounts
to be writfen off after analyzing past payment history, the age of the accounts
receivable, and collection rates fgr receivables with similar characteristics, such as
length of time outstanding,
outstanding accounts receivable.

he Organization does not charge interest on

Property and Depreciation

Acquisitions of buildings, equipment, and improvements in excess of $5,000 and all
expenditures for repairs, maintenance, and betterrrients that materially prolong the
useful lives of assets are capitalized. Buildings, equipment, and improvements are
stated at cost less accumulatedjdepreciation. Depreciation is provided using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.

Depreciation expense related to assets used solely by an individual program is
charged directly to the related program. Depreciation expense for assets used by
more than one program is charged to the program based upori a square footage or
other similar allocation.

Depreciation expense related to. administrative assets is included in the indirect cost
pool and charged to the programs in accordance with the indirect cost plan.
Maintenance and repairs that do riot materially prolong the useful lives of assets are
charged to expense as incurred.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

Estimated useful lives are as follows;

Buildings and improvements
Vehicles

Furniture and equipment

20 to 40 years
5 to 8.5 years
5 to 15 years

Clier^t Rents and HUD Rent Subsidy ^ .

Cornerstone Housing North. Inc.'s rents are approved on an annual basis by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. Rental increases are prohibited
without such approval. The clients are charged rent equal to 30% of their Income
less adjustments allowed by the Department of Housing and Urban Development.
Rent subsidies are received from the Department of Housing and Urban
Development for the difference
received from the clients.

between the allowed rents and the amounts

Refundable Advances

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized
as revenue in the period in which the related services or expenditures are
performed or incurred. Funds rec|eived in advance of grantor conditions being met
aggregated $446,208 and $324,140 as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Nonprofit tax status

The Organization is a not-for-profit, Section 501(c)(3) organization in accordance
with the Internal Revenue Code. It' has been classified as an organization that is not
a private foundation under the Internal Revenue Code and qualifies for a charitable
contribution deduction for donors.l The Organization files information returns in the
United Stales. The Organization's Federal Form 990 (Return of Organization
Exempt from Income Tax), is subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three
years after it is filed. ^

The Organization follows FASB ASC 740, Accounting for Income Taxes, which
cliarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition and
measurement of tax positions tal<en or expected to be taken in a lax return. The
Organization does nol believe they have taken uncertain tax positions, therefore, a
liability for income taxes associated with uncertain tax positions has not been
recognized.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is exempt from income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The'internal Revenue Service has
determined the Organization to
meaning of Section 509(a).

be other than a private foundation within (he
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TRI^QUNTYCOtyiMUNITYACT ON PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATg

NOTES TO CONSOLIDA7EO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

Retirement plan

The Organization maintains a tax-sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the Internal
contribute to the plan beginning

Revenue Code. AH employees are eligible to
on the date they are employed. Each employee

may elect salary reduction agreement contributions in accordance with limits
allowed in the Internal Revenue Code. Employer contributions are at. the
Organization's annual discretion. | In January 2013, employer contribution payments
ceased, therefore as of June 3,0. 2022 and 2021, there were no discretionary
contributions recorded. Further information can be obtained from the

Organization's 403(b) audited financial statements.

Donated services and goods

Contributions of donated service|s that create or enhance non-fmancial assets or
that require specialized .skills and would typically need to be purchased if not
provided by donation are recorded at their fair values in the period received.

Contributed noncash assets are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. If
donors stipulate how lorig the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded
as net assets with donor restrictions. In the absence of such stipulations,
contributions

restrictions.

of noncash asse s are recorded as net assets without donor

Donated property and equipment

Donations of property and equiprnent are recorded as support at their estimated fair
value at the date of donation. Such donations are reported as net assets without
donor restrictions unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific

explicit restrictions regarding their use and
be used to acquire property and equipment are

reported as net assets with donor restrictions. Absent donor stipulations regarding
how long those donated assets must be maintained, the Organization reports
expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in
service as instructed by the donor. The Organization reclassifies net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions at that time.

purpose. Assets donated with

contributions of cash that must
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TRi.CQUhJTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM INC AND AFFtLIATF

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

Pfbmlses to Give

Conditional promises) to give are not recognized in the financial statements until the
conditions are substantially met. Unconditional promises to give that are expected
to be collected within one year are recorded at the net realizable value.
Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one
year are recorded at fair value, which is measured as the present value of their
future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are computed using risk-
adjusted interest rates applicable! to the years in which the promises are received.
Amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue. In the absence of

donor stipulations to the contrary,! promises with payments due in future periods are
restricted to use after the due date. Promises that remain uncollected more than

one year after their due dates |are written off unless the donors indicate that
payment is merely, postponed. yVhen a restriction expires, net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassified to net| assets without donor restrictions. There were no
unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one
year at June 30. 2022 and 2021.

As of June 30, 2022 and 2021. here were promises to give that were absent of
donor stipulations, but restricted in regards to timing, and therefore classifted as net

in the amount of $169,196 arid $216,423,

uded in grants and coritracts in the Consolidated
assets with donor restrictions

respectively. This arhount is inc
Statement of Activities.

Use of estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United jstates of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent a'ssets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Accounting Standards Codification No. 625 (ASC 825), Disclosures ofFelr Value of
Financial Instruments, requires Ithe Organization to disclose fair values, of its
financial instruments. The. .carrying amount of the Organization's financial
instruments which consists of cash, accounts receivable, deposits and accounts
payable, approximate fair value because of the short-term maturity , of those
instruments.

functional allocation of expem£S
The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated among the program services and supporting activities
t>enented.
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TRI.CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATEO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

Program salaries and related expenses are allocated

programs and supporting |services based on actual or
employees spend on each function as reported on a timesheet.

to the various

estimated time

Vi/orkors Compensation expenses are charged to each program based upon
the classification of each employee and allocated to the various program
based upon the time employees spend on each function as noted above.

Paid Leave is charged to a
percentage of total salaries.

eave pool and is allocated to each program as a

Fringe Benefits are charged to a Fringe Benefit Pool. These expenses
include employer payroll taxes, pension expenses, health and dental
insurance and unemployment compensation. The pool is allocated to each
program based upon a percentage of salaries.

Depreciation expense is allocated to each program based upon specific
assets used by the program and is reported as depreciation expense on the
staten^ents of ̂ notional expenses.

Other occupancy expenses are applicable to assets which are used by
multiple programs. Buildings' are primarily charged to the benefiting program
based upon an analysis of square footage. Costs related to a building include
depreciation, insurance, utilities, building maintenance, etc. These costs are
reported as space costs on tie statements of functional expenses.

Insurance: automobile insurance is allocated to programs based on vehicle
usage; building liability insurance is allocated to programs based on square
footage of the buildings; andjinsurance for furriiture and equipment is allocated
to programs using the book basis of the insured assets.

The remaining shared expenses are charged to an Indirect Cost Pool and
are allocated to each progra^ based upon a percentage of program expenses.
The expenses include items such as administrative salaries, general liability
insurance, administrative travel, professional fees, and other expenses which
cannot be specifically identified and charged to a program.
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

The Organization submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits and other indirect costs|to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services. The proposal, effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, received
provisional approval and is effectijve, until amended, at a rate of 12%. The actual
rales for the years ended June 30: 2022 and 2021 were approximately 10.95% and
11.37%. respectively, which is allowable because it is less than the provisional rate.

Adyertising policy

The Organization uses advertising to inform the community about the programs it
offers and the availability of services. Advertising is expensed as incurred. The total
cost of advertising for the years ended Jurie 30. 2022 and 2021 was $6,696 and
$28,130, respectively.

Debt Issuance Costs

During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Organization retrospectively adopted the
provisions of the FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2015-03,
'Simplifying the Presentation of^Debt. Issuance Costs' The ASU is limited to
simplifying the presentation of debt issuance costs, and the recognition and
measurement guidance for debt' issuance costs is not affected by the ASU.
Amortization expense of $887 has been included with interest expense in the
consolidated statements of functional expenses for both 2022 and 2021.

^  I
Revenue Recognition Policy |
The Organization derives revenue prim.arily from grants, contracts, and
contributions. Grants are recogriized as revenue upon receipt. Revenue from
contracts is recognized-when the service has been performed. Contributions are
recognized as revenue when the donor makes a pledge to give that is, in
substance, an unconditional promise. Contributions are recorded as with donor
restrictions or without donor restrictions.

Other Matters

The impact of the novel coronajVirus (COVID-IS) and measures to prevent its
spread continue to affect the Organization's business. The significance of the
impact of these disruptions, including the extent of their adverse impact on the
Organization's financial operational results, will be dictated by the length of time
that such disruptions continue and, in turn, will depend on the currently unknowable
duration of the COVIO-19 pandemic and the impact of governmental regulations
that might be imposed in response to the pandemic.

During the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, and through the date of this
report, the Organization has not experienced a significant decline in revenues, nor a
significant change in its operations.
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

New Accounting Pronouncement.

In September 2020, the FASB i«ued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No.
2020-07, Not-for-profit Entities (ijopic 958): Presentation and Disclosures by Not-
for-Profit Entities for Contributed Nonfiriancial Assets, intended to improve
transparency in the reporting ofjcontributed nonfinancia! assets, also known as
gifts-in-kind, for not-for-profit organizations. Examples of contributed nonfinancia!
assets include fixed assets such as land, buildings, and equipment; the use of fixed
assets or, utilities; materials and supplies, such as food or clothing; intangible
assets; and recognized contributed services. The ASU requires a not-for-profit
organization to present contributed nonfinancial assets as a separate tine item in
the statement of activities, apart frjom contributions of cash or other financial assets.
It also requires certain disclosures for each category of contributed nonfinancial
assets recognized. The Organization adopted the new standard effective July 1
2021.

NOTE 2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The following represents the Org
and 2021:

anization's financial assets as of June 30. 2022

Financial assets at year-end:
Cash and cash equivalents, undesignated'
Restricted cash. Guardianship Services
Program

Accounts receivable

Pledges receivable
Restricted cash

Total financial assets

Less amounts not available to be

used within one year:
Net assets with donor restrictions

Restricted cash. Guardianship Services
Program

Restricted cash

Less net assets with time restrictions to be
met in less than a year |

I

Amounts not available within one year

2022 2021

$  3.827.664 $  3.237.032

977,227 1.317.839
1,807,274 1,617.249
169,196 216,423
410431 439.822

7.191.792 6.828.365

259,698 483,385

977,227 1,317,839
410,431 439,822

1207.8791 f412.6651

Financial assets available to meet c

1.439.477 1.828.381

eneral

expenditures over the next twelve months S 5 752 315 % 4 999 984
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

It is the Organization's goal to maintain financial assets to meet 60 days of
operating expenses which approximates $5,899,000 and $3,569,000 at June 30.
2022 and 2021. respectively.

NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash.and cash equivalents consiist of cash on hand, funds on deposit with financial
institutions, and investments with original maturities of three months or less.. At
year end and throughout the | year, the Organization's cash balances were
deposited with multiple financial institutions. The balances are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) for each financial institution up to
$250,000. Cash balances may exceed the insured limits at times throughout the
year.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and restricted cash reported
within the statements of financial position that sum to the total in the statements of
cash flows as of June 30:

Cash, operations
Restricted cash, current
Restricted cash, long term

Total cash and restricted cas

2022

3.827.664

977,227
410.431

2021

S 3,237,032

1.317,839
439.822

»  8 4 994 693

.Cash Restrictions

The Organization is required to rnaintain a deposit account with a bank as part of
the loan security agreement dis'closed at Note 7. It is required to maintain a
balance of $19,968 in the account, which is restricted from withdrawal except to
make payments of debt service or as approved by the U.S. Department of
Agriculture.

Amounts withdrawn to make payments of debt service must be replenished with
rrwnthly deposits until the maximum required deposit balance is achieved. The
balance as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 was $20,069 and $20,059, respectively.
The Organization has made all 'of their^ scheduled deposits for the years ended
June 30, 2022 and 2021. These amounts are included in'restricted cash in the
Consolidated Statements of Finaricial Position.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021 -

The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with another bank as
part of a bond issue (see bond payable in Note 7). The required balance in the
account is $173,817 and is equal to 12 monthly payments. The balance as of June
30. 2022 and 2021 was $174,807 and $174,755..respectively, and the Organization
was in compliance with this requirement. These amounts are included in restricted
cash in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization maintains a deposit account on behalf of clients who participate in
the Guardianship Services Program. The balance in the account is restricted for
use on behalf of these clients and an offsetting liability is reported on the financial
statements as other current liabilities. The total current liability related to this
restriction at June 30, 2022 and 2021 was $977,227 and $1,317,839, respectively,

These amounts are included in jother liabilities on the Statements of Financial
Position. The total restricted cash within this account at June 30, 2022 and 2021
was $977,227 and $1,317,839, respectively, and is included in the restricted cash,
Guardianship Services Program balance on the Statements of Financial Position.

Certain cash accounts related to Cornerstone Housing North. Inc. are restricted for
certain uses in the Organization! under rules and regulations prescribed by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. The total amount restricted at
June 30, 2022 and 2021 was $215,555 and $245,008. respectively. See Note IS.

NOTE 4. INVENTORY

In 2022 and 2021, inventory inc
purchased in bulk. These items
inventory is taken annually. Cos

uded weatherlzation materials which had been

are valued at the most recent cost. A physical
is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO)

method. Inventory at June 30, 2022 and 2021 consists of weatherlzation materials.
totaling $59,759 and $52,985, res}ectively.

NOTE 5. PROPERTY

Property consists of the following at June 30. 2022;

Capitalized Accumulated Net

Building
Equipment
Construction

in progress
Land

Cost

$ 10,039,601
2,329,022

6,688
418.^0

Depreciation Book Value

$4,426,613 $5,612,988
1,661,996 667.026

6,688
:  418.840

^1^794 151 S 6 088 609 $6 705.542
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NOTES TO CONSOLIOATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

Properly consists of the following at June 30, 2021;

Capitalized Accumulated Net
Cost i Deofeciatlon Book Value

Building
Equipment
Construction

in progress
Land

$ 9.931.9S3
2.394.469

172.653
418.840

$ 4.233.084 $ 5.698.869

1,617.101 777.388

172,653
418.840

»12 917 935 8 5 850.185 8 7 067 750

The Organization has use of computers and equipment which are the property of .
state and federal agencies underj grant agreements. The equipment, whose book
value is immaterial to the financial statements, is not included in the Organization'sproperty and equipment totals. |
Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 totaled
$519,334 and $449,415, respectively.

NOTE 6. ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES

For the years ending June 30. 2022 and 2021, employees of the Organization were
eligible to accrue vacation for ajmaximum of 160 hours. At June 30, 2022 and
2021, the Organization had accrued a liability for future annual leave time that Its
employees had earned and vested in the amount of $228,342 and $233,907,
respectively.

NOTE 7. LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt of the Organization as of June 30. 2022 and 2021 consisted of
the following:

Note payable with the USDA requiring 360 monthly
installments of $1,664. including! interest at 5% per
annum. Secured by general business assets. Final
installment due January 2027.

2022 2021

$  60,546 $ 96,062
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

Note payable with a bank requiring 120 monthly
installments of $2,936. including' interest at 4% per
annum. Secured by
commercial properties.
2031.

first mortgages on two
Final installment due April

Bond payable with a bank requiring monthly
installments of $14,485, including interest of 2.75%
plus the bank's internal cost of |funds multiplied by
67% with an indicative rate of 3.28%. Secured by
flrsl commercial real estate mortgage on various
properties and assignrhents of rents at various
properties. Final installrftent due 'August 2040.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. capital advance
due to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development. This capital advance is not subject to
interest or principal amortization and will be forgiven
after 40 years, or in August 2047.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. mortgage payable
due to New Hampshire Housing' Firiance Authority.
The mortgage is not subject to interest or principal
amortization. Payments are deferred for 40 years;
final payment due in August 2047.

Total long term debt before unamortized debt
issuance costs |

Unamortized debt issuance costs

Total long term debt
-  Less current portion due within one year

2022 2021

261,160 285.268

2.377,169 2.467,774

1.617,600 1,617,600

250.000 250.000

4,586.475 4.716.704
f9.1571 (10.0441

4,577,318 4,706.660

(134.4521 (129.1551

$ 4.442.866 $4,577,505
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

The scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of June 30, 2022 were as follows:

Years ending
June 30

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

Thereafter

Amount

$  134.452

139,961
145,697

151,677

148.112

3.866.576

i 4 586 475

As described at Note 3, the Orgarjiization is required to maintain a reserve account
with a bank for the first two notes payable listed above.(

NOTE 9. DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE

The Organization has available a $750,000 line of credit with its primary financial
institution which is secured by real estate mortgages and assignments of leases
arid rents on various propertiesj as disclosed in the line of credit agreement.
Borrowings under the line bear interest for the years ended June. 30, 2022 and
2021 at 5.75% and 4.25% per| annum, respectively. There was no balance
outstanding at June 30, 2022 and 2021. The line is subject to renewal each
January.

NOTE 10. OPERATING LEASES

The Organization has entered into numerous lease commitments for space and
office equipment. Leases underj non-cancelable lease agreements have various
starting dates, lengths, and terms of payment and renewal. Additionally, the
Organization has several facilities
the years ended June 30, 2022
facilities and office equipment tota

which are leased on a month to month basis. For

and 2021, the annual rent expense for leased
ed $141,620 and $138,598, respectively.
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTIDN PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE
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Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases having
initial terms in excess of one year as of June 30, 2022, are as follows:

Years ending
June 30

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

Amount

$  99,533
43,884

43,884
42,579

3.512

I  233.392

NOTE 11. IN-KINO CONTRIBUTIONS

The Organization records the value of in-kind contributions according to the
accounting policy described in Note 1. The Head Start, Transportation and Elder
programs rely heavily on volunteers who donate their services to the Organization.
These services are valued base^ upon the comparative market wage for similar
paid positions.

The fair value of donated services included as contributions in the consolidated

rmancial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2022 are as follows:

ead Start

Senior

Meals Total

Professional services and

services for disabled

Packing, setup, and delivery
of congregate and home
delivered meals

Total I

2.479 $

55.360

2,479

55.360

2m S 55360 5 57839

The fair value of donated services included as contributions in the consolidated

financial statements and the corresponding program expenses.for the year ended
June 30. 2021 are as follows:
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Professional services and $ 11.274 $

services for disabled

Volunteer driver program

Head Start Transit Total

"  ' - $ 11.274
29.663 29.663

. Total 2  iim i S

Numerous volunteers have donated significant amounts of time to the
Organization's program services. Although no amounts have been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements] management estimates the fair value of those
services to be approximately $277
2022 and 2021, respectively.

,300 and $340;000 for the years ended June 30.

The Organization is also the beneficiary of a donation of in kind in the form of below
market rent for some of the facilities utilized by the Head Start and Elder programs.
The value of thd in-kind rent is I recorded at the difference between the rental
payment and .the market rate for the property based upon a recent appraisal.

The fair value of donated facilities included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30. 2022 are as follows;

Head Start

Senior

Meals Total

Difference between rent

paid and market rate L Sim ̂  ^ S 6Q03Q

The fair value of donated facilities included as contributions in the consolidated

financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2021 are as follows:

Head Start

Senior

Meals Total

Difference between rent

paid and market rate 15A33 $ 1.800 S 117.233
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The fair value of other gifts in kind included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding^program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2022 are as follows:

Employee use of home
Donated goods

Hotel rooms for homeless clients

Total

Head Start Housing

$  56,788 $

1,400

52.284

Total

$  56,788

1,400

52.284

i  » 53.684 S 110 472

The fair value of other gifts in kind included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2021 are as follows:

Employee use of home

Donated goods

Hotel rooms for homeless clients

Total

Head Start Housino Total

$  147.567 $ -  $ 147.567

2,385 2,385

56.456 56.458

i H7.S67 ^ 58 843 1 706 41Q

NOTE 12. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. receives a majority of its support from
federal and state governments. { For the years ended June 30. 2022 and 2021,
approximately $32,598,596 (88%) and $18,238,690 (76%). respectively, of the'
Organization's total revenue wasjrecerved from federal and state governments. If a
signiHcant reduction in the level of support were to occur, it would have a significant
impact on the Organization's programs and activities.

I  • • \

Cornerstone Housing North, lnc.{ receives a large majority of its support from the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. For the years ended June
30. 2022 and 2021, approximately 67% and 68%, respectively; of the
Organization's total revenue wasjderived from the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development. In the absence of additional revenue sources, the future
existence of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. Is dependent upon the funding
policies of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACT ON PROGRAM INC. AND AFPIUATg

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021'

The majority of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s assets are apartment projects,
for which operations are concentraled in the elderly person s real estate market. In
addition, the Organization operates in a regulated environment. The operation of
the Organization is subject to administrative directives, rules and regulations of
federal, state and local regulatory agencies, including, but not limited to, HUD.
Such administrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an
act of Congress or an administrative change mandated by HUD. Such changes
may occur with little notice or inadequate funding to pay for the related cost,
including the administrative burden, to comply with the change.

NOTE 13. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following specific program
2services as of June 30. 2022 and 02.1:

2022 2021

Temporary Municipal Funding $  169,196 $ 216,423
Restricted Buildings 38,084 39,913
Loans - HSGP 24.234 24,403
FAP/EAP 12,079 16,330
RSVP Program Funds 6,255 5,887
CO Coos 6,132
Head Start 2,370 •

RSVP - Matter to Balance 500 500
CO Carroll 427

CO Grafton ' 421
Head Start • 5,856
10 Bricks Shelter Funds 17
FAP

- 174.056

Total net assets with donor restrictions

NOTE 14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

rR&S,688 S 483 385

Grant Compliance

The Organization receives funds |under several federal and state grants. Under the
terms of the grants the Organization is required to comply with various stipulations
including use and time restrictions. If the Organization was found to be
noncompliant with the provisionsj of the grant agreements, the Organization could
be liable to the grantor or face discontiriuation of funding.
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TRI^QUNTY community ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30:^2022 AND 2021

Environmental Contingencies

On March 30. 2009, the Organizaiion's Board of Directors agreed to secure
ownership of a 1.2-acre site located in Berlin. New Hampshire. There are 2
buildings on this site designated as the East Wing and West Wing Buildings which
were formerly used as a research and development facility for the Berlin Mills
Company.

The exterior soil and interior parts of the East Wing Building contained
contaminants which required environmental remediation. In a letter dated May 2,
2012, the State of New Hampshire Department of Environment Services (the
Department) noted that the remedial actions.for the exterior soils and parts of the
East Wing Building had been com )leted to the Department's satisfaction.

In addition, the Department notec
Building did not pose an exposure
environment, provided the West
structural deterioration. If further

that the contaminants related to the West Wing
hazard to site occupants, area residents, and the
Wing Building is maintained to preverit further

deterioration occurs and contaminants are

released into the environment, the Organization could be required to take additional
action including containment and remediation.

Loss Contingencies

During the year ended June 30, 2018 and subsequently, legal actions were brought
against the Organization. The Organization accrued $41,291 as of June 30. 2022
as that is the expected amount that the Organization wijl be held liable for.

NOTE 15. REPLACEMENT RESERVE AND RESIDUAL RECEIPTS ACCOUNTS
Under Cornerstone Housing North. Inc.'s regulatory agreement with HUD, the
Organization is required to set aside amounts into a replacement reserve for, the
replacement of property and other project expenditures approved by HUO. HUO-
restricted deposits of $208,162 arid $181,723 were held in a segregated account at
June 30. 2022 and 2021, respectively. HUD-restricted deposits generally are not
available for operating purposes.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s use of the residual receipts account is contingent
upon HUD'S prior written approval. Residual receipts of $3,003 and $59,517 were
held in a segregated account
respectively.

or the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021,
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TRI.COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021.

Under the regulatory agreement. Comerstone Housing North, Inc.'s is required to set
aside amounts for the return of resident paid deposits. At June 30, 2022 and 2021
$4,390 and $3,766, respectively, were held in a segregated account and generaDy are
not available for operating purposes.

HUD has initiated policies to recapture funds built up in residual receipts accounts

upon renewal of the Organization's project rental assistance contract. The policies
direct that the amounts in excess of certain limits in the residual receipts account be
(a) used to offset rent subsidies due from HUD under HAP contracts, or (b) remitted
directly to HUD. The policies generally require project owners to limit the monies
accumulated in the residual receipts account to $250 per unit.

In accordance with the policy noted above, the Organization was required to remit
funds to HUD totaling $71,396 during the year ended June 30, 2022.

NOTE 16. RECt-ASSIFtCATION

Certain amounts and accounts rom the prior year's financial statements were
reclassified to enhance comparability with the current year's financial statements.

NOTE 17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization has evaluated events through November 15. 2022, which is the
date that the financial statements were available to be issued.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED

ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCliAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUPmNG STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of

Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
Slates of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States . the financial
statements of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2022 and
2021, and the related statements of functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then
ended, the related statement of activities for the year ended June 30. 2022. and the related
notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 15.
2022.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (iriternal control) as
a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the | financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effeclfveness| of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County
Community Action Prograrn, Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal 'course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements. on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,| in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented^
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a defitiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be mateilal weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
Our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not
identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether TrI-County Community Action
Program, Inc.'s financial statements are free|from material misstatement, we performed tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant.agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.
However, providing an opinion on compliancej with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed
no instances of noncompliance or other rnatters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to deschlie the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, an^ not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing • Standards in considering the
organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

/9lcO^^'VvyuU>- A

North Conway, New Hampshire
November IS. 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REIi>ORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of

Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Fedorai Program

We have audited Tri-County Community Ac ion Program, Inc.'s compliance with the types of
compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the QMS Compliance Supplement
that could have a direct and material effect on each of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2022. Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc.'s major federal programs are identifted in the. summary of auditors' results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. complied, in all material respects,
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30. 2022.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform
Guidance are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report.
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We are required to be indeper^dent of Tfi-County Cornmunity Action Program. Inc. and to meet
our other ethical responslbilities. in accordance with relevant ethical requirements-relating to
our audit. We believe that the audit evidence |we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does
not provide a legal determination of Tri-Coun'ty Community Action Program, Inc.'s compliance
with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

I

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of efFective inlernal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant
agreements applicable to TrI-County Community Action Program. Inc.'s federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with
the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and
express an opinion on Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s compliance based on our
audit. Reasonable assurance is a high levelj of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards. Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always
detect material noncompliance when it exists'. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance
resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional ornissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate. It would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user of the r^eport on compliance about Tri-County Community
Action Program. Inc.'s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as ai
whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we;

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc.'s compliance with the | compliance requirements referred to above and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

•  Obtain an understanding of Tri-Cointy Community Action Program. Inc.'s internal
control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with thej Uniform GuidarSce, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc.'s internal control over compliance. Accoirdingiy, no such opinion is expressed.
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We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of| the audit and any signiricant-deficiencies and
material weaknesses In internal control over compliance that we Identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees. In the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompllance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
Internal control over compliance Is a denciency. or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such' that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a

requirement of a federal program will not be
timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal

control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in internal control

attention by those charged with governance.
over compliance, yet important enough to merit

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of|Compliance section above and was not designed
to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance ' that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in jinternal control over compliance. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were
not identified.

Our audit was. not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly no such opinion is expressed.

•s

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliaijice and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

North Conway, New Hampshire
November 15, 2022
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TRI^QUNTY CQMMUN TY ACTION PROGRAM INC

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGSAND QUESTIONEO COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2022

1. The auditors' reporl expresses an unmodified opinion on the fmancial statements of Tri-
County Community Action Program, Inc.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to t
the Independent Auditors' Report on
Compliance end other Matters Based

"^e audit of the financial statements are reported in
Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in

Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Tri-County
Community Action Program. Inc. which would be required to be reported in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies.in internal control.over major federal award programs during
the audit are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each
Major Program and on Internal Control, over Compliance Required by the Uniform
Guidance.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major
programs.

6. No audit findings that are required to
are reported in this Schedule.

Pe reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)

7. The programs tested as major programs included;

U.S. Department of Health & Human Services. Head Start - ALN 93.600

U.S. Department of the Treasury, Emergency Rental Assistance Program - ALN
21.023

U.S. Department of Health & Human Services, Aging Cluster - ALN 93.044,
93.045, 93.053

8. The threshold for distinguishing Jype A and B programs was $934,818.

9. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. was determined to be a low-rtsk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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Tri-Couoty Commuoity Action Progrfinif Inc.
Fuel Assisiance Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from Amount Paid from

this Contract this Contract

Jeanne Robiltard Chief Executive Officer i SI 32.000 0%

Randall Pilotte .Chief Financial Officer 1 $90.000. 0%

Brenda Oagne Chief Program Officer 1 $77,080 0%

Joshua Poissoh Program Director 1 $50,000 50% $25,000



Jeanne L. Robillard

CORE STRENGTHS
I

Prognm developmcni. minagcmcnt and adfrunUuadon * Community coHaboradona
Dcvelopmcnr of policy, protocol] and tcrvia delivccy to meet fundcr standard*

Grant uiiting and management • Budget performance and nnanciai reporting
Innovative solutions & problem solving * Capacity building

Professional preS4mutions * Public speaking
Oedictbon ' * Imaginadon « Dcterminadon * Fordtude

PROFE.CSIO?VAL EXPERgENCE

Tr(«CoaBly Commooitj Aeiioo Programs, lae.
Clurf Exccatirc OEtaccr j
Derlin, (VH 20i3 • turr^nt FT empioyment

Tri>€oonSy Comcsatmilj Acllon Prograc^ lac.
Chief OperaliiiQ Olfaecr
Berlia. NB 2016 .2016

Responsible for the operations of six agency Divisions with I S individtial programs that provide over
60 consumer services across three counties ofjNorthcrn New Hampshire. Essendal duties include;
supervision of Division Dltecrors, oversee and monitor program resources, revenues, expenditures
and budget performance; raccical oversight ofprograms to meet or exceed agency defined strategic
goals; develop and implement strategics to improve intiividual programs and overall agency program
and fiscal performance; oversee and lead special projects such as the Annual Report, Scrat^c Plan,
Communit}' Needs Assessment process, and work with Senior Management Team to develop new
service iruiiacives. Provide lacdcal guidance to
in the daily operations of programs.

Division Directors to trouble shoot issues and problems

TrMCoPBty CAOuniiiiilT Aefion Programs, Inc.
Division Direciori TCCAP Prevealion $er>'icca

Berlin. NU 20IS-20I6 |
Responsible for four agervq' programs under the umbrella of I'CCAP Prevention Services; oversee
division resources, revenues, and expenditures and monitor budget performance; general oversight of
programs rp meet or exceed agency defined strategic goals; supervise program directors; write grants
to supporr programs, moniior results, and prepare grant reporn and financial sutements for fundcrs
and agency; develop fundraising and marketing strategies for programs; represent program rhiough
parttcipanon in state and local initiatives relative to program/division goals and setvice dclivety;
collaborate with stakeholders and elected officials, including presendng legislative testimony.

Tri'CooRtj Commanily Aetino Program*. Inc.
Pregram/Dtvision Director: Sopporl CeaCer at Borcb Doase
Liltlcton. New flomfMliire 3007« 2015
Oversee daily operation and supervision of domestic and sexual violence crisis center and residential
shelter; write grants to support programs, monitor results, and prepare grant reports and financial
staccmenu for funden aiid parent agency; oversee program resources, revenues and expenditures, and
monitor budget performance, and progtess toward strategic goals; create and direct victim advocacy
programs to ensure compliance with grant deUvenbles and applicable state and federal law; develop
fundraising and marketing strategics; participate in state and local collaboracidns to enhance victim
services; represent program in state and federal victim service initiatives, Including presentation of
legislative lestimon)'; create and present trainings for medical and legal professionals on legal standards
and best practices for victim services.



JL Robillafd * 2

Dookkecper: Woinco*« Rurol Enlrcprcncariol N«(wi>rlk (WHEN^
Detklchem. KU <orrwi< PT emplajnenli

Responsible for grant bscal tracking, fC>octing, funds release and account transfers, bi-weekly pajtoU
and 941 payments, accounts payable and receivable, month end reconciliarions fur bank accounts,
credit cards, petty cash, retail and market sales; monthly POS/QB reconciliation for Oirce retail
locations, preparing monthly cash flow, fotecaso, and standard tiscftl reports for Board of Oireciots.

Tri^Coanty Commoniiy AcSion Programa. Inc.
Direct Sei^cc«A'olciQ(cer Coordinofort SoppoM Center o< Oorcli IIoom
LilUeloo. Ktw UAoaprhirc 1097 to 3007
Provide advocacy and direct service to vicdms of domestic and sexual violence; supervise court
advocic)' programs; recruit, train and superviscjsiaff, volunteers, and interns; develop agency systems,
policies and protocols; create and present community outreach presentations and campaigns; present
Khonl-based violence prcvendon classes for grades K-12 ; provide on-call coverage of crisis line

Director: ffloverhill Area Jovcnilc Divcruoo Pr^ram
Woodirvillc, IVcw ilampvhirc I999-3MI
Recruit, train, and supervise volunteer diversion comnurtces; establish community programming for
diverted youth; supportive counseling of youth; maintain coQaborative reloiionships bclvi'ccn the court
system, juvenile service ofllccts, local police dcpartmcnrs, and diversion program; p.reparc and file
coun reports on diverted youth; community outreach and cdueirion

Cooitaclor/Tsllc I Teacberi IVorlbcra Family iiMSiSuSc-Jcffciwia SbelSer
Jcttercon, Mew Dampohli^ I990-I999

Provide individual supportive counseling to ad|udicated youth, facibtate peer support groups, develop
and implement crcacment plans and case management services to clients, supervise and tutor youth in
classroom setting, supervise youth in daily livutg skills

Edncaaiton

B$ la ilumaa Scrricc*. Sprtnglivld College Sehool.af Ifonaao Service*, Boston, MA
Criminal Jusdcc Concentration, Craduetui with 4.0 CPA

AS in Drag anil Alcohol RchabiliiaSion Caanaeliag IDARC Program!
Soalbem Connrelicol Community College. New llavun, CT

AJdilionnI Cleillai. ProfgssionJi LcndcrffhiP and Chic AfftfiflltPUff
♦ Chairman, Bethlehem Board of Selecirncn. Town of Beihlchcm Twice HIcctcd 2006-2010
♦ Owirman, Arts Alliance of Northern New Hampshire AW-7W3, Tree/jurr
♦ Chairman, Hiverhill Area Family Vtole'ncc Council 199S-200J
♦ Certified PRIMf. FOR LIFE ImpairedjOriver Iniervention Program Inscructur #NH16I99
♦ Registered Hanssmeot Preventinn Trainer in the State of New Hampshire
♦ Board Member. Women's Rural Entrepreneurial Network 2014; lati/n't/iki/MtmUr2001t-2Cl?
♦ Bethlehem Planrui^ Board 2010-2015
♦ Bedtkhem Conservation Commission \ 2006 • nmnl
♦ Cfinitc United Way. North Country Cabinet Member 2011-2012

'  * TCCAP: Commendadon- Division Director Award, 2011

♦ Bethlehem Giiiers's Advisory Commiiiee on Recycling 2007-2010
♦ Liccased Foster Parent, Slate of NH \2000-2006
♦ Small Business Owner : Aurora Energies 2015- ewrretn
♦ SpcakeasyTrio Jazz Vocibsi/SwcttJammSwingBaodlaza Vocalist 1997-tKmat
♦ Member, United States Fgure Skating l\«ociatiun/lmemadonal Skadng Insdcutc mrrml smtr 199)



Brenda Gagnc
Chief Program Officer

Tri Count}'Community Acdoo Program Inc.
#

Fro/essionai Symmojy:
Successful oversight of the day to day aspects and operations of Tri County CAP'S Transit, Guardianship and
Energy Assistance Programs.

Experience:

Tri County Community Action Program, Inc.
6/30/2020 - Present
Department Head, Economic Supports
&S/2022 Chief Programs Offwer

Tri County CAP, Inc.
Tri County Transit

31 Pleasant St.
Bcflio NH 03570
5/2017-6/30/2020

Director of Transportation

Riesponsibilities include; .
Overseeing the operations and admiausirativc funciiortsof a social service transportation program serving Coos,
Northern Grafton and Carroll Counties.

Trl-County CAP, Inc.

Tri County Tronsil
31 Pleasant St
Berlin NH 03570
7/2004-5/2017

Operations Manager

Responsibilities include;
'Running the daily operations of a public transit an(
'Facility Management.
'Gathering statistics
'Quarterly reporting toNHDOT and BEAS.
'Preparing quarterly invoices to BEAS and NHDO'
'Weekly employee scheduling, staff management.
'Creating procedure manuals
•Grant writing
'Budget preparation
•Writing Warrant Articles
'Drug & Alcohol Testing
•Emergency Preparedness

Mountain Village Construction
P.O. Box 96

MUao, N.H. 03588
5/1995- 1/2004

Accounts Monagcr/Officc Manager

Responsibilities included;
'Customer service.

'Accounting using Quick Books Pro.

para transit service.



♦Preparing payroll and Tax Paymcnis.
•Preparing CuslomcrSiatemcnis and Invoices.
•Accounts Receivable and Accounts Payable.
•Creating and running Profit and Loss Reports.
•Data Entry.
•Phone communications and general secretarial duties
Milan Parks and Recreation Dept.
P.O. Box 300
MUan, N.H. 03588
6/1997-3/2002
Parks and Recreation Director

Responsibilities mctuded;
"Directed and implemented sports and recreational progrruns for youth and oduUs for the
Towos of Milan, West Milan, and Dummer.

•Development of new programs and year round activities.
•Producing yearly budgets.
•Equipment and materials purchasing.
•Organizing and supervising a large Volunteer staff.
•Working with the public to create new programs.
•Coordinating with the Milan Village School on othletic and after school programs.
•Applying for Federal and State Grants.
Education:'

•  Graduate Gorham High School
Gorham NH

•  Granite State College
Emergency Management

•  Southern New Hampshire University
Bachelor of Business Administration

NHDOT Courses
Fundamentals of Successful Project Management, MTAP/RTAP Financial ManagcriKnt Course
Basics of FaciJiiics Management Seminar (Facility Maintenance Plan), Transit Security Workshop
FTA Drug & Alcohol Workshop, Emergency Planning and Disaster Management, NH Conference on Statewide
Emergertcy Preparedness, Procurement for Small and Medium Transit Systems.
Certified Training and Safety Reviewer
Community Transpoitation Association of America
June 2009

Certified Safely and Security Officer
Community Transportation Association of America
10/2010

Tri Slate Transit Conference
•9/2007. 10/2008, 10/2010.9/2011.9/2013.9/2014,9/2016.9/2017

Grant Writing Workshop
New Hanq^ire Convnunily Technical Colkge
Berlin NH 10/2005



Randall S. Pilotte

Summary

Accounting profcMiunal with over 29 yeors of cxperieiKc, of which 21 years were wiih a single private manufaciurcr.
16 years of expeneiKe managing accounting professionals. Key competencies include:

Financial Statements

Payroll
Budgeting

Accounts Poyobks
Bank Reconciliations

Cash Row Managcmcni

Inventory
Accounts Receivables

Audits

EXPtRlENCF.

TULCOUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. fNC.. Berlin. NH

Fixed Assets

Sale.xAJse Tox

Forecasting

06/2013-Pre sent

dFO (2017-Present)
Work closely with the CEO, Treasurer and Finance Committee to Identify performance goals for the Agency and to
rnointain systems to monitor performance a^inxtthosc|go8ls. Plan, direct, coordinate, implement and evaluate (be
financial managemeni systems and activities of the Agency with a budget of S18M.

Prepare/provides complete and accurate rinancial. statistial, and aaouniing records for the Agency and outside
regulatory ogencies. ' . |
As a member of the senior manogcment team, assists in ihe formulation and executioo-of corporate finance
policies, objectives and programs. . |
Prepares program ond agency budgets In conjunction with the CEO and Program Directors. Plon, direct,
coordinote, iroplemeoi and evaluote fiscal performaocc reviews of Tri-County CAPs divisions.
Hire, (rain, direct andevaluateemployee performance within the department; recommend promotions aod salary
adjustments. . {
Provides supervision ond direction for the Facilities Management Team, ensuring lhar all mortgages, Icoses and
coveoaots are maintained for Trt-Ccunty CAP'i facilities. Creotion of five-year capital plan.
Reviews cash flows for each division, monitor casli
with each property.
Prepared Five^ycar debt reduction plan.

martagemcnt practices, and monitor investments associated

'beat DirectorAnlerim CFO (2016 - 2017)
Direct and manage a fiscal staff of S and procesMS associated with the geDcral ledger, payroll, and accounts
payable, accounts receivable, cash receipts and fjixcd assets.
Prepare and supervise the production of financial statements Including Balunce Sheet, Revenue ar\d Expense
Reports, and Cost Summaries on a monthly and annual basis.
Maintain proper accounting controls on grants and contributions to eruure accurate revenue reporting and expense
tracking to support periodic monlloring's by funders arid auditors.
Ensure all balaoce sheet, revenue and expense accounb are analyzed and reconciled periodically.
Collaborate with Division Directors to monitor dcponmcniai revenue and expenses veraus budget.
Worked tvith the CFO to develop real time monthly and annual financial reporting; and implementing
departmental goals.
Prepare audit schedules for external auditors.
Collaborate with externo) auditors in completing

Accoontlng Manager.(2015-2016)

Sr. AceoQQtant(20l3-2014)
RANDALL PILOTTE RESUME:

annual audit in a timely manner.



KENT NUTTUTION GROUP. fNC (f/k/gBlue Seal Feeds, [nc.). Londondecrv. NH 03/1989-09/2010

Assistant Controller (2005-20(0)

Ensured on occuroteand timely monihly and year end close, consisting of the preparation of a consolidated and
individual financial statement In accordancev^ithOAAP for nine manufacturing pjanls and 11 retail stores with
gross revenues in excess of S26OM. Additional 'responsibilities included preparing journal entries, account
analysis, inventory review and observation, fixed
Managed, trained, and supervised a stalTficcouniani

assets, and depreciation. «
responsible for ensuring accurate journal entries, inventory

reconciliation, tonnage tax returns, bank recpnciUadons, and assignment of special projects.
•  Oversaw all aspects ofproprietary software, multi-state payroll system for SOO employees. Prepared all federal

and state payroll tax reports, including quarterly and year-end returns, processing of W2s, and supervision of
payroll clerk. |-

•  (nlerfeced with 18 various banks throughout New England and Mid-Ailaoric area used as depositories.
•  Prepared multi-state satesAisc tax returns and acted as point of cootaci for audits.
•  Pro-octively coached and consulted plant and store management on the onnual budget development process.
•  Oversaw month-end accruals. |
•  Assisted and responded to auditors' requests on annual oudit.
•  Filed annual franchise and abandoned property reports with appropriate states.

Accounting Manager (1999-2005)

Supported the Corporate Controller's initiatives by proNnding supervision and oversight to the Accounting function.
Supervised aod trained two accounts payable clerks onj Chart of Accounts, Accounts Payable, timely and accurate
processing and payment of vendor's invoices,emp!oyee travel reimbursements, and standard accounting practices.

Accoununt/PeyroU Supervisor (1994-1999)

Accountant (1989-1994)

NORTHERN TBLECOM; rNC..Conconl.NH

Associate Results Accountant (19881989)

Accounts Payable (1987-1988)

Education

Bachelor of ScierKe, Accounting, FRankun PiprceCollege. Concord. NH

05/1987-03/1989



Nathan h. mhis ■

PfffyWMNAt q.lM>UgVi.nri SPU^

Operations Manager wttii eg)ertence and owslte if Rnandal, QuaSty AssuTtnce end Operations
comparwitsfor non-proft wgantzattons and $mafl|buslTwsses. Professlona!, ftcdble wltti proven
anatyttcal ddfts. Oemonstrated record of effeotNe proWem solvfrig, sound budness Judgement and
CUStUJlIC UfVlUc*

BuScuOe««fDpnemninrtno&6u09c»i9
^  ArodaoBDUflOngt GAA^a BOHA

ABCt MinaecmBit

^ EitendvedBlhruaaflrMIoosBftEnH
Cttttact HcQoOiOon, MiMsbatton a CompQance

Paflgc^r^lMai^,

Sbff and Siz>«rmctDr Maoegeneni
OcM A vtrtdor ReMons

Vofc/ntMir ^
Cetncaae. l£ANSar 9^ Green ed^USH 2016
GerOfkatA Prejea KanaoBneei. USH 2DH

Since Aprfl 2019Otviston.OpetBthns MMAper
TrKburey OBimurtty AOttoi. PtoorvQ, Bcrfttv K«w Ki mpM

Opeational AdmMstrsttve and Rscel oversKe for Govefrvnent and UtOfty funded programs that
provide home cftdeflcy, (nsulatlon and heating system upgrades to income eOgftee housetoUs in
C&m)U« Cots arid Oafton Counties, New Harnpshire.

• opeitbrB)ovod^ofUtinyHEA«ndKPwS.«ndFcdBalOOeandOHMStatvlKsmsWcatiiBtzadBv*<"<StKtemrepdr Bid repbcBuul piujiwii. |
• OrpwaBOaspcdacf^ogremOpcfBaonsendProJaetKaimnireaigaidannffryqffanibudggdB^flpnentmd '

•ulhortstlon of ependRures accordhg to esrveoad budget aprwTwti d]cnt dpnAy and progrsn oxrvAne^
ntrlng (rtfntng, oipervtting and avelaUhg department tadt.

Inside Prodoctien Maiwfftr
TC Kritard BBscmem Sfsterm, WctA KE

InsUe ProdudJon Manager responsible for mana^ scheduDng end dose out of dry basement
systems instaHs. - {

2018

•  wsh homeowner throughout fcheduCng, irsiiP end dojeem prooaiet Lbtsor) nth als teem eryJOutdda
praducttan Haiwger to crtsfo proposal, ataaSUan ̂  matBta) costs met dlent epccutiero. oompirv ctudardi
ami warranty raaParoerta f» Wy batenent ttotcmk

ProjectMmger
PATCD CbmOusBor^ SardbidrME 2016*2018

Project Manager responsible for managing residential home constrticdon process tiiroughout the
ptanrdng, sdiedidlrtg, material proojrement and (snstrucbon processes.

. Utfan to horneownerthreushoutf^condnadJ process bofflCDntroctclgrlng to doling. VVeeUy teleghanB
update attf sdw eritmata and nansgoaertl Nalntata mafler ccheduto on ftildv Tlend prqjea minagawM
mlbort. SehtduteBjlKUftaUuisbBpcct worttD'pwjBgmec.,BPrefe»wfc and aflpnwetnwtebfcrpotftnBt.
Xe cost owertihv mBtcrtah ordertng and Irwectcry managemerl.

Director, Housing and EnergpSayrtea
The opportmfey AJBmoB, Sndh tottand, HE

2009 * 2016



Oeratd F. Mllinon. Jr.

Ekocu(Ivo Sommaitt

ErWttJsiAstte. dodlcatDd end hartf«ioddnfl professional offer^ over 20 yean tf
kvoed-besad expertence In Pra^ birection, polcy end procediffBl deveiopmera.
training & devetopment. budget and business operations wonm rest-
paced envlronrnenL

Expertenco:

Trf<Ceunty Cemmunny Action Progrwn. inc.
D^rtmont Heed: Woalhefttatlon A Focimtea Oporattene

B9fo.NH
7-1-2020 to present

, Oet^ and Oppettenal guidance of wodJierBaoon Progrens and Cftb Agendas FariOtes
Depvtmenl Observe, mdyze. and offer suggerilont on current opantlorts.
EatsbOsbing profeaslond relaOon«Mps]eitt eflerrta. itaff, end other etdoahotters.
Maintdntng relattortshJps eitth cQents end flndttg cnedhra ways to expotd dio pregrems
effoedvaneta.

Tri^ounly CoRVTBinlty Action PrDgreRVlne.
Pmgraffl Menegor/ DIrocten Woathortetlon a EmptoymontPrDgrami

Berlin, NH
4-M3tD6-31-^

Provide leedcith^ and overelghi to program's epefaSons. budgeb and repof^g;
Coordinata and Mogr^ programs' ectivUea.
Hire, aupervtae artd mai\agB aleff, Irtdudlng In-housa end Blnervd ornpipyeds.
Preparo pvds and proposds. ! .
OoMtop, piepve arid t^iecmnt program budged, nsrathras.
Aovtaw artd roconcflo program ftrwdd reporta for robnbursormnl
Interact wflh progrsn monRors, outside cudtora, Foderd agency ajdllors and others In
review of prog ram esflvttlse, comp&enro vd flnsraid acoountdtlBy
Oevebp new progrwTo funding stroams as dtpropriste.

Trt«County Community Action Prograrrv Init.
Crew Chief/Slate Certified Energy Auditor BerEn.NH 5-1-05 to 4-1-15



Nofthfifn ExDfOBS Eebey, Inc. North Conway, NH

EstkDstad food erd beverage cosa, requb«iontno and purchssino fiuw£c8Assisted suboTdhtatohldenefyhflendresoMng problems ■
ConfaiTOd wflb food preparation and other personrwl to plan menus and relatad
BcOvttes. I ;
Directed hiring and esstgnmani of poreonneL
(nvesdgated and resolved food quality andwrvtoe complalnta.
MaM^wd an records and produced;reports.
ExecuM dally opergUons of restaurent mer^egBmanL

HaMiold-ReynoWaBectrte8nIES,lnc.Coinpaiiy Phoonh.AZ
Project GBanagar 5-2000 to 10-3^2002

RA^ed orolect propomb to determine Bme frame, funding Ilmaad^procedtfes
fv Accompltehlng project, staffing loquVements and etoimant of available roaoirca®
to various phases of projacta.

BO Entarpf ttesi tn^- Lake Havaau City, AZ
PioaldonllOenera/Manaoef | S-MBftd 10^15-2000
Pun;haatoARTlSANELECTRIC.INC.andcharoedthef^
Contracted to perform spectnod consbu^
accordance with archttecfs plans, blueprints, codes arxJ
Estlmeted coats of maiartals. labor and use of equipmant required to fuITHI provldons
of coidract and prepared bids. |
Conferred with cBerts to negotiate te^ of contract
Aesistad aubofdinates in Identifying and resoMng prowama.
Demonstrated effective presentation dtto.



Education:

NHTl
Associates Degree in Etoctrenic
Theory

Technology
Concord
IdSS

LRCC Leconis
Eloctlca} Systems InsteBation & MaMenance, I96d

for Journeymen electrfeal testing and State
Uceraee.

AddtUonel Tralntng:
/

6 CUE training course for Grant wrlilng for norv proTits. To enhance my poslUon on the
board of at ChOdren UnOmitad. Inc. |
Successfi/Dy cdmptotad OE'aprestfgious-'SIX SIGMA' manegament course in2001
White Emptied wttb 1
Hatfldd^^eynoUsElacbicen lES.hc.CompanyPhoenn.AZ..
SuccessfuSy completed (raining courses and eemlnfirs for^lead safe wodc practices.
BtUtfos awarertesa. OSHA 30, CPR.eiectr1cai code updates.
SuecessfuOycomplated Suslness m'aneoementdasses in AZ
Ourfngthe 1995-2001. I
Successfully complatad (ralnloQ and testing to be e NH State cerliridd Energy Auditor
mzoce.

Community:

Board member Children Unlimited, Inc.. Ccmay NH 'Non- Profif
Boerd member Berlin RevBsKzatlon |Comm|ttee. BerDn NH Tlon- Profit' <
Past member ef the advisory board end codaslgner for the Myotonlc Dystrophy
Foundations first website. |
Previous owner ervl wafamester for the Myotonlc Dystrophy tnformebon website.

Ueenie:

Held an Electrical Jourrteymen Ocena NH
Held an Electrical Cortfractor License AZ

Referanoee: Avafiabfe upon raquestj



^^stnt^Hsa\, Operational and Comfdianoe responriblHly tor tederaffy tonded pregrams that pwWe
tome energy and emogency asststence, HQS tome repair, and home afflttency od tosidstton
upgrades to tooome cTiglble households In Cumtxrtand and Yorir County, Maine.

• Con»a<awrt^endRsBl»wtipttrfr«Br«lootendOHHSlDWhfflintWWtotrtDn.Ceno*IHto
• Zmp»«ment er>d BlWmcy Mdne En^ COrtsmaifai) hoOTre.

,  I
> ftmMaSw»g»faee»i&»ttiditgDfdMapef<aentwite.grq8oaw8ndbetottdtterminaaaiMMT»fH

iWidbs awoitt h«m itpea, home rmeNedw end anepy dfldcpcy uflgmde d very bw to moderta IronetooMeb ta CUmbo<ud «nd VM Qk«cy.

OutiffcssHgrtager
anBtamog^ tortbnd, KE 2006-2009

Managed afl budness acOvfty tor nattonal otBtoger provtdtng Oftoe of the Registrar course catatog
and other legally btodtng documents to ooOege and unlvefsiaes In the United States ard Canada.

AoBotmifnffAttotiste
SoidiBn Aeency oi Sadnraush, me'

20M-2006

Responsible tor business office hmcOorts of AP^AR and PaymO tor non-profit agency. In tWs posttlon I
wasBccounttog fiaJson for a vartety of pfograms among others, and iwa responslbte tor Bocurete
payraO processing tor departments that operate 21/7/365.

ftemC^taftgutd.MvefmigPMographef
Hoi«MM,tortordK£

1998 - 2001

hto^hg studio photographer for New Englamft first digital oommqtidl photography studio
responsible tor project management, process <«»1dlow, and.capacity and demand managemcnL

EDUaTlQH

Bacftetef of Art% Geography
tfMthb fdU

Contiryfng Budnaaa, Aosxmtfng, Project Management and Human Resourau
(fitoi^oraiunaTi^nie onpoHp

Q3M>ftWfTYSavrrT

BUdcfbrd School CommtttBe, Vice Chabman
. toOuPnavOfrtaiumOBJWteajFbwnraCornrtBw: tottnrtdC6nwiltoa;ChrfNeoB^

and 2008. Serrcdaurtnopslodthitatodcyttim
iBdertHkstSOfflCttandaQermoviOantfarddetoriKl^SO^

Central America Volunteer wortt
Heoda Cbsts Rki a Sm evntdkio Gtulemtti

*  Mo htOtoXtoagraatniooa wUht whoewtiiwpeBbMtBiBmbef
wW nalBWM lytfBTO.

Aerbeieer wrtoto <a»n mgusf



Dennis Downs

PR0FE5SI0^^AL SUMMARY

Stilled EfiOgy Auditor widi operioioe io the Conservation Industry. Familinr with t Houm tt.a Syston.
Bxpeziastd in Blower Door Testing.

Skills —
• Self'fflOtivatedl
• Strong vote! ooomimicetjoo
» Mech&nically Inclined

• Aceuftosed to working io all weatha conditions
• Eager to leam new

a Ooal oriented last learner
• Make safety A priority
• Conunittod to the client happy
• Have knowledge ofhand and power cools

Work History

Production SupQvisor, D4/I994 to Cunvai

Tri County CAP-30 Buchaagc St Berlin KH 03S70
•  Soperviie muItiiNe weathaizstion teams doing lin^ ftmily end multi-family installation!.
• Oversee majntenattco and management of warehoasc, incIuAng keeping inveatery and brderibg of

stttsiali. I
• Pcrfonn energy audits to determine the most oost effixtive enagy inaproverixnts.
• ObtaineddonnDenti,deaninco, certificates end approvals from local, fCBte» and federal agendm.
•  Production isaoagemeni of crews to meet and budget objectives.
• Woildng directJy with client to achieve a inore enogy efficieii home.

pBdcei/ZnipcctDr, 09/1993 (0 04/1994
lenFoot Ammca bc-Uflleton lodustriaJ Pack Littleton NH 035^1

• Managed a line oftfarec to four wtnkeia.

•  Inspected nihberbocti for imperfectkmi.

Laborer. 07/1993 (s 09/1993
LA BnvirooaeniBl - Looseville Koetucfy

• Helped remove ahrdge ftom the pollution ebotnl lagoons at Simpson Paper Co in Oihnao VT.

Apprentice Bectriciaa, 10/1992 to 02/1^3
Royal Electric-WoodsviSeNH

• Wodt under multiple master dectricians wiring the new School.

'EDUCATION

AsociateofAi^lied Scieoce; Electrical Coostructioa. 1992
NH Vocatieial Tcchnlca) CoOcge - Prescott HQl. Lacoma.' NH 03240

•  BPIQuali^Coatnllnipeetor
•  LcuJ Safe Beaovitor

• OSHA30

CERTIFICATIGNS

BP] Energy Auditor
CPR/PhsiAld

Valid Drtvei Licesse



JESSICA YQUm .t j. .J . >11 I
f ••: . 9

Sl^
*Openitlonil iesdcntilp

'Reporting Requlremerrti
*Pro«ctiv« Mtntim

'Persuithfo CpmmunlaUon

Style

*Ooeument Management

Team Oriented

Education

May 20U-White

Mountatn Communfty
CoAege, Berlin NH -

Aasodetti Degree •

Bualneu

MerugemenVMedlal

Conaidretion

Professional Summary

MuttMelented Rrogrtm Supervisor drtren to optimize processes end Improve
producThrfty to mnJntiu progrem sucoeuea. btenshn experience In mtnigement with

a strong worh ethic ExoeDlng end mslrrtatrting ftnenctel documentetton and reporth^ to
dapartment htadc Pollta wOh a professional approach to daUy tesb. Ready to tske

each year of my TrKounty Community Action Progrem ar^r to the next le«el as the

Offloe/Pfogrem Supervlior for the weethertiation Depa rtment

Work Experience

Offlte/Progrem SupenrflOR Tri-Cotirrty CAP. Berlin WH: Aorll 2Ql»Currem

1
tn this position I em responsOdefbr progrem and office functbns of the Weatherfatipn

Department. My rcsponslbmies Inctutie supervising, provitfrtg quality overslte.

Irsqulrlng performanoc measurement, supply treliUng. artd/or coordination of tramlr^

for the office staff, in coordination wfih the OMsfon Director, my role b to record
revenuesarsd opeises to our flsealdepartment Invotca ov hirtders for paymerst of

seivtas oomplrtad by our weatherlzation d^rtmant I provide guidance to our office
rtafi an dlant intaka with a prlortty schadullr^g fooa. l do work oollaborvthely wtth the

ProductionSupervtsercnsurtngtha tehedullngofenergy audits b sufnclem. I procure
lobiuppSes end msterlab for weathcdallM Jobs, and ̂  guidance to the
cDortilnetlon of heating system instellationi for both fslllrtg haathg system and
emetgency no-heat sftuatfons. lom here to provide supervislen and leadershJp to ofRce

staff, presently Including; the Wcatherlxatlen AdmMstrkor end the Procuremerrt
Inventory and FedOtiei SpecbOst

Office Mgnaeer Cortrem famMv Dentlft/v. Gorham WH: Mav lOXl- Mav

Supervised a total of 6 staff members. Maruged fT probtems and bsuis wtth reseird) and technlesi support Controlled
computer bsues by trouble-shooting Issues In the network. Mabrtamed computertted schedules for 3 doctors and 2

bygienbts. Implemented a pbn for eadi new student dentist from UffE every 3 months. Handled (nsuranoe cblms,

entered Iraurence paymenti. adjusted patients ledprvjand admjnistorad bflli via mall. Answered muttHlna telephone
while (hcdrlng patients in and out Created treatment pbns end dlscusud peyresnt options with pitianti.. Was
reiponslbta for staff and patierrt rebUoni. Created mirfcetfng tdsas for Pace book ind newspapers. Trained staff on front
end procedures. Enforced KIPAA gufdefirtas by coordlna^ anrtuai trainings for HIPAA compOance. SchedoM meetings
for open enrolment and coordinated Afbc representation to asifat with secondary eptlora.

Customer Servtce Manager. WOlmart. Ccrtiam WH: Octyber ZOOO^lctobeT 2W8

Supeivtsed itsff membareftom seveni departments throughout the store. Trained new hires on front end procedures
and effective time management Scheduled cashiers end service desk issocbta to dedgnated areas while melntilnlni
the leheduie thnughoui the doy tmpiementing reliefs for breaks funcheit and end of shifts. Attended Share Hoidan
rhcetings In reference to stock owned and new options coming up. Managed storewlde associate register Issues and/or
aiftomo- relation questions. Coilecttd surplus of cash In register tds to drop off to the acoountlng oftioo. Oeslgnatod
assodaas during each shift to ossbt with reorganizing the itodi on shehcs for customer accesslbQtly.



— Samantha Roy
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ACCUBATS I RPnOBhn'l DTTAILES
CcmpRhmifvc lu>e«W|c of wswttnf pnndplci, md in hvi. Eitnotdistiy tReatiefl a dmO wiih
kaeo ibiEtjr to pnptn ind iwIjm finasdi) tcpoii*. Rifotivc in Vord, End, Qeid^ki coftvot, Mtd eu
popodoo Aoifis Oi^cBaitfic daok'filinf, torkbp mvekn, btQiDC.tod ptyinf aBplo|e» WZtn^ot
CO (0 tbovt nd bqood duulpdoo. iaaa vitb ptorm tbStf to idtpi co eev ce^mIoo, pCDeadun.
tod oAa a^tspnunr.

Axeas ofExpcrdse
^ Aocoobv Pi)«bi^lUcdnMr

Rcopdoatn
^ Ota lep«c
^ fimk AeeoedSicdoo

✓

✓

✓

✓

RbomiJ Stpotdac
^aib<Ead Ooriojt*
to Kc7 bfToed)
Tu Rmm Ptqwidan

Professional Experience

WRATHBMZAnQHAPMMmATQ

AecouBdof SeSwc
lUol Spnadtbot
bCoaaofi Won!

Pevo Polst

SO^752.X00lTM-COUKTY COMMUNiry ACTION PROCHAM BoEa. NH Q3S70
EJeva moncbt'opcaeice la dated tad cooidlaodeo *oik Dodo inchdc eodiitiAtai hodof fjimnt
ptognma data eoOeBieo. tstbdoe widi votbesxtdoo opening coeedbido^ boi t^iat vetb, ptptwwb,
ti^aaaow cootncM, wceHo| md ptocanaf 'dieoc cdb ht aS psfcmi tod SAdlo|, ropoodl^ to dbu
aUt^ R&mU, cad Sci vcadon, nMDtfbf vathtfUadoa flea, md bttk efiet floetieoi.
figimcBAPvrsoR

BEIUJN CITY PORD C;af^NH 03570 603-752'Sd44
Pout pem cxpokaoe of duiol vod lad cuseeme icms Odjr dstia iadodad eoaiglog yecp of
end diipaidil^ wnd o tdtedWcd. rVnd indudcd: cntwtdn^ pbnno, cBnosMr loricc, mphf bvotas,

dcB oierf, itcnnliojt end raddnp lAveiiot); (npotdng new iovmcniy. is«ulds(, ̂ oaotmn and NSlfl||
. mtHcc; BXBRpng todAidsit, tnd nuuniniag •abBoa pijibk md ccanuao lULiviUb

njfttnptAi

POiniANDGUSS Cnhcza.NKUXSSl 603-752-5507
Tvi> foa cxpcoBMc of (kriol vod u cn InridcSda lepteooitukt tad upcadag of.cheibce dcOf. Duda
Incfui^ Buvofflg pbenu, cxuKmxt ic/ric^ Ring, cDp^ag, bveiao^ tchedcUai, quodng, ifptog. im tattf,
B«atb>r (Bvoitet)-. nedvlag ptodoo, oolsiAg pto'duei, ftaaviog md eoding bOla. apeoK t^nt, oakiDg
d^da, doMDiff fcpcttt. oooiacang vtxtdoa, mtsiai ptpalX vop tnaigaa. md sMOthij'fiDaocal itttBsma.

Volunteer Experience
VOLUVTBRR TAX PRHPAItglt

PAUaYRSSOURCB CENTER Cac»iiin,NH03S81 603U66.S19O
VebstoBtd for cbc VITA Fiugjui, Aoatardj* veAad oo md ptpmd ladh>ld«ai tad SoatO Buiiacu Pcdad
locoot Ta mot. Attlrad ia dc pnpMtden efycnaotn cwc eta teomt, a *c9 n Rcsidmi Afia'i ut
mumt. opdU ofpf^tdag ox fctwiu with todd itoaitr taeoeu, »niwiwm hastt, odaoa oaaatna,
oruBiplotnat income ntetit oo btafc Mmtati, tad diridcadt 6oa bmb. latcmd pAOue Sotkc Cotlfld
To {Vepatt for 2U70 It 2011 rp (Etomt.

Education

WHITE MOUbTTAINS COMMUNITY COU,KE

' Acmdua Oq^na: Acawndng d Buiiaot Adminiiotdoo
CoaSace EaiCTemieeOHp
BaUiuNHOSSTO

PHI THBTA KAPPA

XThlct Uoonuiai CdiMn«aa7 CnOtge
Pratdmr »11<20I3

Mtnbo Sinec 2010


